# Relatório Científico



# Índice

General Information	3
Research Lines	20
Citizenship and Social Policies	20
City and Urban Culture	31
Science, Technology and Society	40
Comparative Cultural Studies	51
Peace Studies	62
Migration Studies	73
Labour and Trade Unionism	79
Governance and Economic Institutions	88
Architecture and Urbanism	96
Democracy, Multicultural Citizenship and Participation	107
State, Law and Administration	118
Research Lines	132
Institutions, Regulation and Citizenship	132
New Solidarities: Local, National, Global	138
Sciences, Technologies and the Humanities	144
Cultures and Social Dynamics	149

#### **General Information**

Name of Research Unit: Centro de Estudos Sociais - CES

**Coordinator:** Boaventura de Sousa Santos

Main Scientific Domain: Sociologia, Antropologia, Demografia e Geografia

Other Subdomains: n/a

**Host Institutions** 

**Leading Host Institution:** Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da Universidade de Coimbra

Other Institutions

Involved:

Objectives and **Achievements:** Unit Description

CES is a scientific institution dedicated to interdisciplinary and transdisciplinary research and its main task is developing research in the social sciences and humanities (where appropriate, other scientific fields). It is also entrusted with the development of doctoral and post-doctoral programmes and of training courses in advanced studies, with the participation in national and international research networks, with the development of long-life training activities in professional and academic fields, with the dissemination of scientific culture and with the promotion of cultural activities.

CES' activities are coordinated by a Scientific Director (SD). Management of the Centre is assured by three bodies: the General Assembly of researchers (GA); the Scientific Board (SB); and the Board of Directors (BD). The SB is responsible for the institution's strategic and scientific management. The BD is in charge of managing the implementation of the plan of activities. The GA is responsible for electing and supervising the BD and approving the Action Plan and Report and the Accounts.

CES' management structure assures professional management in pivotal areas of its functioning. Through the acquisition of specialised services, in the areas of network management, legal services, official monitoring of accounts, translation and layout and design services, CES seeks to assure the type of management which corresponds to its needs and to the requirements of its high quality research units. CES' management structure is also supported by several committees nominated by the Scientific Board which coordinate different functional areas and by external experts who take part in selection panels for new researchers for the Centre or carry out the external evaluation of CES' activities.

Research activities at CES are conducted within the framework of 11 Research Groups and 7 Observatories. The latter have a transdisciplinary orientation and also a special focus on applied research. Since 2002, after acquiring the status of Associate Laboratory, CES has organized its activities around four Thematic Areas: Institutions, Regulation and Citizenship; New Solidarities: Local, National, Global; Sciences, Technologies, Humanities; and Cultures and Social Dynamics.

These Thematic Areas provide the underlying structure for the overall organization and integration of research at CES. They allow for the coordination of initiatives that are transdisciplinary and transversal, demanding the joint efforts of the Research Groups and fo<sup>1</sup>r the emergence of new areas of knowledge, as well as the development of new theoretical approaches and methodological tools.

Finally, CES integrates the Institute of Interdisciplinary Studies of the University of Coimbra, a large unit of advanced research federating the most qualified research centres in the University and aiming to promote interdisciplinary research and to organize PhD programmes based on that research.

#### **General Objectives**

The Centre pursues four major objectives:

- 1. To maximize the opportunities for developing interdisciplinary and transdisciplinary research, combining the potentialities of sociological research with contributions from several other fields and research traditions. CES presence in national and international networks is to be reinforced, mostly in the area of North-South and of Portuguese speaking cooperation;
- 2. To develop new analytical and theoretical approaches and innovative methodological tools capable of capturing the specificity of contemporary societies in the context of the increasing transnationalisation of social relations;
- 3. To combine analytical and methodological pluralism with theoretical coherence in order to develop an integrated research agenda;

Both objectives 2. and 3. are to be fully implemented in the education and training activities promoted by CES, namely in PhD programmes and Advanced Training Courses oriented to young researchers in the area of the social sciences and humanities,

4. To produce databases and other information tools to be made available for multiple uses in joint initiatives with civil society organizations and State institutions, as well as with national, regional and local public administration. More broadly, this objective involves promotion and dissemination of scientific culture, openness to the community and support to initiatives taken by citizens and by the 'third sector' in fields related to the Centre's scientific activity.

Major objectives are to be developed in all CES instances - research groups, thematic areas, and observatories - and expressed in the different types of activities:

a) International partnerships and networks. Main areas of international involvement: public policies assessment, projects funded by international agencies, projects funded by the European Union and research networks;

11

- b) Contracted research and assessment projects. Activities based on CES expertise have been increasing through direct requests by governmental agencies and NGO's or through the Centre's participation in calls for tenders;
- c) Observatories for systematic evaluation and data collection. The observatories are an important tool in CES' activities, part of them resulting from protocols with public agencies, and allowing for building up databases and issuing relevant policy proposals;
- d) Research projects Other projects, funded mainly by national institutions, such as the Portuguese Science and Technology Foundation, the Calouste Gulbenkian Foundation or the University of Coimbra, have a more basic research oriented profile. These projects reflect the diversity of the research areas in which CES is engaged

For further information: <a href="http://www.ces.uc.pt/ces/objectivosen.php">http://www.ces.uc.pt/ces/objectivosen.php</a> and <a href="http://www.ces.uc.pt/ces/orientacoesen.php">http://www.ces.uc.pt/ces/orientacoesen.php</a>.

# Main Achievements during the year of 2009

- New Ph.D Programme "Cultural Heritage of Portuguese Influence". This transdisciplinary programme is situated in the areas of cultural studies, urban studies, and postcolonial studies. It aims at a critical reflection on heritage from architecture to language and literature resulting from the Portuguese presence in different parts of the world and the processes of interaction it underwent and still undergoes with its local context. It is jointly run by CES and the Interdisciplinary Research Institute (III) of the UC.
- New Ph.D Programme "Territory, Risk and Public Policies". The multidisciplinary doctoral programme in Territory, Risk and Public Policies is situated in the area of Risk Sciences, and was proposed by CES in association with the Interdisciplinary Research Institute (III) of the UC, the University of Aveiro and the Institute of Geography and Land Use Planning of the University of Lisbon.
- Expansion of the North/South Library to an area that has been added to CES' premises. This has allowed the creation not only of larger and more comfortable places for readers, but also of better conditions for keeping the library's holdings. Space that was set free by the transfer of the library has been transformed in two new large rooms fit for the use of up two 18 researchers.
- Opening of CES-Lisbon (Sept. '09). This new space, centrally located, is designed for the support of activities of research, advanced training and dissemination of CES in the country's capital. It is a flexible space with two seminar rooms (20 and 45 places) that may function separately or jointly. In collaboration with the Lisbon city hall, a small adjoining auditorium (85 places) may also be used for CES' initiatives.
- Support to the creation of CES-Aquino de Bragança (CES-AB), in Maputo.

Founded in September 2009, CES-AB brings together several Mozambican researchers. It aims at the development of research activities in the social sciences and the

humanities. CES is a privileged partner of CES-AB. At the end of April 2010, a first jointly organized conference on Juridical Pluralism will take place in Maputo as the first initiative of CES-AB.

- Launching of the book series CES-Almedina. This is a new editorial line divided into 10 different collections (Cities and architecture; knowledge and institutions; cosmopolis; democracy and participation; law and society; identities and interculturalities; literature and art; social politics; risk and regulation; labour and society. 7 books have been published so far, several others will appear in 2010 (http://www.ces.uc.pt/cesalmedina/).
- e-cadernos ces. Edited by CES, e-cadernos ces is a thematic publication with peer review that gathers papers resulting from conferences, seminars and workshops, as well as research articles originated within advanced training programmes and scientific research projects. It is published electronically, every three months. (see more at <a href="http://www.ces.uc.pt/e-cadernos">http://www.ces.uc.pt/e-cadernos</a>).

#### **Activities**

#### Integrative/multidisciplinary activities during the year of 2009

Integrative and multidisciplinary activities in CES are programmed and structured following a close articulation between the Research Groups and the Thematic Areas. These activities rely mainly on the unfolding of the existing national and international research projects and on the works of the PhD programmes hosted by CES. Of special relevance was the inauguration in 2009 of CES Summer School. Three courses were offered: Critical Economics, that promoted a forum for critical research on the economy and in economics; The sex of Violence(s), that analysed transversally through cases in Colombia, Brasil, El Salvador, Guinea-Bissau, Cape Verde and Portugal – the relations between masculinities, femininities and forms of violence; and, Renewed Ways of Doing Politics, offering different analytical tools to help make sense of the major characteristics, novelties and contributions of these renewed ways of doing redefining political. further information: politics the http://www.ces.uc.pt/cessummerschool/pages/en/home.php.

The advanced training courses, of which 10 were organized in 2009, are privileged fora for multidisciplinary and innovative approaches to emergent or pressing themes both epistemologically and methodologically. The series of 4 courses Justice XXI: Programme for Advanced Training 2009 mobilized researchers from different research groups and from the Permanent Observatory for Portuguese Justice, and was proposed in association with the Portuguese Judges Trade Union Association. A special mention must be given to the courses II International Colloquiums-Course Cycle - African Literatures of Portuguese Language Literatures of Cape-Verde, Guinea-Bissau and São Tomé and Príncipe, organized with the Federal Fluminense University, Brazil and Global Terrorism, in collaboration with the Peace Operations Training Institute, United Nations. For further information: http://www.ces.uc.pt/formacao/passados2009en.php

International conferences, seminars and colloquia constitute also opportunities to further cooperation between research lines and groups in CES. Of the conferences organized by CES in 2009, we highlight the following: Memory, History and Justice, jointly with the Universidade Federal de Minas Gerais, CES - Latin America and Centro de Documentação 25 de Abril; Spectacle/City/Theatre: Representations of City between Spectacle and the Luso-Brazilian Contemporary Theatrical Scene; Law and the Legitimation of Suffering, within the Doctoral Programmes "Law, Justice and Citizenship in the 21st Century" and "Postcolonialisms and Global citizenship";and, Risk and the State in a Globalized World, organized by the Risk Observatory.

Other initiatives, such as short seminars, workshops and conferences, are moments for sharing and discussing research results and bringing together different disciplinary approaches. Of these, around 80 were organized by CES in 2009. For further information: <a href="http://www.ces.uc.pt/eventos/passados2009en.php">http://www.ces.uc.pt/eventos/passados2009en.php</a>.

#### Outreach activities during the year of 2009

CES has increased and diversified its outreach activities towards broader audiences, resulting from its engagement in promoting and supporting scientific culture and citizenship initiatives (for further information on this topic see: <a href="http://www.ces.uc.pt/extensao/indexen.php">http://www.ces.uc.pt/extensao/indexen.php</a>).

The opening of CES-Lisboa in 2009, resulting from a partnership with the Lisbon City Council, was an important step forward in this strategy. The mission of CES-Lisboa is to offer training to middle and senior cadres of the public, private and civil society sector in the four thematic areas developed by CES. By opening a delegation in Lisbon, CES invests also in the capacity to develop new strategic partnerships, namely of international nature. Its Inaugural Session was organised with a lecture by Dr. Carlos Lopes, Assistant-Secretary General of the United Nations and Executive-Director of the United Nations Institute for Training and Research (UNITAR), on the 'The World Geography Policy'.

Several outreach activities have been developed within the frame of CES collaboration with the National Agency for Scientific and Technological Culture 'Ciência Viva'. This joint effort has been very successful in the promotion of scientific culture amid young audiences, attracting an increasing number of secondary school students, including during this past year Spanish students, and attaining a broad involvement of CES scientific community. In 2009, CES has hosted 3 programmes of Science in the Holidays, allowing secondary school students to being acquainted with the daily routines of scientific work. The programmes were: Urban environments: risks and uses of the nature of city, with 5 students, two of them Spanish; Sight unseen: nanotechnologies in and out of the laboratory, with 5 students, two of them Spanish; and, POEMACT: Practices and theories of creative writing, with 5 students, two of them Spanish.

During 2009, and within the governmental 'Commitment to Science' Programme, new Integration into Research Grants (BII) were attributed to undergraduate students, with

the objective to stimulate the initiation to scientific activity and the development of a critical approach, creativity and autonomy of the students through their integration in R&D project teams. CES admitted 17 grantees, who collaborated with research projects for 9 months, at the end of which they presented the individual results of their experience in the seminar Researching at CES: living experiences - Integration into Research Grantees. The seminar was largely attended by the CES research community and showed a successful involvement of the students with the research activities.

The outreach activities have also included a number other formats, namely through the organisation of exhibitions, in themes related to our research, as well as cinema cycles, both in cooperation with different local cultural agents.

# **Funding**

	2005	2006	2007	2008	2009
LA FCT	874.503,00	878.345,00	1.002.319,00	919.200,00	1.214.000,00
Units FCT	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	
Projects FCT	183.307,00	279.485,00	705.312,00	1.015.888,64	1.374.316,48
Other (National)	337.252,00	314.392,00	395.061,00	511.614,45	565.183,06
Other (International)	153.129,00	241.851,00	238.562,00	456.034,95	178.418,87
National Industry	23.574,00	21.829,00	18.628,00	0,00	15.700,00
International Industry	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	1.925,00
	1.571.765,00	1.735.902,00	2.359.882,00	2.902.738,04	3.349.543,41

#### **General Indicators**

	2005	2006	2007	2008	2009	Total
No. of Researchers Proposed	2,00	2,00	2,00	1,00	0,00	7,00
No. of Researchers Hired (LA)	1,00	4,00	2,00	1,00	0,00	8,00
Balance	-1,00	2,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	1,00
No. of Researchers Hired (Ciência Programme)	0,00	0,00	0,00	4,00	6,00	10,00
No. of Researchers (FTE)	33,00	46,00	62,00	74,00	91,00	
Training Masters (Master thesis completed)	13,00	16,00	24,00	16,00	57,00	126,00
Training PhDs (PhD thesis completed)	5,00	5,00	6,00	17,00	11,00	44,00

# **General Indicators**

# **Researchers Hired**

Name	Start Date	<b>End Date</b>	Other Institution
Elsa Margarida Cabrita de Sousa Lechner	01-07-2009	30-06-2014	
JACQUELINE ADAMS	15-05-2009	14-05-2014	
Joao Carlos de Oliveira Mascarenhas Mateus	15-05-2009	14-05-2014	
Mauro Serapioni	15-06-2009	14-06-2014	
Nancy Ann Duxbury	01-07-2009	30-06-2014	
Stefania Barca	01-06-2009	31-05-2014	

# **Technical Personnel Hired**

Name	Start Date	<b>End Date</b>	Other Institution
Ana Sofia Marques Correia	05-05- 2009	04-05- 2010	Science Library Support
Maria Luisa Granjo Nora	01-10- 2009	31-03- 2010	Science Activities Support
Mónica Andreia Correia Baltazar	01-10- 2009	31-03- 2010	Science Management Support
Rita Gameiro Aleixo Pais	01-12- 2009	31-05- 2010	Project Management Support
Rita Pires de Lima Cabral de Brito e Faro	01-10- 2009	31-03- 2010	Science Dissemination Support

# **Additional Comments**

# **Additional Comments**

As reported in 2009, CES faced a huge growing challenge in different areas, which demanded several solutions.

1. The increase of the North-South Library space and facilities, by an improvement

allowed with the support of the University of Coimbra. This rearrangement of the Library, with new public spaces and new archive furnitures, and also with the hiring of a new technician in hal-time dedication provided the necessary tools to attend an increasing number of users.

- 2. The expansion of the North-South Library released two working rooms, that were used to integrate the six new PhD researchers, hired under the Programa Compromisso com a Ciência 2008, and new research assistants (bolseiros de investigação), hired under the framework of new research projects, which started during 2009. These new research rooms were very useful to rearrange the distribution of the research activities, due to the increase in the number and dimension of funded research projects.
- 3. The hiring of a new professional for dissemination activities, related with the CES journal (Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais), as well as with other publications of our research centre. This was necessary, because the former technician left to start new functions in Brussels. This role is crucial to assure the new strategy defined by CES in terms of increasing the visibility and the public impact of our research.
- 4. The hiring of new professional for supporting the activities carried out in the new public space of CES, in Lisbon, was also taken as essential for the enlargement and increasing of CES dissemination activities, such as training courses, seminars, workshops, as well as office space to make reserach activities, such as interviews, focus groups, among others.
- 5. The hiring of two technicians to support the financial and project management activities related with research projects and outreach activities. One of them was hired to replace a former technician that work on the project management support. So, this small increase is related with the increasing activities connected with ending of many projects and the start of a increasing number of new projects (subcontracting, European Union, FCT, etc.).

These changes in CES facilities and human resources' team were made with the aim of having a bigger and quality response to the new challenges implemented by the Board and by the Scientific Council, as defined in the Activities Plan for 2009. Although in the process of internalization of the changes, we can assume that they are contributing for the smooth impact of the increase in: a) the number of researchers; the number of research projects; c) the number of livrary users; d) in the CES current space; e) the opening of a new public space in Lisbon; f) new PhD programmmes, in articulation with other departments of the University of Coimbra.

We are aware of these new challenges, as we are sure that they will contribute for a new step into the achievement of CES' goals.

# **Research Groups**

Reference	Title / Principal Investigator
RG-Centro-50012-3220	Citizenship and Social Policies (Pedro Manuel Teixeira Botelho Hespanha)
RG-Centro-50012-3222	City and Urban Culture (Carlos José Cândido Guerreiro Fortuna)
RG-Centro-50012-3223	Science, Technology and Society (Joao Carlos Freitas Arriscado Nunes)
RG-Centro-50012-3224	Comparative Cultural Studies (Maria Irene Ramalho de Sousa Santos)
RG-Centro-50012-3227	Peace Studies (José Manuel Marques da Silva Pureza)
RG-Centro-50012-3344	Migration Studies (Maria Ioannis Bennis Baganha)
RG-Centro-50012-3345	Labour and Trade Unionism (Elísio Guerreiro do Estanque)
RG-Centro-50012-3641	Governance and Economic Institutions (José Joaquim Dinis Reis)
RG-Centro-50012-3642	Architecture and Urbanism (Jose Antonio Oliveira Bandeirinha)
RG-Centro-50012-3643	Democracy, Multicultural Citizenship and Participation (Maria Paula Guttierrez Meneses)
RG-Centro-50012-3644	State, Law and Administration (António Manuel Carvalho de Casimiro Ferreira)

# **Research Lines**

Reference	Title / Principal Investigator
RL-CJP-LA12-35	Institutions, Regulation and Citizenship (Cecilia MacDowell Santos)
RL-SADG-LA12-36	New Solidarities: Local, National, Global (José Manuel de Oliveira Mendes)
RL-SADG-LA12-37	Sciences, Technologies and the Humanities (Joao Carlos Freitas Arriscado Nunes)
RL-SADG-LA12-38	Cultures and Social Dynamics (Carlos José Cândido Guerreiro Fortuna)

# **Other Activities**

# **Internal Services and Resources**

The team of CES researchers is composed, mainly, by professors and lecturers at Coimbra University, by PhD researchers under contract with CES, by young

researchers with training grants (PhD and Post-doc grants) and project grants (bolseiros). CES promotes, as a strategic aim, the training and integration of young researchers in the area of the social sciences and humanities. The articulation between University teaching staff, full-time researchers and your researchers, within the PhD Programmes and the research projects and activities at CES, has proven to be very fruitful and stimulating, contributing to the development of our institution.

Like in previous years, Coimbra University (UC) authorises its teaching staff to carry out research activities at CES. CES co-organises, with several organic unities of the UC, several PhD programmes, whose students are taught and supervised in part or exclusively by researchers under contract with CES. Within this context, CES makes available and shares with the UC its North-South library. The library's catalogue is integrated in the Millenium information system of the UC and the library's holdings are freely available to the academic public. Consolidation of this partnership with UC, within the context of the new organic structure of the University, resulted in the creation of 2 additional interdisciplinary PhDs, hosted in the Interdisciplinary Research Institute. With the aim of maximising the potential of its exchanges, resource sharing and offer of services, CES has made every effort to consolidate international partnerships with a view to enhancing the appeal of its activities and the areas in which it is involved. In this context, we single out the creation of CES-Latin America (in Brazil) and CES-Aquino de Bragança (in Mozambique, Africa), whose purpose will be to promote the sharing of resources and the transfer of know how.

CES' activities are not dependent on heavy equipment infrastructures. Thus, CES does not possess any equipment that can be shared generally, neither internally nor externally. However, CES has vast experience in sharing human resources. When needing extra resources, CES turns to sharing with other Associate Laboratories and other scientific institutions whenever this is necessary to pursue its goals in the framework of specific projects or activities.

CES shares with the University of Coimbra, the Higher Education institution with which it has a cooperation agreement, software licenses and access to databases. It also shares the resources of its library with other Associate Laboratories, with Higher Education institutions and with the community at large. Internally, CES has a professional management structure and services, comprising its library and IT infrastructures, to provide support for the development of research projects. This structure is shared by the entire CES community.

## **External Services and Resources**

From its inception CES has been developing outreach activities and rendering services to the community and public entities, both at a domestic and an international level. The networks in which CES participates, the expert and evaluation panels on which its researchers sit, the public conferences disseminating information and promoting debate in which its researchers take part, the partnerships in which it is involved, the events it promotes and its researchers' mobility are an indisputable indicator of CES's

involvement. Much of the activity of providing services and support for public policies is conducted through the research groups and the observatories.

In scientific terms, we should highlight the fact that several CES researchers have been appointed as experts to several European Union committees, as well as the partnerships set up with other Portuguese and international centres of excellence. The same is true, at a different level, of CES' involvement in the "Ciência Viva" programme, directed at disseminating science amid young audiences.

The past few years have brought enhanced growth to this activity and to the strategy followed by CES in building connections and setting up differentiated links in the areas and themes which form the core of CES research activities. The internationalisation of its researchers, projects, consultancy services can be illustrated by the technical and scientific services provided by CES to public entities and the community at large.

As stated in last year's report, the Permanent Observatory of Portuguese Justice – OPJ - pursued its activities and developed international networks, e.g. by providing the consultancy needed for the creation of a similar structure in Brazil, supported by the Brazilian Ministry of Justice. During 2009, we observed at CES an increase in the external services provided to different entities, public and private, national and international, resulting from open competitions and from direct contact, in several scientific areas. This can be exemplified by the research activities carried out in collaboration with the National Association of Social Workers, the City Hall of Barcelona, National Agency for Migration, Equality Commission for Work and Employment Relations, General Office for Territory Planning and Urban Development, QREN Observatory, Africa 70 association, Swedish Association of Local Authorities and Regions, National Theatre D. Maria II, Commission for Citizenship and Gender Equality, ANIMAR Portuguese Association for Local Development, Portuguese Institute for Development Aid or Workers' Union - CGTP Intersindical Nacional -, among others. This trend is a clear indicator of the public impact of CES' activities and shows the external recognition of the results of its research activities.

In addition, as a part of its social responsibility, CES has made available logistic and institutional conditions for the development and functioning of a number of civil society organisations.

#### **Networking Actions**

During 2009, CES continued to pursue two of its main aims, the reinforcement of its presence in national and international networks, with special attention to North-South cooperation and the openness to the community in fields related to the Centre's scientific activity. Among the several networks, we can highlight the following collective participations: IMISCOE - International Migration, Integration and Social Cohesion in Europe; METROPOLIS Portugal, a network integrating Metropolis International, a worldwide network involved in migration issues; PRIME - Policies for

Research and Innovation in the Move, a Network of Excellence involving more than 40 international research institutions; ASPEN - Active Social Policies Network, a network related to the development of 'active' European welfare states; Brazil-Portugal Urban Studies Network bringing together eight universities; Rede Europeia Anti-Pobreza Portugal, a national network to discuss issues related to poverty and social exclusion; Expert Group on Gender, Social Inclusion and Employment; European Neuroscience and Society Network, engaged with developments in neuroscience, biopsychiatry, and psychopharmacology; Consejo Latinoamericano de Ciencias Sociales; Council for the Development of Social Science Research in Africa, an organisation with a primary focus on the social sciences; JUSTMEN - Toward a European Curriculum Studiorum on Judicial Studies which includes 35 European partners. Researchers also participate individually in several other networks.

Simultaneously, CES developed an increasing number of active cooperation agreements with different entities, e.g. with: Portuguese Ministry of Defence, State University of Rio de Janeiro, Camões Institute, Belo Horizonte Municipality, Lisbon Municipality, Complutense University of Madrid, National Public Health School and Portuguese Judges Association, Research Institute on Judicial Systems IRSIG, Italian National Council for Research, and University of Bologna.

# **Training Activities**

CES continued to offer a variety of scientific events. Besides seminars, advanced research training and advanced training courses, we highlight the following structured activities:

- a) Annual Cycle of Conferences, organised since 2005, presenting national and international young social scientists.
- b) Doctoral Programmes offered in partnership with the Faculty of Economics and within the context of its close cooperation with the Faculty of Arts and the Faculty of Law. 56 new students were enrolled at CES for these doctoral programmes in 2009, and the Centre had a total of 156 doctoral students. Of the latter, 49 were given grants by FCT. CES also hosted 20 visiting doctoral students. The current Doctoral Programmes are the following: Postcolonialisms and Global Citizenship; Governance, Knowledge, and Innovation Democracy in the 21st Century; Languages, Identities and Globalisation; International Politics and Conflict Resolution; Law, Justice and Citizenship in the 21st Century; Cities and Urban Cultures; Labour Relations, Social Inequalities and Trade Unionism.
- c) Post-doctoral students -34 were supervised by CES researchers, divided in two types: those who spend their entire post-doctoral programme at the Centre; and those that are associated with another research institution and spend only a part of their post-doctoral programmes at CES.

- d) Research training within projects 33 young researchers participated in different projects. Overall there were 45 young researchers associated with CES research projects working at the Centre.
- e) CES Summer School was launched in 2009 and reflects the emphasis on transdisciplinarity and outreach activities. The first three courses, that took place with great success, were the following: Critical Economics Summer School The institutional foundations of the economy: Property, markets and public policy (July 6-9); reNEWed Ways of Doing Politics (July 15-17); and The sex of violence(s) (September 9-12).

# **Outreach/Science and Society**

One of the most prolific areas of activity regards the organization of seminars and conferences and advanced training courses, open to the public. Amongst the events organised by CES, we would like to highlight the Annual Cycles 'Young social Scientists', which have come to make visible national and international research produced by young researchers in a variety of areas. In 2009, 6 seminars included in the IV Annual Cycle were offered and 3 seminars from the V Annual Cycle. Other seminars have continued to include some seminars with a stronger focus on the interaction with local skakeholders over current concerns.

The organisation of Advanced Training Courses has also been important to reach wider publics. Among the training courses organised during the past year, the partnership with the Portuguese Judges Trade Union Association (ASJP) in the organisation of the Justiça XXI Programme has been of particular relevance. During 2009 four courses were organised in the Justiça XXI Programme, on topics such as "The new intervention of administrative justice" or "Health law, Biolaw and Bioethics". The participation in these courses included different actors from the judicial system.

During 2009 CES signed a number of protocols with similar academic institutions, in Portugal, Brazil, Spain and Italy, but also with other stakeholders, such as the Ministry for National Defense, the Regional Cultural Directorate of the Centre, or the Camões Institute. The latter protocol provided a basis for the novel development of online training for a variety of publics. The first course will be dedicated to 'Heritage of Portuguese Influence: Crossing Perspectives'.

Another event of outreach that CES has been organizing regularly has been the celebration of the Science and Technology Week. This year this was celebrated with the seminar Invisible aspects of armed violence, organized exclusively for secondary school students and their teachers. It consisted in the projection of the film "Luto como Mãe" (Grief as a Mother) followed by a debate with researchers from the Peace Studies Research Group and OGIVA - Observatory on Gender and Armed Violence.

This screening follows from the experience, mentioned above, with new formats of

interaction with the local community, through the organisation of exhibitions and film cycles. A number of photographic exhibitions were organised during the past year, including Atmosphere of a Place, a photographic work by Pedro Medeiros on life at CES, ALSUL, with photographies from the North of Africa, INTRO – Exhibition at the Coimbra Regional Prison, and the exhibition Right to Memory and Truth: Dictatorship in Brazil, 1964-1985. Debates were also organised around some movies screened throughout the year, within the Film Cycle 'CES Scenes'.

It is relevant to mention here CES effort to reach other publics with an expansion of its publications outlets, through a new book collection (started at the very end of 2008, but significantly consolidated during 2009), in partnership with Almedina Publishing House. This will allow that more of the projects results will find its ways to new readers.

CES has continued to actively promote community support and civic entrepreneurship, namely through protocols with a number of local civic associations (Pro Urbe – Associação Cívica de Coimbra, Não te Prives, APEB – Associação de Pesquisadores e Estudantes Brasileiros em Coimbra), through hosting and providing logistic support.

# **Organization of International Events**

The strong international character of CES' activities is clearly shown in the list of events organized in the course of 2009. A significant number of international scholars from several fields has visited in 2009, either to take part in conferences and workshops or to give lectures and seminars. The following international conferences, given its dimension and the number of people involved, are selected: "Economics and the Economic" (23-24 January); "Poetry of the Colonial Wars: the onthology of the 'shattered-self" (30 March); "Luso-Brazilian Seminar on Repression and Political Memory" (20-21 April); "Law and the Legitimation of Suffering" (25 May); "Risk and the State in a Globalised World (18-19 June); "II International Cycle African Literatures of Portuguese Language: Literatures of Cape-Verde, Guinea-Bissau and São Tomé and Príncipe" (19-20 June): "Spectacle/City/Theatre: Representations of the City between Spectacle and the Luso-Brazilian Contemporary Theatrical Scene" (1-3 July); "International Colloquium Memory, History and Justice" (15-16 September); "International Colloquium Acesss to Family Law and Justice in Transformation" (27 November). To different degrees the organization of these events resulted from internal cooperation across the various CES research groups.

Mention should also be made of events organized by CES in cooperation with other organizations. Particularly worth mentioning is the Conference "Civil Society and Postcolonialism: a debate on paradigms towards the understanding of Latin America" (4-6 August) which took place at the Federal University of Minas Gerais – Belo Horizonte and was jointly organized with CES - Latin America.

Also worth mentioning is the launching of the CES Summer School which is designed

so as to attract an international audience (3 different courses offered in 2009).

For a full list, see http://www.ces.uc.pt/eventos/passados2009en.php.

#### **International Evaluations**

#### Summary of internal evaluations during 2009

An Evaluation Coordinating Commission built up of the Scientific Director, the President and Vice-President of the Scientific Board and all the coordinators of the Centre research groups produced an extensive internal report based on performance indicators, with the aim of evaluating the scientific productivity of individual researchers and the research groups. One special meeting with all CES researchers was summoned to discuss in depth the scientific output results and to delineate strategies for improvement. Additionally, CES has nominated a permanent External Advisory Committee with the task to evaluate the Centre's activities in the previous year. This External Advisory Committee must visit the Centre, meet with researchers and the Coordinating Commission and make an assessment in loco of CES' level of activity. Its main mission is to issue a report showing the weak and strong points of the Centre, and provide recommendations to improve its overall performance.

The External Advisory Committee integrates the following members:

Chantal Mouffe (Political Theory at the University of Westminster. Centre for the Study of Democracy, United Kingdom);

Ramón Grosfoguel (Chicano Studies at the Department of Ethnic Studies at the University of California, Berkeley);

Teresa Cruz e Silva (Centre for African Studies, University of Eduardo Mondlane, Maputo, Mozambique);

Benjamin Tejerina (Sociology, University of the Basque Country, Spain. Director of the Collective Identity Research Centre).

As scheduled, the members of the External Advisory Committee visited CES in 2009, Profs. Benjamin Tejerina and Teresa Cruz e Silva on 15 September, and Prof. Ramón Grosfoguel on 22 October. Due to personal agenda incompatibilities, Prof Chantal Mouffe couldn't manage to visit the Centre in 2009 and sent a written evaluation of CES' activities.

Profs. Benjamin Tejerina and Teresa Cruz e Silva met with the Commission and presented their evaluations of CES' 2008 activities, stressing the following issues: the limitation of CES' facilities; internationalization strategies; North/South Library;

interdisciplinary activities and post-graduate programmes.

Prof. Ramón Grosfoguel also met with CES' Commission, stressing mainly the challenge of the future strategic orientation of the Centre and the integration of multidisciplinary activities.

# **Future internal Evaluations plan for 2010**

The new statutes of CES, adopted on the 14th April 2009, provide for the existence of two units monitoring the activities of the centre in order to carry out an ongoing assessment of activities undertaken and to produce advice on a regular basis. The Internal Monitoring Unit (UIA) is composed of five CES senior researchers, whereas the External Monitoring Unit is composed of a number of three to six PhD scholars, external to CES, with a minimum of two coming from non-national institutions. Members of the Monitoring Units are appointed by the Scientific Board for a term of three years.

Under the new regulations, UIA was created with the mission to produce the basic information needed to assess the scientific trajectory, to reassess the strategic guidelines and to point out the weaknesses and capitalize on the strengths of CES.

Short term tasks have been set for the UIA: i. to advise the Scientific Board on the Activities Report for 2009, ii. to monitor the implementation of the Action Plan for 2010 and to propose a methodology for the preparation of future annual action plans, iii. to build and analyse indicators and make proposals for action related to the scientific performance of CES as a whole and of its Thematic Areas and Research Groups; and iv. to provide an adequate preparation for the visit of the External Monitoring Unit.

The External Monitoring Unit is built up of the members of the former External Advisory Committee, which were appointed for a new mandate. A forthcoming visit is scheduled for September 2010. A detailed programme of the visit has already been prepared. It includes an opening presentation by the Scientific Director of CES in order to set the stage for future action, some sessions for debating results and working meetings with the Governing Bodies of CES and the coordinators of the research groups.

# **Future Objectives**

#### **Summary of proposed future objectives**

Advancing Research and Training for Excellency. These will continue to be the two major objectives of CES. The portfolio of ongoing research projects speaks for itself.

Three new PhD programs will start in the next academic year. As all the other existing PhD programs, they will be closely linked to the research interests of CES researchers. PhD students and post-doctorate students will be more and more involved in our research and outreach activities.

Networking Disciplines and World Regions. Transdisciplinarity and internationalization will continue to be the two most distinctive features of CES. The year of 2009 saw the creation of CES-Latin America, based in Brazil, and of CES-Africa, based in Mozambique. They are part of CES global network which will be soon enriched by the creation of CES-Asia. The network will be geared to setting up research agendas focusing on European and Non-Europeans conceptions of CES' core topics of study. We are also planning to reinforce CES' ability to attract European students by offering doctoral programmes and Summer courses in English.

Changing Scale. Two major international projects (European Project TOLERACE-The Semantics of tolerance and (anti)-racism in Europe; and Harvard Medical School Programme Evaluating the state of public knowledge on health and health information in Portugal) will lead the way for the involvement of CES in other large scale projects, both within the EU and across continents.

Applying Science and Outreach Activities. The main pillars of CES in this regard will be: Observatories; advanced training courses; "Ciência Viva"; and the recently created CES-Lisboa. CES-Lisboa will develop its activities through partnerships with civil society and international organizations on the following areas: labor and the economy in a post-neoliberal order; democratic innovation, social exclusion and risk management; courts and conflict resolution; memory, social discrimination and intercultural education; the CPLP.

#### **Research Lines**

# **Citizenship and Social Policies**

#### **Group Description**

Title of Research Group: (RG-Centro-50012-3220) Citizenship and Social Policies

**Principal** Pedro Manuel Teixeira Botelho Hespanha

**Investigator:** 

**Main Scientific** 

Sociologia, Antropologia, Demografia e Geografia **Domain:** 

Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da **Group Host** 

**Institution:** Universidade de Coimbra

**Funding, source, dates** Funding, source, dates

"Maternity and paternity costs from the perspective of individuals, employers and the state", 2007-2009, funded by FCT (coord. by V. Ferreira), 8.040 euros.

"Factors Involved in Success and Drop-Out Rates in Higher Education in Portugal: A Comparative Analysis", 2007-2009, funded by POCI 2010, (coord. by J. M. Mendes), 100.168 euros, in partnership with SOCIUS (Tech. Univ. of Lisbon) and CIES (ISCTE-Lisbon).

"PRIO-Regional Plan for Equality of Opportunities", 2008-2009, funded by Regional Government of Azores (coord. by V. Ferreira), Nat. Consultancy, 18.720 euros.

"Social Networks and Mental Health", 2008-2009, funded by CNPq (CPLP) (coord. by P. Hespanha), International Research Project (leader: Univ. Fed. de Pernambuco -Brazil), payment of travel expenses.

"Microenterpreneurship and associationism in developing countries", 2008-2009, funded by CNPq (CPLP), (coord. by P. Hespanha), International Research Project (leader: UNISINOS, Brazil), payment of travel expenses.

#### **Objectives & Achievements**

#### **Objectives**

This Research Group is co-coordinated by Pedro Hespanha and José Manuel Mendes.

Citizenship as a sociological concept is conceived not only as rights and obligations but also as a set of practices that qualify persons as competent members of society. Social citizenship in particular is being challenged by welfare state reforms and the individualization trend, universalism in social policies is being replaced by targeted programmes, the content of citizenship is narrowing in several domains and active citizenship is being undermined by bureaucratic requirements. A thorough analysis of real citizenship as perceived by individuals and groups in different areas of social life is a main goal of NECPS. A particular attention is devoted to welfare state policies enacted in fields like health and disability, social security, housing and combat to poverty and social exclusion.

The thematic areas covered and conceptual tools used by NECPS are very diverse: the role of State and Society in social protection; the welfare-society; changes in family and social networks; organizations of social solidarity and the third sector; solidarity-based economy and other forms of non capitalistic economy; local social movements and local identities; unrest, violence and conflict; public policies and models of psychosocial intervention; sociology of trauma and communities; the new generation of social policies, from social insertion to activation; the European social model and the social regimes of south European member states; social protection regimes in global south; and evaluation of policies on the basis of the citizen's experience.

Far beyond the resident researchers of CES, the NCPS has benefited from the contribution of post-graduate students both from CES and the School of Economics, professionals of public and private institutions in the area of social development, visiting researchers and other regular collaborators.

A group of post-graduated students were invited to develop a theoretical and methodological debate on Solidarity-based Economy inside the WG. A research network ECOSOL/CES was created in early 2009 and since then is organizing regularly seminars for their members, inviting researchers, visiting experiences, and debating the results of their own academic research.

#### **Main Achievements**

Throughout 2009, all the scientific production indicators increased in number and quality.

- research projects and contract research: 3 research projects were concluded during 2009, 4 started working and are still in progress, and 1 new project was approved and will start working in 2010. 2 research contracts with state departments and NGOs started during 2009.
- partial or final findings from research projects and contracts have been published and disseminated through scientific conferences, seminars and talks (about 50 dissemination public initiatives); and research results were set in comparison with

similar research projects giving rise to national or international networks;

- public and private non-profit organizations (both national and international) were involved in the research, either as promoters of projects or as sources of information and they were interested parties in the research results;
- several research projects hosted post-graduated students who prepared their thesis in topics related to the project's themes (16 MA thesis were concluded); a number of students improved their qualifications as research assistants and a number of the later carried onto the professional path to coordination positions while others followed the research path;
- a large number of professionals has attended seminars and conferences organized by the NECPS:
- members of the NECPS participated in advanced training courses have been offered to professionals and students (JMM in CES Summer Course "Renewed Ways of Doing Politics"; MS in "Social Projects Evaluation", CESTAS and University of Bologna);
- the researchers in the group have wide-ranging international links which will be described in the internationalization activities of the research group.
- an editorial series entitled "Social Policy" has been initiated under CES/Almedina Editorial line. The reference of the first published volume is the following: "Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia" [International Dictionary of Alternative Economy]. Coimbra: Almedina/CES.
- a permanent unit of public policy evaluation has been created in collaboration with the NETSind Núcleo de Estudos do Trabalho e Sindicalismo which allows for a better external provision of specialized services and for the better use of the accumulated experience and expertise in public policy evaluation.

#### **Group Productivity**

#### **Publications in peer review Journals**

Dornelles, Denise F. (2009) "Análisis por contraste de programas de Transferencia condicionada para la lucha contra la pobreza en Brasil y Portugal". Portularia (Huelva), v. IX, 59-74.

Ferreira, Sílvia (2009), "A invenção estratégica do terceiro sector como estrutura de observação mútua: uma abordagem histórico-conceptual" [The strategical invention of the Third Sector: an historical and conceptual approach], Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, 83:169-192.

Ferreira, Virgínia (2009), "Employment Policies from a Gender Equality Perspective in

Europe: developments and challenges", Options Méditerranéennes, n.º 87, 33-44.

Hespanha, Pedro (2009), "Da expansão dos mercados à metamorfose das economias populares" [From the market expansion to the metamorphose of popular enonomies]. Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, nº 84: 49-64.

Hespanha, Pedro (2009), "Espaço virtual" [Virtual space]. Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, nº 84:197-202.

Hespanha, Pedro; Namorado, Rui (2009), "Os desafios da economia solidária" [The challenges of the solidarity based economy]. Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, nº 84: 3-5.

Mendes, José Manuel (2009), "Social Vulnerability Indexes as Planning Tools: Beyond the Preparedness Paradigm", Journal of Risk Research, Issue 1, 43-58.

Portugal, Sílvia (2009), "What Makes Social Networks Move? An Analysis of Norms and Ties", RCCS Annual Review, 1:1-23.

#### **Other publications International**

Cattani, A. David; Laville, Jean-Louis; Gaiger, Luiz Inácio; Hespanha, Pedro (orgs.) (2009), Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Almedina.

Dornelles, Denise F. (2009) "Análisis por contraste de Programas de Transferencia Condicionada para la lucha contra la pobreza en Brasil y Portugal". In: VIII Conferencia Iberoamericana sobre Familias y II Conferencia Nacional sobre Familias, 2009, Buenos Aires.

Ferreira, Sílvia (2009), "Governação Local [Local Governance]", in António Cattani, Luis Inácio Gaiger, Pedro Hespanha, Jean Louis Laville (org.) (org.), Dicionário Internacional da Outra. Coimbra: Almedina, 213-218.

Ferreira, Sílvia (2009), "Terceiro Sector [Third Sector]", in António Cattani, Luis Inácio Gaiger, Pedro Hespanha, Jean Louis Laville (org.), Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Almedina, 322-327.

Ferreira, Virgínia (2009), "The Socialization of Motherhood Costs – Looking for New Strategies", in Ilze Trapenciere, Ene Margit Tiit, Jan Trost (org.), Family on the Crossroads. Riga: University of Latvia, Institute of Philosophy, 72-83.

Hespanha, Pedro (2009), "Microempreendedurismo", in A. Cattani; J.L. Coraggio; J.L-Laville (org.), Diccionario de la Otra Economía. Buenos Aires: Universidad Nacional de General Sarmiento, 259-267.

Hespanha, Pedro; Silvia Portugal (2009), "Sociedad Providencia", in A. Cattani, J.-L. Coraggio e J.-L. Laville (org.), Diccionario de la Otra Economía. Buenos Aires:

Universidad Nacional de General Sarmiento, 337-344.

Mendes, José Manuel; Alexandre Tavares (2009), "Building Resilience to Natural Hazards. Practices and Policies on Governance and Mitigation in the Central Region of Portugal", in Sebastian Martorell, C. Guedes Soares and Julie Barnett (org.), Safety, Reliability and Risk Analysis. Vol. 2, Theory, Methods and Applications.. Leiden: CRC Press/Balkema, 1577-1584.

Portugal, Sílvia; Hespanha, Pedro (2009), "Sociedade-Providência", in Antonio David Cattani; Jean-Louis-Laville; Luiz Inácio Gaiger; Pedro Hespanha (org.), Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Almedina, 299-304.

Serapioni, Mauro (2009), "Diseguaglianze e salute in Brasile. L'impatto delle riforme del governo Lula", in Micol Bronzini (org.), Sistemi sanitari e politiche contro le disuguaglianze di salute. Milão: Angeli Editore, 181-190.

Serapioni, Mauro (2009), "Health Systems. Brazil", in Elisabetta Bertotti e Serena Foresi (org.), Global Health and Development Assistance Rights, Ideologies and Deceit. Pisa: Edizioni ETS, 276-283.

# Other publications National

Araújo, Pedro (2009) critical review on Yannick Barthe (2006), Le Pouvoir d'Indécision. La mise en politique des déchets nucléaires., Paris: Éditions Economica, 239, in Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais.

Costa, Hermes; Araújo, Pedro (2009), As Vozes do Trabalho nas Multinacionais: O impacto dos Conselhos de Empresa Europeus em Portugal. Coimbra: Almedina - CES.

Hespanha, Pedro (2009), "Os perfis atípicos dos nossos microempreendedores", in F. Oliveira Baptista, Rui Jacinto e Teresa Mendes (org.), Os Territórios de Baixa Densidade em Tempos de Mudança. Proença-a-Nova: Centro de Ciência Viva, 147-163.

Lopes, Mónica (2009), "O papel das organizações do terceiro sector na promoção da igualdade entre mulheres e homem – Que efectividade?", Revista Vez e Voz , 93, 37-49.

Mendes, José Manuel (2009), "O poder local: afirmação ou atrofiamento?", in Artur Teodoro de Matos, Avelino de Freitas de Meneses e José Guilherme Reis Leite (org.), História dos Açores. Do descobrimento ao Séc. XX, Volume II (481-512) Angra do Heroísmo: Instituto Açoriano de Cultura.

Mendes, José Manuel; Alexandre Tavares; Susana Freiria; Lúcio Cunha (2009), "Vulnerabilidade Social aos riscos naturais e tecnológicos em Portugal", in C. Guedes Soares, C. Jacinto, A. P. Teixeira and P. Antão (org.), Riscos Industriais e Emergentes,

Volume 1. Lisboa: Edições Salamandra, 67-84.

Mendes, José Manuel (2009), "'Defeat happens only to those who stop fighting': Protest and the Democratic State in Portugal", RCCS Annual Review, 0: 1-21.

Serapioni, Mauro (2009), "Avaliação da qualidade em saúde. Reflexões teóricometodológicas para uma abordagem multidimensional", Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, 85, 65-82.

# Master and Ph.D. thesis completed PhD Thesis:

Mariz, Maria Elisa de Almeida. "Beyond 60s: neighbours in Coimbra and São Paulo compared", by Pontifícia Universidade Católica de São Paulo (Brazil) - co-supervised by Pedro Hespanha (PH)

Master Thesis (at the School of Economics – University of Coimbra, except where is stated differently)

Supervised by Pedro Hespanha

Almeida, Maria de Fátima. "Training for which labour market? Dilemmas in a developing Country.

Costa, Hector. "The Informal Economy of African Portuguese Speaking Students".

Cristiana, Almeida. "Domestic Violence: Which Policy".

Gomes, Dora. "The Lived Worlds of Health Voluntary Persons".

Lopes, Ana. "Gender Inequalities in Local Governments".

Nogueira, Cláudia. "Women in business. On the emancipatory role of women's enterpreneurship".

Pacheco, Vanda. "Active Social Inclusion and Minimum Income Schemes".

Rodrigues, Bárbara. "Entering in Mental Health Institutions".

Silva, José. "Solidarity based Economy and the Market", School of Economics of Universidade Lusíada de Lisboa.

Silva, Sandra. "Solidarity based Economy and the Solidarity", School of Economics of Universidade Lusíada de Lisboa.

Silva, Sofia. "Active Ageing, life trajectories and retirement strategies". Teixeira, Ana. "Women's unemployment".

Vieira, Raluca. "Leaving or stay? The Expectations of Young People and the Design of Youth Policies".

Supervised by José Manuel Mendes

Antunes, Catarina. "Physical and Social Dynamics and Forest Fire Risk in the Municipality of Arganil".

Supervised by Virginia Ferreira

Brandão, Sônia Maria Pires. Master Project report: "Child labour".

Lopes, Mónica. "Employment and Parental Leave".

Louro, Catarina. "Domestic Violence and Labour precariousness".

Santos, Marta Almeida. Master stage report: "Insertion Enterprises".

Supervised by Sílvia Portugal

Simões, Tânia. Stage report title: "Four months enprisoned".

#### Patents/propotypes

Not applicable.

#### **Organization of conferences**

Hespanha, Pedro e Grupo ECOSOL/CES, Members of the organizing committee of the Panel "The production of critical knowledge in the field of Solidarity based Economy" in the World Social Forum. Belém (Brazil), 29 January to 1 February.

Ferreira, Sílvia, Member of the organizing committee of the Working Group "Social management and evaluation in the non-state public space: reproduction of values verification of results", in the "Xth Luso-Afro-Brazilian Congress of Social Sciences", Braga, 04 to 06 February.

Ferreira, Virgínia, Member of the Scientific Committee of the International Conference on Women and Knowledge: Networks and Resources, promoted by Portuguese Asoociation of Women's Studies, Lisbon, University of Lisboa, 22 to 23 May.

Ferreira, Virgínia, Member of the Scientific Committee of the XIII National Meeting of the Portuguese Association of Sociology of Industry, Organizations and Labour "Living the Work – Strategies and Policies of Positive Mobility", Lisboa, Gulbenkien

Foundation, 12 to 33 May.

Portugal, Sílvia, Member of the organizing committee of the Working Group "Reforms in the Mental Health System: the Portuguese and the Brazilian experiences compared" at the "Xth Luso-Afro-Brazilian Congress of Social Sciences", Braga, 04 to 06 February.

Mendes, José Manuel; Araújo, Pedro, Members of the organizing committee of the Conference "The Risk and the State in a Globlized World", Coimbra, 18 to 19 June.

Mendes, José Manuel, Member of the organizing committee of the conference "Trauma Risks: Dilemmas and Answers", promoted by the Risk Observatory and TENTS (The European Network for Traumatic Stress), Coimbra, 30 April.

Hespanha, Pedro; Ferreira, Sílvia, Members of the scientific committee of the "Social Inclusion and Employment" promoted by Rede Europeia Anti-Pobreza/Portugal, Porto, 23 November.

Hespanha, Pedro; Portugal, Sílvia; Nogueira, Cláudia, Members of the organizing committee of the "Monthly Seminars on Citizenship and Mental Health".

#### **Industry contract research**

Not applicable.

#### Internationalization

International Research projects: two projects with Research Units in Brazil (Univ. Fed. de Pernambuco and UNISINOS), Angola (Univ. Agostinho Neto) and Mozambique (Instituto Cruzeiro do Sul) on "Social networks and mental health" and "Microenterpreunership and Associativism in Peripheral Countries.

Participation in international research networks: "Active Social Policies European Network" (ASPEN); "Centro Internacional de Investigación e Información sobre la Economía Pública, Social y Cooperativa" (CIRIEC); "International Society for Third Sector Research" (ISTR); "Civil Society and New Forms of Governance in Europe" (CINEFOGO)

Participation in experts' networks: Expert Group on "Gender and Employment" funded by EU; Expert Group in Rede Europeia Anti-Pobreza; External Evaluation Group for the Ministry of Science in Argentina and EU Expert Group Evaluation in the Sixth FP. Priority 7: "Citizens and Governance in a knowledge based society".

Participation in boards of scientific journals: Estudos de Direito Cooperativo e Cidadania (Fac. Direito da Univ. Federal do Paraná, Brazil); Revista de Estudios Cooperativos (Univ. Complutense de Madrid e Asociación de Estudios Cooperativos); Lien Social et Politiques (Montréal); Sociologias (Univ. Fed. Rio Grande do Sul, Brazil); Cahiers du Genre (Paris).

Organisation of and participation in international conferences: Some researchers of NECPS participated in the organization or presented papers to important international conferences like the "Xth Luso-Afro-Brazilian Congress of Social Sciences" and the "European Sociological Association Conference".

Foreign Post-doctoral and PhD students for short-term research. Like in previous years, the presence of two Post-doctoral Brazilian researchers has been very enriching and consolidated important networks for future scientific cooperation. During the same period five Brazilian PhD students have stayed in the NECPS, attended seminars and followed a predefined research project.

# Government/Organization contract research

Evaluation of the Impact of Financial and Social Disability Costs, 2009-2010, funded by Instituto Nacional de Reabilitação (coordinated by Sílvia Portugal), 41,500.00 Euros.

Gender equality as a citizenship practice, 2009-2010, funded by ANIMAR – Associação Portuguesa para o Desenvolvimento Local, (coordinated by Virgínia Ferreira e Mónica Lopes), 33,333.00 Euros.

Perceptions on domestic violence on the Beira Baixa, 2010, funded by ADIBB – Association of Integrated Development of Beira Baixa (coordinated by Paulo Peixoto), 15,838.00 euros.

#### **Future Research**

#### **Objectives**

There are three general strategies orienting future work: consolidating existing research and strengthening research capacity; developing new research areas and infrastructure; reinforcing international relations. The group will consolidate research areas where the results prove to be more relevant for its diverse publics – researchers and academics, public sector and non-profit sector bodies, practitioners and frontline organisations, policy makers, individuals and groups of citizens and the general public. That includes contracted and autonomous research on inequalities, public policy evaluation and governance models. The team has been reinforced with a new PhD full-time researcher but additional human and material resources are still needed.

Since 2009 the group is orienting its action to those emergent new themes arising from the group's interests and expertise, as well to the new policy and societal trends,

mentioned in the previous report: a) issues and/or groups gaining political and social relevance in face of the new social, economic and environmental risks, such as disability, minorities and rural communities; b) subjectivities and the living experience of individuals and groups affected by new risks, societal change and welfare cuts (vg. physical or mental disability, illness, psychological trauma, serious injury, ageing); c) new forms of social mobilization and collective action through collaborative support to citizen's groups and organisations; d) reconfigurations in the borders between state, family, civil society and the economy in social welfare, citizenship and social policy, expressed in research topics such as strategic public-private partnerships, gender mainstreaming and the governance of social services; e) worldwide social innovations and forms of solidarity, such as social networks, social entrepreneurship and organisational forms of social and solidarity economy.

In face of the increasing demand and interest on research partnerships and mutual learning, a third strategic area is the reinforcement of internationalisation, oriented to three main geographical and thematic areas: the European Union and its member countries, particularly in public policy, welfare, governance and the impacts of the EU process; Brazil and Latin America, looking for contexts which render riches comparisons with the Portuguese society; and the Portuguese speaking African countries are in high demand for able partners, in the development of social sciences in research and education. This orientation allows for the consolidation of the existing expertise in comparative research, functions as a node of scientific exchanges between the three regions and welcomes foreign postgraduate students with a huge potential for disseminating the research results.

The intention of creating a PhD programme on citizenship and social policies is still present but the lack of human resources has forced the NECS to postpone its implementation.

# Funding, source, dates

Risk, social vulnerability and planning strategies: an integrated approach, 2007-2010, funded by FCT (coordinated by José Manuel Mendes), National Research Project, 189,011.00 euros

De-institutionalisation of mental patients, 2007-2010, funded by FCT (coordinated by Pedro Hespanha), National Research Project, 70,263.00 euros

Risk, citizenship and the role of the State in a globalised world, 2007-2010, funded by FCT (coordinated by José Manuel Mendes), National Research Project, 82,828.00 euros

EGGE- Network of Experts in the Fields of Employment and Gender Equality, 2008-2010, funded by Fondazione Giacomo Brodolini (coordinated by Virginia Ferreira), International Consultancy, 27,950.00 euros

From spinal cord injury to social inclusion: disability as a personal and socio-political

challenge, 2010-2011 funded by FCT (coordinated by Pedro Hespanha), National Research Project, 99,353.00 euros.

Evaluation of the Impact of Financial and Social Disability Costs, 2009-2010, funded by Instituto Nacional de Reabilitação (coordinated by Sílvia Portugal), 41,500.00 Euros.

Gender equality as a citizenship practice, 2009-2010, funded by ANIMAR – Associação Portuguesa para o Desenvolvimento Local, (coordinated by Virgínia Ferreira e Mónica Lopes), 33,333.00 Euros.

Perceptions on domestic violence on the Beira Baixa, 2010, funded by ADIBB – Association of Integrated Development of Beira Baixa (coordinated by Paulo Peixoto), 15,838.00 euros.

# **City and Urban Culture**

**Group Description** 

**Title of Research** (RG-Centro-50012-3222)

City and Urban Culture **Group:** 

**Principal** 

Carlos José Cândido Guerreiro Fortuna **Investigator:** 

**Main Scientific** 

Sociologia, Antropologia, Demografia e Geografia Domain:

**Group Host** Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da

**Institution:** Universidade de Coimbra

Funding, source, dates Funding, source, dates

"Cities, Heritage and Cultural Consumption in a Compared Perspective Between Portugal and Brazil" (research project, in cooperation with Portuguese and Brazilian partners, supported by Brazilian CNPq; 2006-2009.

"Tourist Flows in Coimbra's Historical Centre", funded by Tourism Qualification Programme (Programa de Intervenções para a Qualificação do Turismo – PIQTUR), 128.992 euros, 2006-2009.

### **Objectives & Achievements**

#### **Objectives**

This Research Group is coordinated by Carlos Fortuna.

The Research Group is firmly involved in the consolidation of research addressing the most recent issues and dynamics related to cities and urban cultures as they play a key role in the modernization of societies. In Portugal, as throughout the world, questions relating to the emergence of a renewed urban culture or to forms of resistance and assertion of localized cultural expressions call for the evaluation of the parameters influencing the forms of organization of social life. As far as the Research Group research is concerned, such evaluation is largely carried out in comparison with non-European experiences. Comparison with Brazilian models of interpretation of today's urban and cultural dynamics is one case, made possible through the network on comparative urban studies which include researchers of six different Brazilian universities.

The Research Group has set up the following objectives:

- to pursue innovative sociological research on changing urban cultures, urban regeneration and city modernization processes and the cultural, heritage and symbolic dimensions of urban planning processes, in Portuguese cities;
- to build up a comparative analyses of those processes at an international scale,

privileging the comparison with urban realities in the Ibero-American space;

- to collaborate with public institutions and civil society actors in the development of projects that may help local institutions to consolidate their urban and cultural planning;
- to set up master and doctoral programmes on the topics of city modernization, urban cultures and cultural planning, so as to improve local agents' knowledge and ability to act in those fields.

#### **Main Achievements**

- 1) The Research Group welcomes a new full-time researcher Nancy Duxbury. Her work is reinforcing the RG's intervention on issues of cultural planning and sustainability or the debate on the relationships between urban communities and creativity in small and medium-size cities. Through this work, she is helping to build new international research linkages for both the RG and CES as a whole.
- 2) The conclusion of the international project in cooperation with Brazilian partners, involving 8 universities and research centres (2 in Portugal and 6 in Brazil). This project, co-leaded by the Research Group at CES and the Federal University of Sergipe (Brazil), resulted into a large amount of comparative work, allowing for the development of new theoretical and analytical frameworks for the study of urban cultures. Regarding the network outcomes a first book just came out in 2009 (Plural of Cities, published by Editorial Almedina). A second book is being prepared to be published late 2010 in Brazil and Portugal simultaneously.
- 3) The elaboration of the final report of the project "Tourist Flows in Coimbra's Historical Centre", financed by National Board for Tourism. This project also envisaged the needs for information and planning tools of the Group for the Nomination of Coimbra Patrimony as UNESCO World Heritage, of the University of Coimbra. The final report is to be published in book form in 2010.
- 4) The Research Group participates in the Master and co-organises the Doctoral Programmes on Cities and Urban Cultures, in cooperation between CES and the Faculty of Economics of the University of Coimbra. The first MA theses have already been completed, as shown on #3 below.
- 5) The conclusion of one PhD thesis, carried out in close connection with the research carried out within the Research Group.

# **Group Productivity**

# **Publications in peer review Journals**

Abreu, Paula, "A indústria fonográfica e o mercado da música gravada - histórias de

um longo desentendimento", Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, 85, 105-129.

Alves da Silva, Regina Helena, "Cartografias Urbanas: construindo uma metodologia de apreensão dos usos e apropriações dos espaços da cidade", Cadernos PPGAU/UFBA, n.º especial, 83-100.

Alves da Silva, Regina Helena, "Pra não morrer... é só amarrar o tempo no poste: memória e patrimônio", Historia & Perspectiva, 11-27.

Fortuna, Carlos, "La ciudad de los sonidos: Una heurística de la sensibilidade en los paisages urbanos contemporáneos". Cuadernos de Antropologia Social, nº 30, Dec, 39-58.

Peixoto, Paulo, "A sociedade SPAM. Ainda é possível resgatar a Internet em benefício do conhecimento?", Kriativ Tech , 2, 71-76.

Peixoto, Paulo; P. Leite, Rogério, "Políticas urbanas de patrimonialização e contrarevanchismo: o Recife Antigo e a Zona Histórica da Cidade do Porto", Cadernos Metrópole, 21, 93-104.

Santos, Myrian Sepúlveda, "Carnaval e política" in Leonardo Avritzer & allii (org.), Corrupção: Ensaios e Críticas . Belo Horizonte: Ed. UFMG.

#### **Other publications International**

Almeida JR, José Simões, "Entre o visível e o não visível" in VI Colóquio Internacional de Etnocenologia, Belo Horizonte. VI Colóquio Internacional de Etnocenologia.

Almeida JR, José Simões, "O lugar teatral como unidade cultural (meme)" in V Reunião Científica da ABRACE, São Paulo: Anais da V Reunião Científica da ABRACE.

Almeida JR, José Simões, "Alice" in Ivam Cabral (org.). Dramamix 2007 – Colecção Primeira Obras, 10. São Paulo: Imprensa Oficial do Estado de São Paulo, V. 10, 212-221.

Almeida JR, José Simões, "O cotidiano dos outros salta aos olhos", Cruzeiro do Sul, 4 - 4.

Alves da Silva, Regina H. (org.), A Cidade e seus Afetos. Belo Horizonte: Autentica Editora.

Alves da Silva, Regina H.; Franco, Juliana R., "Collaborative Mapping Projects" in

Suzete Venturelli (org.), Arte e Tecnologia. Brasilia: UNB.

Alves da Silva, Regina H.; Junior, Wagner M., "Caminhada Digital" in Caroline Q.Santos (org.), Inclusão digital e cidadania. Belo Horizonte: Trilha Comunicação.

Alves da Silva, Regina H.; Junior, Wagner M., "Software Livre e Inclusão Digital" in Caroline Q. Santos (org.), Inclusão digital e cidadania. Belo Horizonte: Trilha Comunicação.

Bezerra, Roselane G., O bairro Praia de Iracema entre o "adeus" e a "boemia". Fortaleza: LEO.

Duxbury, Nancy, "Roundtable on Defining Quality of Life & Cultural Indicators For Small Cities" in A. Gagnon, W.F. Garrett-Petts, & J. Hoffman (orgs.), The Last Best West. Vancouver: New Star Books & Textual Studies in Canada.

Duxbury, Nancy; Campbell, Heather, "Developing and Revitalizing Rural Communities through Arts and Culture", Municipal World.

Duxbury, Nancy; Murray, Catherine, "Creative Spaces" in Y. R. Isar & H. Anheier (orgs.), Cultural Expression, Creativity and Innovation. London: Sage.

Duxbury, Nancy; Schultz, E.; Stewart, S.; Johnson, Ch., "Culture and Sustainable Development – A Global Perspective on our Future" in G. Hume (org.), Cultural Planning for Creative Communities. Toronto: Municipal World.

Ferreira, Claudino, "Intermediários culturais e cidade", in Carlos Fortuna e Rogério P. Leite (org.), Plural de cidade:novos léxicos urbanos. Coimbra: Almedina.

Ferreira, Claudino, "Intermediários culturais e culturas urbanas: novos e velhos protagonistas da formação dos ambientes culturais urbanos", in Sérgio I. Braga (org.), Culturas Populares em Meio Urbano. Manaus: Universidade Federal do Amazonas.

Fortuna, Carlos, "Cidade e Urbanidade", in C. Fortuna e Rogério P. Leite (orgs.), Plural de Cidade: Novos Léxicos Urbanos. Coimbra: Almedina, 83-97.

Fortuna, Carlos e Leite, Rogério P. (org.), Plural de cidade:novos léxicos urbanos. Coimbra: Almedina.

Mendonça, Luciana, "Sonoridades e cidades", in C.Fortuna e Rogério P. Leite (orgs.). Plural de cidade: novos léxicos urbanos. Coimbra, Almedina.

Peixoto, Paulo, "Requalificação urbana", in C. Fortuna e Rogério Proença Leite (orgs.), Plural de cidade: novos léxicos urbanos. Coimbra: Almedina, 41-52.

Santos, Myrian Sepúlveda, Os Porões da República. Rio de Janeiro: Ed. Garamond. Other publications National

Almeida JR, José Simões (2009), "Apontamentos acerca da visibilidade dos lugares teatrais na cidade de São Paulo" in X Congresso Luso Afro Brasileiro de Ciências Sociais: Sociedades desiguais e paradigmas em confronto, Braga: Universidade do Minho, 28-28.

Almeida JR, José Simões (2009), "The theatre space and the interference on the scene: Notes of the creation of the Teatro Oficina" in FIRT -IRFT 2009 Silent Voices Forbidden Lives, Lisboa: impriLuz Grafica Ltda., 73-74.

Casaleiro, Paula (2009), "As paisagens sonoras dos Centros Históricos de Coimbra e do Porto: um exercício de escuta" in APS (org.), Actas do VI Congresso Português de Sociologia. Mundos Sociais: Saberes e Práticas. Lisboa: APS.

Correia, André Brito (2009), "Expressão a fixar: um corpo em passagem", O Álbum/The Album (catálogo da criação artística interdisciplinar com o mesmo nome com direcção artística de Helena Botto, co-produzida por Projecto Transparências e PerFormas), 2 e 3.

Correia, André Brito (2009), "To bear in mind: a body in passing", O Álbum/The Album (catálogo bilíngue da criação artística interdisciplinar homónima com direcção artística de Helena Botto, co-produzida por Projecto Transparências e PerFormas), 4 e 5.

Fortuna, Carlos "Novos trilhos para a cultura: Como não falar de cidade?" in, Santos, Maria de Lourdes Lima e Pais, José Machado (orgs.), Novos Trilhos Culturais: Práticas e Políticas. Lisboa, ICS, 273-280.

Gomes, Carina, "A construção social de um destino turístico: Coimbra, cidade e imaginário" in APS (org.), Actas do VI Congresso Português de Sociologia. Mundos Sociais: Saberes e Práticas Lisboa: APS.

Peixoto, Paulo; Estanque, Elísio; Roseta, Helena; Bateira, Jorge; Martins, Jorge; David, Nuno; Bingre, Pedro; Portugal, Teresa (orgs.), Ideias para grandes decisões. Lisboa: Campo da Comunicação.

#### Master and Ph.D. thesis completed

Alves, Cláudia. Novas Oportunidades – O pólo de Coimbra da Inovinter [New Opportunities - The Coimbra's Inovinter centre]. (MA thesis - School of Economics - University of Coimbra. Supervisor: Paulo Peixoto).

Casaleiro, Paula. Cidades do Conhecimento: oportunidades para as cidades de média dimensão (o caso de Coimbra (Knowledge Cities: Challenges for medium-size cities. The case of Coimbra). (MA thesis - School of Economics - University of Coimbra.

Supervisor: Carlos Fortuna).

Esteves, Denise. Estragar a mão – Práticas culturais híbridas no campo das artes e ofícios [Spoiling the hand - hybrid cultural practices in arts and crafts]. (MA thesis - School of Economics - University of Coimbra. Supervisor: Paulo Peixoto).

Ferreira, Andreia. Evolução e caracterização dos processos de adopção no Centro Distrital de Coimbra nos últimos dez anos [Development and characterization of the processes of adoption in Coimbra's Central District in the last ten years]. (MA thesis - School of Economics - University of Coimbra. Supervisor: Paulo Peixoto).

Marques, Ricardo. A construção da imagem de Coimbra no contexto das hierarquias urbanas das cidades portuguesas [The construction of Coimbra's image in the Portuguese urban hierarchies context]. (MA thesis - School of Economics - University of Coimbra. Supervisor: Paulo Peixoto).

Quintela, Pedro. Mediação cultural, experimentação e inovação: o caso do serviço educativo da Casa da Música / Cultural mediations and innovation: a study on the Casa da Música's experience. (MA thesis - School of Economics - University of Coimbra. Supervisor: Claudino Ferreira).

Roxo, Mariana. Realojamento: práticas e políticas de habitação no município de Coimbra / Housing policies in the municipality of Coimbra. (MA thesis - School of Economics - University of Coimbra. Supervisor: Claudino Ferreira).

Silva, Sílvia. A recepção dos públicos da cultura: uma abordagem sobre os modos de recepção dos públicos da Escola da Noite / Audiences for the arts and cultural reception: the audiences of the theatre company Escola da Noite. (MA thesis - School of Economics - University of Coimbra. Supervisor: Claudino Ferreira).

# Patents/propotypes

Not applicable

# **Organization of conferences**

Fortuna, Carlos (2009), Member of the organizing committee of the seminar "Espectáculo, Teatro e Cidade", Coimbra, 01 to 03 July (with Simões, José; J. Cora, Amélia).

Silva, Regina Helena Alves (2009), Member of the organizing committee of the "CARTO COREO CORPO e outras GRAFIAS URBANAS: apreensão a cidade contemporânea", Salvador - Brasil, 22 to 23 June (with Berenstein, Paola Jacques).

Silva, Regina Helena Alves (2009), Organization of Workshop Cartografias Urbanas

Sensoriais, Salvador - Brasil, 01 to 08 June.

## **Industry contract research**

Not applicable

#### Internationalization

During 2009 the Group focused continued and expanded the cooperation with Brazilian and Latin American partners, namely on comparative research and postgraduate teaching exchange programmes.

The main achievement has been the consolidation of the Brazil-Portugal Network on Urban Studies. The network is leaded by CES and NPPCS (Federal University of Sergipe, Brazil) and involves six other universities and research institutes in both countries (Oporto Univ.; USP - S. Paulo Univ.; Federal Univ. of Campinas; PUC - Catholic Univ. of S. Paulo; Fed. Univ. of Amazonas - Manaus; Federal University of Ceará - Fortaleza).

Since 2006, the network has obtained funds to develop 4 articulated projects, 3 of which devoted to joint and comparative research and 1 to exchange and cooperation in post-graduate programmes. 4 international conferences were organized, gathering also researchers from Spain, Mexico and Argentina. 2 books will result from this cooperation: the first was published in 2009 and the second will be published in late 2010. The network is now in the process of becoming the Ibero-American Network on Urban Studies.

Furthermore, the RG has deepened the cooperation with Brazilian universities and research groups, hosting several post-doc researchers.

In parallel, as mentioned in 2009 report, the RG maintains links with partners in Europe and North America, regarding both research and postgraduate education. Among these activities, 2 collaborative actions are to be stressed: 1) the cooperation with École des Hautes Études en Sciences Sociales (Paris, France), where a team member was concluding his Ph.D. on theatre and urban cultures; 2) the cooperation with the Department of Urban Studies and Planning - Massachusetts Institute of Technology (Cambridge, MA, EUA), hosting institution of one of the affiliated members of the Research Group during the preparation of her Ph.D. dissertation and a partner in the development of new projects on urban cultures and citizenship.

Government/Organization contract research

The RG has launched the project Públicos do Teatro Nacional de D. Maria II (The audiences of TNDM – The National Theatre). The project is a research contract between CES and Teatro Nacional de D. Maria II, with a funding of  $\leqslant$  10.800 and will be concluded by the end of 2010.

#### **Future Research**

#### **Objectives**

RG future research is to be carried out on the various dimensions of the just reported urban issues.

A major research project has been submitted for FCT's financial support on Guimarães: European Capital of Culture-2012. The project is to be carried out along the coming 3 years, aiming at disclosing the extent to which the event will renew local culture and generate a sustained city renovation process, including its promotion as a tourist destination.

A second research project is coordinated by researchers from the Minho University (Braga) and presented to the URBAN-NET. Two members of the RG (N. Duxbury and C. Fortuna) are in charge of the cultural dimension of a larger project on strategies for "greening" the cities. The project title is Towards Climate Neutral Cities: Planning and Promoting Culturally Responsive Sustainable Mobility (CLIN-CITIES).

Other research projects submitted for funding and involving the cooperation between RG members, other CES researchers and partner institutions are:

- "Cultural Planning Strategies in Complex Urban Regions: The Case of the Lisbon Metropolitan Area"; proposal submitted to FCT, involving N. Duxbury as Principal Investigator, J. M. Mateus (CES), and C. Vargas (UNL).
- "Building International Research Linkages on Culture and Creativity in Small Cities"; proposal submitted to the International Research Linkages program c/o the Embassy of Canada in Portugal. Collaboration with Thompson Rivers University, Canada (with follow-up grants from SSHRC planned).
- "Culture in Sustainable Communities: Improving the Integration of Culture in Community Sustainability Policy and Planning in Canada and Europe"; proposal submitted to the Canada-Europe Award program c/o the Embassy of Canada in Portugal, involving N. Duxbury as Principal Investigator, J. M. Mateus (CES), and M.S. Jeannotte and C. Andrew (Centre on Governance, University of Ottawa, Canada).

The RG submitted also 3 additional research projects for FCT's financial support by the beginning of 2009. Those projects, however, were not selected for funding.

From a medium and long term perspective, the RG maintains as overall objectives:

- a) to further cooperation with public institutions responsible for cultural and urban planning;
- b) to develop new lines of enquiry, namely on: processes of urbanism and social segregation; African diaspora and the Portuguese city; spatialization of minority cultures in urban settings; new agendas for the "creative cities"; cultural citizenship, participation and governance in the multicultural city; redefinition of the cultural sector in face of globalization; re-territorialization and the new political emphasis on the

creative sector.

- c) to enlarge the cooperation within the Brazil-Portugal Network on Urban Studies, involving new partners from Portugal, Brazil, Spain, Mexico, Argentina and other Latin-American countries.
- d) to improve international cooperation for research and teaching, namely at the European and north American levels.

Funding, source, dates

Current projects:

- "Cities, Heritage and Cultural Consumption in a Compared Perspective Between Portugal and Brazil" (supported by CNPq; 2006-2011; resources managed by Brazilian partners).
- "The Audiences of the National Theatre at Lisbon" (funded by TNDM II for 2009-2010: 10.800 €).

Projects pending for approval:

- "Guimarães 2012: How can the European Capital of Culture promote socio-cultural and economic renewal in the city" submitted to FCT; budget: 62.950 €.
- "Heritage Management and Tourism Development in Douro Valley" submitted to FCT; budget: 189.611€.
- "Towards Climate Neutral Cities: Planning and Promoting Culturally Responsive Sustainable Mobility"; project coordinated by Minho University and presented to URBAN-NET; budget for CES: 68.208,00 € (out of total of 483.805,00 €).
- "Cultural Planning Strategies in Complex Urban Regions: The Case of the Lisbon Metropolitan Area"; submitted to FCT, involving UNL. Budget: 186.760,00 €
- "Building International Research Linkages on Culture and Creativity in Small Cities"; proposal to the Intern. Research Linkages program c/o the Embassy of Canada in Portugal. Collaboration with Thompson Rivers Univ. Budget: 13.200,00 €.
- "Culture in Sustainable Communities: Improving the Integration of Culture in Community Sustainability Policy and Planning in Canada and Europe"; proposal to the Canada-Europe Award program c/o the Embassy of Canada in Portugal. Budget: 11.600,00 €

## Science, Technology and Society

**Group Description** 

Title of Research (RG-Centro-50012-3223)

**Group:** Science, Technology and Society

**Principal** 

**Investigator:** 

Joao Carlos Freitas Arriscado Nunes

**Main Scientific** 

Domain: Sociologia, Antropologia, Demografia e Geografia

Group Host Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da

**Institution:** Universidade de Coimbra

Funding, source, dates Funding, source, dates

"Researching Inequality through Science and Technology" (ResIST), European Commission, 6th Framework Programme, CES budget - 147.580€ (2006-2009). Coordinated by Peter Healey, University of Oxford; CES coordination by João Arriscado Nunes.

"Deepening Ethical Engagement and Participation in Emerging Nanotechnologies" (DEEPEN), European Commission, 6th Framework Programme, CES budget - 103.000€ (2006-2009). Coordinated by Phil McNaghten, University of Durham; CES coordination by João Arriscado Nunes.

# Objectives & Achievements Objectives

This Research Group is co-coordinated by Rita Serra and Tiago Santos Pereira.

The Science, Technology and Society Research Group gathers senior and junior researchers involved in activities which include research, training, outreach and education and the organization of scientific meetings and fora.

These activities, focusing on the relationships between science, technology and society, aim to deepen and extend the science and technology studies (STS) approach, and its methodological instruments, to new areas of study, where the co-production of knowledge, politics and society is salient, such as in the methodologies of participation and deliberation, the uses of forensic science, interventions on territorial spaces, the environment and public health. In our studies we develop analyses which focus both on local situated contexts as well as on wider global scales.

In this line, the research activities of the group have been concentrated on five main lines:

- the co-production of knowledge and society in the new life sciences and its implications for public health and other public policies, such as in the relation between science, society and the law, in forensic science, or in the relation between health and human rights;
- the emergence of public risks, in particular health and environmental risks related to territorial policies as well as to emergent technologies, social vulnerability, decisionmaking processes and the role of expert advice;
- the governance of research, including studies of scientific research, development of technological innovations, related policies, controversies and impacts;
- democracy, public participation and multiple forms of engagement in science, technology and public health as social and political technologies, with a focus on public debates on emergent technologies, on the emergence of new collective actors in the health domain, and on new forms of expertise;
- epistemological debates in North and South, and the global governance of knowledge.

The main objective of the research group is to create a research, debate and working platform, promoting cooperation between researchers and graduate students who have interests in STS approaches. The working platform also aims to promote collaboration with key actors and engage in research-action activities. A key commitment of the research group is to international cooperation, currently involving participation in research teams including partners from Europe, Africa and Latin America and in European networks and networks of excellence. The group is engaged as well in the design, implementation and evaluation of outreach and science education activities.

#### Main Achievements

During the reporting period the Science, Technology and Society Research Group has demonstrated a very positive dynamic, leading to an extension of activities and of the Research Group (RG). The indicators of activity make evident this strong dynamic. This has been based on the following main developments.

Firstly, the RG has seen an important development of its activities, in particular through the consolidation of the Risk Observatory – OSIRIS – and through the successful integration of its new researchers, who joined during the previous year. This has been reflected in the deepening of our research lines, in successful proposals of new research projects to the FCT yearly call, focusing of issues of public risks, environment and decision-making, and in a number of seminars organised in this context, including the Conference 'Risk and State in a Globalised World', and in new lines of exchange with other RGs in CES, namely with NEGIE and NECPS.

Secondly, there has been a continued focus on the internationalization of the activities. A sequence of European funded research projects has allowed the consolidation of the research agenda, the training of junior researchers in an international setting, and the extension of collaborating activities with foreign partners. During the past year, the European projects DEEPEN (Deepening Ethical Engagement and Participation in Emerging Nanotechnologies) and ResIST (Researching Inequality through Science and

Technology), both funded through the EU Framework Programmes, have been concluded, with the organisation of the final project seminars in Brussels to present results to local stakeholders. In addition to these European projects, a series of other smaller international collaborations have been maintained on a regular basis, namely with partners in Brazil and elsewhere. A new European project, EPOKS (European Patient Organisations in the Knowledge Society), has started during the past year and other participation in other proposals have been prepared.

Thirdly, a number of different proposals have been submitted to FCT, resulting from an intense internal discussion process, strongly related to the two previously mentioned developments, namely the integration of new researchers and research lines, and the extension of research lines opened up by previous research, at both the national and international levels. Besides the area of public risks and public health, the extension of the research line on forensic science should be noted. Six of these proposals have been successfully evaluated and will be starting in the coming year (see below). NECTS has further contributed to the national consolidation of our area of study through the joint organisation, with the Institute of Social Sciences of the University of Lisbon, of a series of seminars on "Science Studies in Portugal", in addition to the NECTS Seminar Series.

Fourthly, the consolidation of the Doctoral Programme on 'Governance, Knowledge and Innovation', with a strong input from NECTS and NEGIE, has continued to contribute to the training of new researchers in the field, the strengthening of a transdisciplinary research agenda, and has also been instrumental in the development of a series of seminars disseminating current research in STS, with foreign and Portuguese speakers. With a new intake during 2009, there are, presently, over 20 research students developing their research with some link to the research at NECTS.

Finally, NECTS has continually developed a series of extension activities, integrated within the wider Associate Laboratory objectives (activities with schools, training courses and scientific seminars), and framed by the results of our own research projects, broadening the understanding of science and technology to encompass forms of governance, public participation and collective action as social and political technologies, through the conceptual and methodological tools of science and technology studies.

# **Group Productivity Publications in peer review Journals**

Diego Gonçalves, Carmen (2009), ""Da previsão à prevenção: risco sísmico em Portugal Continental"", Segurança e Protecção Civil, Revista de Planeamento e Gestão de Emergência, 3, 13-21.

Filipe, Ângela Marques (2009), "Actores colectivos e os seus projectos para a saúde: o caso das associações de doentes em Portugal", Eä – Revista de Humanidades Médicas

& Estudios Sociales de la Ciencia y la Tecnología, 1, 2, 1-48.

Machado, Helena; Santos, Filipe (2009), "Popular press and forensic genetics in Portugal – Expectation and disappointment regarding two cases of missing children", Public Understanding of Science, online first, 1-16.

Machado, Helena; Silva, Susana (2009), "Gender and ethics in qualitative interviewing: Research relationships in the context of a study of infertility in Portugal", Journal of International Ethics, 6, 2-3, 1-29.

Machado, Helena; Silva, Susana (2009), "Informed consent in forensic DNA databases: Volunteering, constructions of risk and identity categorization", Biosocieties, 4 (4), 335-348.

Mendes, José Manuel (2009), "Social Vulnerability Indexes as Planning Tools: Beyond the Preparedness Paradigm", Journal of Risk Research, Issue 1, 43-58.

Silva, Susana; Machado, Helena (2009), "Trust, morality and altruism in the donation of biological material – The case of Portugal", New Genetics and Society, 28, 2, 103-118.

Silva, Susana; Machado, Helena (2009), "A compreensão jurídica, médica e "leiga" do embrião em Portugal: Um alinhamento com a biologia?", Interface (Botucatu), 13, 30, 31-43.

#### **Other publications International**

Carvalho A; Ferrari A; Filipe AM; Nordmann A; Nunes JA; Rip A; Shelley-Egan C, in Davies SR, Macnaghten P, and Kearnes M (coord.); (2009), Reconfiguring Responsability: Deepening Debate on Nanotechnology (Part 1), Durham: Durham University.

Centemeri, Laura (2009), "A Sociological Analysis of Dioxin Pollution in Seveso (Italy): Workers and Inhabitants at Stake" Taipei (Taiwan): College of Public Health, National Taiwan University - French Centre for Research on Contemporary China, Taipei Office, Panel Two, 1-10.

Hagendijk R; Healey P; Pereira TS (coord.); Hagendijk R; Healey P; Pereira TS (2009), Researching Inequality through Science and Technology (ResIST), Oxford: University of Oxford.

Mendes, José Manuel; Tavares, Alexandre; Freiria, Susana; Cunha, Lúcio (2009), "Social vulnerability to natural and technological hazards: the relevance of scale", in Bris, Guedes Soares & Martorell (org.), Reliability, Risk and Safety: Theory and Applications. London, 2010: Taylor & Francis Group, 445-451.

Mendes, José Manuel; Alexandre Tavares (2009), "Building Resilience to Natural Hazards. Practices and Policies on Governance and Mitigation in the Central Region of

Portugal", in Sebastian Martorell, C. Guedes Soares and Julie Barnett (org.), Safety, Reliability and Risk Analysis. Vol. 2, Theory, Methods and Applications. Leiden: CRC Press/Balkema, 1577-1584.

Nunes, João Arriscado; Filipe, Ângela Marques; Carvalho, António; Matias, Marisa (2009), "Deliberative Forum in Nanotechnologies", DEEPEN, Public Report. Coimbra: CES.

Nunes, João Arriscado; Filipe, Ângela Marques; Carvalho, António (2009), "Deliberative Fora across two European Nations", Contributing Report DEEPEN. Durham: Durham University.

Tavares, Alexandre Oliveira (2009), "Risk Management International Workshop Report", Risk, Models and Applications, Berlin, Sept. 10-11.; 9.

Tavares, Alexandre Oliveira; Mendes, José Manuel; Basto, Eduardo; Cunha, Lúcio (2009), "Risk perception, extreme events and institutional trust: a local survey in Portugal", in Bris, Guedes Soares & Martorell (org.), Reliability, Risk and Safety: Theory and Applications. London: Taylor & Francis Group: 1245-1252.

## **Other publications National**

Araújo, Pedro (2009) Review of Yannick Barthe (2006), Le Pouvoir d'Indécision. La mise en politique des déchets nucléaires. Paris: Éditions Economica, 239, in Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais.

Carvalho, António (2009), "Corpo, Consciência, Ontogénese I - O despertar", Entre o vivo, o não-vivo e o morto, 3, 28-29.

Diego Gonçalves, Carmen (2009) critical recension to Enric Saperas (1987) , "Os Efeitos Cognitivos da Comunicação de Massas", Porto: ASA, in Prisma.com, Revista de Ciências da Informação e da Comunicação do CETAC, 5.

Dinis; Jorge Leitão; Tavares, Alexandre Oliveira (2009), "Condicionantes naturais e antrópicas na evolução holocénica de 3 lagunas do centro de Portugal (Óbidos, Alfeizerão e Pederneira)". Actas do 2º Seminário sobre Sistemas Lagunares Costeiros: Ed. Escola Superior de Educação João de Deus, pp. 25-41

Machado, Helena (2009), "Prefácio", in Susana Silva and Luísa Veloso (org.), Representações jurídicas das tecnologias reprodutivas: Contributos para uma reflexão. Porto: Editora da Universidade do Porto, 9-12.

Machado, Helena; Miranda, Diana; Santos, Filipe (2009), "CSI behind bars: Perceptions of criminal investigation and perspectives of social reinsertion of prisoners", Project Report presented to the Directorate-General of Prison Services.

Matos, Ana Raquel; Giovanni Allegretti; Juliana Torquato Luiz; Nelson Dias (Eds.) (2009), thematic number of "72 Perguntas Frequentes sobre o Orçamento Participativo

(Portuguese Edition)", Série Caixa de Ferramentas de Governação Urbana.

Matos, Ana Raquel; Barboza, Rosemeire (2009), "Questões de género e capacitação cidadã nas tecnologias de participação: as experiências de orçamento participativo de Belo Horizonte e Sevilha em comparação", Anais do III Simpósio Nacional de Tecnologia e Sociedade. Curitiba: Universidade Tecnológica Federal do Paraná.

Mendes, José Manuel; Tavares, Alexandre; Cunha, Lúcio; Freiria, Susana (2009), "Vulnerabilidade Social aos Riscos Naturais e Tecnológicos em Portugal", in C. Guedes Soares, C. Jacinto, A.P. Teixeira, P. Antão (org.), Riscos Industriais e Emergentes. Lisboa: Edições Salamandra, 67-84.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), Feitiçaria e Modernidade em Moçambique: questionando saberes, direitos e políticas, Final Project Report, Coimbra: CES, 404 pp.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Corpos de violência, linguagens de resistência: as complexas teias de conhecimentos no Moçambique contemporâneo", in Boaventura de Sousa Santos e Maria Paula Meneses (org.), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Almedina, 177-213.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Justiça Cognitiva", in António Cattani, Jean Louis Laville, Luis Inácio Gaiger e Pedro Hespanha (org.), Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Editora Almedina, 231-236.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Maciane F. Zimba e Carolina J. Tamele: médicos tradicionais, dirigentes da Associação de Médicos Tradicionais", in Boaventura de Sousa Santos (org.), Vozes do Mundo. Rio de Janeiro: Civilização Brasileira.

Nunes, João Arriscado (2009), "O resgate da epistemologia", in Boaventura de Sousa Santos e Maria Paula Meneses (org.), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Almedina, 215-242.

Nunes, João Arriscado; Matias, Marisa; Filipe, Ângela Marques (2009), "Participação em saúde e novas formas de governação: As associações de doentes em Portugal" in X Congresso Luso-Afro-Brasileiro de Ciências Sociais: Sociedades desiguais e paradigmas em confronto - Vol. II - Ciências sociais, tecnologia e comunicação: Trabalho e organizações. Braga: Centro de Investigação em Ciências Sociais, Instituto de Ciências Sociais, Universidade do Minho.

Nunes, João Arriscado; Carvalho, António; Filipe, Ângela Marques; Matias, Marisa (2010), "Realidade, ficção e participação: o caso das nanotecnologias" in X Congresso Luso-Afro-Brasileiro de Ciências Sociais: Sociedades desiguais e paradigmas em confronto - Vol. II - Ciências sociais, tecnologia e comunicação: Trabalho e organizações. Braga: Centro de Investigação em Ciências Sociais, Instituto de Ciências Sociais, Universidade do Minho.

Pereira, Tiago Santos (2009), "Ciência, Tecnologia e Risco no Parlamento Português" in Manuel Carlos Silva et al. (org.), X Congresso Luso-Afro-Brasileiro de Ciências Sociais: Sociedades desiguais e paradigmas em confronto - Vol. II - Ciências sociais,

tecnologia e comunicação: Trabalho e organizações. Braga: Centro de Investigação em Ciências Sociais, Instituto de Ciências Sociais, Universidade do Minho, 199-208.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa; Meneses, Maria Paula (orgs.) (2009), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Almedina.

Santos, Pedro; Andrade, Ana Isabel; Tavares, Alexandre Oliveira (2009), "A bacia hidrográfica do rio Arunca. Factores condicionantes e cartografia dos processos de cheia/inundação", Actas do VII Congresso da Geografia Portuguesa: Associação Portuguesa de Geografos, in edition, 16 p.

### Master and Ph.D. thesis completed

Carvalho, António. "Performances, Poderes e Sujeitos no debate sobre Nanotecnologias", Master thesis. Faculty of Economics, University of Coimbra (FEUC) (Supervised by Tiago Santos Pereira).

Filipe, Ângela Marques. "Entre biologia e política: a governação da saúde no caso das associações de doentes em Portugal", Master thesis. Faculty of Economics, University of Coimbra (FEUC) (Supervised by João Arriscado Nunes).

Freiria, Susana. "Expansão urbana e riscos naturais – o caso de Coimbra", Master thesis. Faculty of Humanities, University of Coimbra (FLUC) (Supervised by José Manuel Mendes).

Neves, Daniel. "Novas Cartografias da Saúde: Controlo Social e participação cidadã no governo da saúde", Master thesis. Faculty of Economics, University of Coimbra (FEUC) (Supervised by João Arriscado Nunes).

### Patents/propotypes

Not applicable

#### **Organization of conferences**

Deliberative Forum on Nanotechnology, organized in the context of the European Project DEEPEN (Deepening Ethical Engagement and Participation in Emerging Nanotechnologies), Centre for Social Studies (CES), March 7, 2009.

Seminar "John Ruskin and the Ideia of a 'sustainable economy", Coimbra, FEUC, March 16, 2009.

CES Seminars, "Public Risks", Coimbra, CES, March 26, 2009.

CES Seminars, "New Methodologies and Technologies of Participation", Coimbra, CES, May 28, 2009.

Seminar "mother in bare land: the violence on the woman's foot in the track made with valter hugo mãe between the film, writing and life", Doctoral Programme 'Governance, Knowledge and Innovation', Coimbra, FEUC, March 30, 2009.

Organization of ResIST Project Final Conference, Brussels, March 31, 2009.

Workshop "Risk of trauma: dilemmas and answers, Coimbra, April 15, 2009.

Joint CES/ICS Seminar "Science studies in Portugal: Contemporaneus trends", Coimbra, CES, April 27 and May 6, 2009.

Conference and Round Table "Risks and forest systems in Portugal", Coimbra, CES, June 3, 2009.

Conference "Risk and State in a Globalized World", Coimbra University, June 18-19, 2009.

International Seminar "Forensic DNA databases: Ethics, law and governance in UK and Portugal", Braga, Minho University, June 30, 2009.

CES Seminars, "Science in Society", Coimbra, CES, July 16, 2009.

Organization of DEEPEN Project Final Conference, Brussels, September 28, 2009.

## **Industry contract research**

Not applicable

### Internationalization

The participation of the RG in large international collaborative projects (such as EPOKS, DEEPEN and ResIST) and networks has been a major part of our active strategy of internationalisation. A number of international reports and other publications resulted from the collaborations and are foreseen in the near future. These include the following main reports:

- Davies S, Macnaghten P and Kearnes M (Eds.) (coord.); Nunes JA; Carvalho A; Filipe AM (2009), Reconfiguring Responsability: Deepening Debate on Nanotechnology (Part 1),, Durham: Durham University;
- Hagendijk R; Healey P; Pereira TS (coord.); Hagendijk R; Healey P; Pereira TS (2009), Researching Inequality through Science and Technology (ResIST), Oxford:

University of Oxford.

Ongoing collaborations remain with partners mostly from Europe and Latin America, but also in Africa and North America.

Junior researchers were supported to participate in international conferences, and relevant training actions (e.g. Summer Schools).

In addition, through the NECTS Seminar Series, the Doctoral Programme and ongoing projects, several foreign researchers have been invited to present seminars locally.

Several Researchers participated in international activities and evaluation committees including memberships of:

European Neuroscience and Society Network (BIOS); Public Health Genomics European Network (PHGEN) and Coordination of its National Task Force for Portugal; Nanomed Roundtable; International Advisory Panel of the 'New England Workshop on Science and Social Change', U Mass; Network Board of NORFACE ERA-NET of Social Science Research Funding Agencies; Science and Democracy Network; Project Evaluation Committees (FCT; ESF); European Strategic Forum for Research Infrastructures (ESFRI) – Social Sciences Committee; ISCH Cost Action IS0807 Living in Surveillance Societies (LiSS).

### **Government/Organization contract research**

Not applicable this year.

# Future Research Objectives

NECTS' current and future research agenda builds strongly on the main achievements so far, and will extend beyond these in what we consider have been some of the main developments from our research.

As such, we will continue to develop the five main lines of research identified above, in strong connection with a number of ongoing and future research projects (already approved), as well as through the activities of research students enrolled in the Doctoral Programme, and with the further development of research networks in Portugal, Europe and beyond.

Activities during the coming year are going to be largely concentrated on research developed in the framework of eight projects, six of which to start anew in 2010.

Among these we want to note in particular two main points:

The research project BIOSENSE (Science Engaging Society: Life Sciences, Social

#### **Future Research**

Sciences and Publics) aims to institutionalize pilot projects and science shops for public engagement especially in the biomedical sciences in Portugal, extending earlier research towards developing an action-research framework.

The research project 'Evaluating the state of public knowledge on health and health information in Portugal' is funded under the scope of the cooperation programme Harvard Medical School – Portugal, and aims to develop evaluation tools for the design of health information campaigns of the Ministry of Health, collective actors and communication initiatives developed under the Harvard Program.

Other projects to start during the present year include:

The research project 'Forensic DNA databasing in Portugal - contemporary issues in ethics, practices and policy' aims to assess the measures that can assure an adequate use of the DNA technology for criminal investigation. It deals with the relationships between institutions, technology and society and, crucially, addresses the question of how ordinary citizens can be involved in the debate and communicate their views to policy makers.

The research projects "SCRAM - Crises, risk management and new socio-ecological arrangements for forests: a perspective from science and technology studies" and "DISASTER - GIS database on hydro-geomorphologic disasters in Portugal: a tool for environmental management and emergency planning" continue to explore interdisciplinary perspectives in the area of public risks, territorial policies, environment and vulnerabilities.

The research project "Nuclear Portugal: Physics, Technology, Medicine and Environment (1910-2010)" will bring together a large team, from the history of science as well as from the STS approach, on research that will contribute to our better understanding of one central area of science and technology during the strengthening of the Portuguese Republic, at a time of its centenary.

In addition to the ongoing research projects, we will continue to seek to further develop the research results from recent projects, namely through new European research proposals. A recent large European proposal, as a follow-up to the ResIST project, has been prepared involving a large number of international partners and other RGs within CES.

Among other activities to be developed are included a number of seminars, workshops and conferences, some within the framework of the existing research projects. We would like to highlight in particular the NECTS Debates 2010, where an innovative model of seminar, involving a number of stakeholders in dialogue with NECTS research, will debate current controversies and debates. International seminars will be organised on "Risk, Vulnerability and Territory", "Forensic DNA databases: legal trends in Europe", and the Luso-Afro-Brazilian Conference on the Post-Polio Syndrom".

We will continue to consider as a priority the engagement in advanced training activities, at the doctoral level. In this sense, we are starting a new reflection on the

#### **Future Research**

implications of the new research lines and research collaborations established by NECTS, within and outside CES, for an eventual reorganisation of the ongoing Doctoral Programme, as well as for the cooperation with other programmes, namely with a new Doctoral Programme on 'Territory, Risk and Public Policies', or other new transdisciplinary programmes.

We are continuing to explore future activity of collaboration with institutions involved in research and policy-making in the field of public health in Brazil and other Latin American countries, namely regarding research and training activities.

Funding, source, dates

"European Patient Organizations in Knowledge Society" (EPOKS), European Commission, 7th FP, 139.230€ (2009-2012). Coord. Madeleine Akrich, Centre de Sociologie de l'Innovation, ENMP; CES Coord.: João Arriscado Nunes.

"Mothers and fathers after the "biological truth"? Gender, inequalities and parental roles in the cases of investigation of paternity", FCT, 60.000€ (2009-2011). Coord: Helena Machado.

"Forensic DNA databasing in Portugal - contemporary issues in ethics, practices and policy". FCT, 108.157€ (2010-2013). Coord.: HelenaMachado.

"Science Engaging Society: Life Sciences, Social Sciences and Publics" (BIOSENSE). FCT, 155.071€ (2010-2013). Coord.: João Arriscado Nunes.

"Nuclear Portugal: Physics, Technology, Medicine and Environment (1910-2010)", FCT, 27.360€ (2010-2013). Coord. Instituto de Ciências Sociais da Universidade de Lisboa; CES Coord.: Tiago Santos Pereira.

"SCRAM - Crises, risk management and new socio-ecological arrangements for forests: a perspective from science and technology studies". FCT, 171.711€ (2010-2013). Coord.: Rita Serra.

"DISASTER - GIS database on hydro-geomorphologic disasters in Portugal: a tool for environmental management and emergency planning". FCT, 40.598€ (20102013). Coord. Fundação da Universidade de Lisboa, CES Coord.: Alexandre Oliveira Tavares.

Evaluating the state of public knowledge on health and health information in Portugal, Harvard Medical School-Portugal Programme FCT, 292.000€ (2010-2013), Coord.: João Arriscado Nunes.

## **Comparative Cultural Studies**

**Group Description** 

Title of Research (RG-Centro-50012-3224)

**Group:** Comparative Cultural Studies

Principal

Maria Irene Ramalho de Sousa Santos

**Investigator:** 

**Main Scientific** 

Domain: Estudos Literários

Group Host Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da

**Institution:** Universidade de Coimbra

Funding, source, dates Funding, source, dates

"Poetry of the Colonial War: the ontology of the shattered "self" (2007-2009), funded by FCT, Coordinator: Margarida Calafate Ribeiro; 30.000,00 euros.

# Objectives & Achievements Objectives

This Research Group is co-coordinated by researchers Adriana Bebiano and Catarina Martins since June 2009.

The research group (RG) brings together a number of qualified researchers in the Humanities, mainly in the fields of Cultural and Literary studies, but also of Poetics, Social Linguistics, History, Feminist Studies, Postcolonial Studies and Musicology. In 2009 four new researchers joined the group thus strengthening the fields of History (2 new members), Social Linguistics, and Comparative Literature / Cultural Studies (1 new member each).

Its designated area – "Comparative Cultural Studies" – and the different fields of research it encompasses, reflect its concern with the major changes that the traditional disciplines within the humanities have been undergoing during the last decades. The group actively promotes interdisciplinary work both within itself and within CES. Conferences and projects, as well as the politics of invitation of advisers and guest speakers for individual seminars, reflect this epistemological strategy of networking with researchers from across different disciplines, at home and abroad.

Within CES, this group broadly represents the area of the Arts and Humanities, thus playing a pivotal role in contributing to the Centre's innovative articulation between the Social Sciences and the Humanities. This year the RG has increased the collaboration with other Research Groups within CES, namely in PhD programmes and the organization of conferences and other similar events.

As for the RG own agenda and specificities, this year's work has followed up on the previous year's plans, namely work on the subjects of modernism and modernity in a global context; comparative literature; memory and identity; culture and violence; interculturality and discourse; postcolonialism; feminism; youth movements and youth culture; the new poetry and poetics in the 21st century. It should be noted, however, that fields such as poetics, multilingualism and discourse analysis, as well as contemporary history are expanding as well as branching out in new partnerships across CES and beyond.

#### **Main Achievements**

The project "Poetry of the Colonial War: the ontology of the shattered "self", funded by FCT, handed in its final report in 2009. On April an international symposium place. 6 papers were presented, covering the preliminary conclusions of the project and announcing 2 outcomes: an anthology and an on-line archive of poetry of the Colonial War.

The project "The Children of the Colonial War", which focuses on the question of traumatic stress disorder and the intergenerational transmission of trauma, brings together experts in discourse analysis, cultural studies and psychiatrists. Partial results were presented on 12 different occasions in conferences in different disciplinary areas, both at Portuguese and at foreign universities. This project was also the subject of TV popular science program 4xCiência (RTP-N), by invitation. On April 2009 a cooperation protocol was signed with the Portuguese Ministry of National Defense in the framework of this project.

The ongoing project on "New Poetics of Resistance" (focusing on counter-hegemonic forms in language and on the politics of language), along with "Oficina de Poesia" (Poetry Workshop) represent the main contribution in the field of Arts within the RG. A online archive of contemporary poetry in collaboration with pennsound (USA) and Sibila (Brasil) is under construction. In 2009 the team has offered over 20 workshops in libraries, bookshops, town councils and schools across the country. Readings and performances, as well as presentations of results were done. The team includes two junior researchers: a MA thesis on the sociology of culture was just completed and another is expected to be completed in soon. The project integrated the new BII (Bolsas de Integração na Investigação) first implemented by FCT in 2009 for undergraduate students, with Ana Filipa Maia as grant recipient. Other activities related to this project included poetry translation workshops, and sociolinguistic fieldwork developed in two sites: a closed drug addiction institution and an informal school for Eastern European migrant children.

Following up on the RG research and dissemination politics, in 2009 two Advanced Training Courses were offered: in March, AT Course on Creative Writing, coordinated by Graça Capinha, with the participation of Adriana Bebiano and Maria Irene Ramalho (NECC), Miro Villar (Spain) and Márcio-André (Brazil), both Univ. of Coimbra poets-in-residence; in June, AT Course on the Literatures of Cabo Verde, Guiné-Bissau and São Tomé e Príncipe, coordinated by Margarida Calafate Ribeiro (NECC) and Silvio Renato Jorge (Universidade Federal Fluminense, Brasil, postdoctoral researcher at

CES). Both were highly successful and will have new editions in 2010.

Within the framework of "Ciência Viva", Graça Capinha coordinated the course "POEMACTO: Práticas e Teorias da Escrita Criativa", with the participation of Cristina Nery and Rita Grácio.

Members of the group played an important role in the consolidation of doctoral programmes at CES, such as "Postcolonialisms and Global Citizenship". Extensive cooperation with the Feminist Studies and with the American Studies programmes at the Faculty of Arts (MA and PhD) is also of crucial importance.

The involvement with CES scientific politics included the work done by Maria José Canelo as Vice-President of the Scientific Board of CES and of the editorial board of E-Cadernos do CES; Catarina Martins as coordinator and editor of the "Oficinas do CES" and as member of the Library Supervising Committee; Clara Keating as member of the Executive Board and Librarian Professor; António Pinho Vargas and Graça Capinha as members of the CES /Almedina Editorial Board; Teresa Tavares as assistant editor of Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, and managing editor of RCCS Annual Review.

All members of the RG have presented their work in seminars, papers in conferences, keynote addresses, round-table discussions and other events (see CVs on-line).

## **Group Productivity**

## **Publications in peer review Journals**

Dias, Aida; Sales, Luísa, (2009), "War's Mental Health Legacies for Children of Combatants", Peace Review: A Journal of Social Justice, 21, 2, 182 - 187.

Garraio, Júlia (2009), "Espaços de exclusão e desamparo. Sobre alguns filmes de Teresa Villaverde", Quo vadis, Romania? Zeitschrift für eine aktuelle Romanistik, 34, 82-99.

Martins, Catarina (2009), "Imperialismus des Geistes. Fiktionen der Totalität und des Ichs in der österreichischen Moderne", Kakanien revisited, 9.4.2009 (http://www.kakanien.ac.at/).

Portela, Manuel (2009), "Flash Script Poex: A Recodificação Digital do Poema Experimental", Cibertextualidades, Volume 3.

Ribeiro, Margarida Calafate (2009), "O fim da excepção atlântica e a descolonização da Europa", Colóquio Letras, 170, 41-48.

Ribeiro, Margarida Calafate (2009), "Uma outra história de regressos: Eduardo Lourenço e a cultura portuguesa", Colóquio-Letras, Número especial - Eduardo Lourenço, 171.

Wolkoff, Gisele (2009), "Art and identity: nationalism and feminility - a reading of

Eavan Boland", Fragmentos, 1, 35; ISSN 0103-1783, 219-225.

## **Other publications International**

Caldeira, Isabel (2009), "Who Was Tituba? Transoceanic Crossings and Creative Translations", in João Ferreira Duarte et al (org.), Trans/American, Trans/Oceanic, Trans/lation: Issues in International American Studies, 129-140.

Canelo, Maria José (2009), "An America of South's Own" in IASA (org.), International American Studies Association - Selected Proceedings of the 3rd World Congress (2007). EUA: CafePress, n/a (CD-Rom edition).

Capinha, Graça (2009), "Portuguese Immigrant Women in New England: Their History and Their Voices", in Leonor Diaz de Seabra and Maria Antónia Espadinha (org.), A Vez e a Voz da Mulher Portuguesa na Diáspora: Macau e Outros Lugares. Macau: Dep. Port., Fac. C. Sociais e Hum., U. Macau.

Capinha, Graça (2009), "So sehr Sein so sehr Stein so sehr Wasser: Zwanzig Gedichte von Rio", in Cyro de Mattos (org.), Zwanzig Gedichte von Rio und andere Gedichte (aus dem Portugiesischen von Curt Meyer-Clason), Halle, Deutschland: Projekte-Verlag, 9-21.

Cardina, Miguel (2009), "Olhares sobre uma ausência: o movimento estudantil no Estado Novo e o feminismo", Latitudes, Cahiers Lusophones, 34, 38-42.

Keating, Clara (2009), "Changing Participation in Changing Practice: Uses of Language and Literacy among Portuguese Based Migrant Contexts", in Mike Baynham, James Collins and Stef Slembrouck (orgs.), Globalization and Language Contact: Spatiotemporal Scales, Migration Flows, and Communicative Practices. London: Continuum.

Keating, Clara; Guilherme, Manuela; Daniel, Hoppe (2009), "Diversity Management: negotiating representations in multicultural contexts", in M. Guilherme, E. Glaser & M. C. Mendez-Garcia (orgs.), Intercultural Dynamics in Multicultural Groups. Clevedon: Multilingual Matters.

Keating, Clara; Guilherme, Manuela; Hoppe, Daniel (2009), "Intercultural responsibility: Power and ethics in intercultural dialogue and interaction", in M. Guilherme, E. Glaser, M. C. Mendez-Garcia & Terry Mughan (orgs.), Intercultural Dynamics in Multicultural Groups. Clevedon: Multilingual Matters.

Ribeiro, António Sousa (2009), "'Bilder jenes Grauns'. Die Funktion des literarischen Gedächtnisses in Dritte Walpurgisnacht von Karl Kraus", in Marisa Siguan et al. (orgs.), "Erzählen müssen um zu überwinden". Literatura y supervivencia. Barcelona:

Sociedad Goethe de España, 171-180.

Ribeiro, António Sousa (2009) review of Prem Poddar / Rajeev Patke / Lars Jensen (2008), A Historical Companion to Postcolonial Literatures. Continental Europe and its Empires, Edinburgh: Edinburgh University Press, 633, in IASL Online, 9/11/2009. A revised and expanded version was published in Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, 86, Setembro de 2009, 167-171.

Wolkoff, Gisele (ed.)(2009), thematic number of ABEI/Bahia Newsletter: WOMEN, 2.

Wolkoff, Gisele (2009), "Interview with Professor Margaret Kelleher", ABEI/Bahia Newsletter: WOMEN, 2-5.

Other publications National

Bebiano, Adriana; Ferreira, Rosário; Tavares, Teresa (orgs.) (2009), Estudos Feministas: Ensaios de uma interdisciplina. Coimbra: FLUC.

Bebiano, Rui (2009), Outubro. Coimbra: Angelus Novus.

Bebiano, Rui; Maria José Canelo; Elísio Estanque; Hermes Costa; Sílvia Ferreira; António Casimiro Ferreira (orgs.) (2009), "Travessias" thematic number of Travessias, 7/8.

Bebiano, Rui (2009), "Spartakus em Berlim", in Tambores na Noite. Manual de leitura, folheto para a peça homónima de Bertolt Brecht, Porto, Teatro Nacional de São João, 18-20.

Caldeira, Isabel (2009), "Bodies and Nobodies: Violence and the Body in the African American Text", in Alcinda Pinheiro de Sousa et al (org.), So long lives this, and this gives life to thee. Lisboa: Departamento de Estudos Anglísticos, 279-304.

Canelo, Maria José (2009), "Carey McWilliams and the magazine Common Ground", Op. Cit. 9.

Canelo, Maria José (2009), "Home Sour Home: Uncanny Experiences of the U.S. Home Front in the 1940s", Oficina do CES, 325.

Capinha, Graça (2009), (org.), Oficina de Poesia. Revista da Palavra e da Imagem, #11. Palimage: Coimbra

Cardina, Miguel (2009), "O maoísmo em Portugal: 1964-1974", in Política Operária (org.), Lutas Velhas, Futuro Novo. Lisboa: Dinossauro, 33-72.

Cardina, Miguel (2009), "Movimentos Estudantis na crise do Estado Novo: mitos e realidades" in Marta Araújo, Marisa Matias, José Manuel Mendes (orgs.), E-Cadernos CES, n.º1. Coimbra: CES, 67-90.

Cardina, Miguel (2009), "Olhares sobre uma ausência: o movimento estudantil no Estado Novo e o feminismo" in UMAR (org.), Actas do Congresso Feminista de 2008.

Cardina, Miguel (2009), review of Jaume Cabré (2008), As Vozes do Rio Pamano, Lisboa: Tinta da China, 653, in Vírus.

Cardina, Miguel (2009), review of José Neves (2008), Comunismo e Nacionalismo em Portugal. Política, Cultura e História no século XX, Lisboa: Tinta da China, 502, in Vírus.

Cardina, Miguel (2009), "Guerra à Guerra. Violência e anticolonialismo nas oposições ao Estado Novo", Oficina do CES, 334.

Cruzeiro, Maria Manuela (2009), "Alberto Vilaça - A alegria do combate desigual", in Raquel Vilaça (org.), Alberto Vilaça, 80 anos: O sentido que se dá à vida. Coimbra: Calendário de Letras.

Cruzeiro, Maria Manuela (2009), Vasco Lourenço - Do Interior da Revolução. Lisboa: Ancora.

Cruzeiro, Maria Manuela (2009) review of Miguel Cardina (2008), A Tradição da Contestação – Resistência Estudantil em Coimbra no Marcelismo, Coimbra: Angelus Novus, in Revista Critica de Ciências Sociais.

Martins, Catarina; Ribeiro, Margarida Calafate; Matias, Marisa; Peixoto, Paulo; Pereira, Tiago Santos (orgs.) (2009), "Novos mapas para as ciências sociais e humanas - Artigos pré colóquio", thematic number of E-cadernos CES, 2.

Martins, Catarina (2009), "Zarathustra nos trópicos. O texto como espiral de repetição em Nietzsche e Robert Müller", Oficina do CES, 326, Julho 2009.

Néry, Cristina (2009), poema visual em website e design do website, poetas soldados.

http://www.ces.uc.pt/projectos/poesiadaguerracolonial/pages/intro.php

Ramalho, Maria Irene (2009), Poetas do Atlântico: Fernando Pessoa e o Modernismo Anglo-Americano. Porto: Afrontamento.

Ramalho, Maria Irene (2009), "Falo das mãos, falo das obras (Prólogo)", in Angélica Lima Cruz, Artes de mulheres à altura de suas mãos: O figurado de Galegos revisitado. Porto: Afrontamento.

Ramalho, Maria Irene (2009), "The Permanent Revolution: Poetry and the Tradition", in Alcinda Pinheiro de Sousa et al. (orgs.), So Long Lives This, and This Gives Life to Thee. Homenagem a M. H. Paiva Correia. Lisboa: Departamento de Estudos Anglísticos FLUL, 549-562.

Ramalho, Maria Irene (2009) Co-ed (with Doris Friedensohn). "Transnational, Post-imperial American Studies?" Special issue of Op. Cit. Revista da Associação Portuguesa de Estudos Anglo-Americanos, nº 9.

Vargas, António Pinho (2009), "On Adorno's Use by Musicians", in Mário Vieira de Carvalho (org.), Expression, Truth and Authenticity: on Adorno's Theory of Music and Musical Performance. Lisboa: Edições Colibri /C.

Master and Ph.D. thesis completed

Grácio, Rita. MA thesis on ".mur.mur(i)o. poetas na blogosfera" on Sociology of Culture. Faculdade de Economia, Universidade de Coimbra (supervisors: Graça Capinha and Sílvia Portugal); (submmited in 2009; defense in 2010)

Santos, Hélia. MA thesis "Jovens Muçulmanos na Escola Pública Portuguesa", MA on Postcolonialism and Global Citizenship. Faculdade de Economia, Universidade de Coimbra (supervisors: Margarida Calafate Ribeiro and Marta Araújo)

#### **Patents/propotypes**

Not applicable.

#### **Organization of conferences**

The following International Colloquiums organized by the RG took place in 2009:

30 March 2009 - International Colloquium "Poetry of the Colonial War: the ontology of the shattered "self" (coordinated by Margarida Calafate Ribeiro; Cristina Nery as member of the organizing team);

September 2009: International Colloquium "Memory, History, Justice". (with the collaboration of Minas Gerais State University, Brazil; CES Latin America; Human Department of Human Rights of the Presidency of Brazil; 25th of April Documentation Center, Univ. of Coimbra). Participation of António Pinho Vargas, António Sousa Ribeiro, Manuela Cruzeiro, Margarida Calafate Ribeiro, Miguel Cardina and Rui Bebiano. Members of other research groups were involved in the organizing committee, coordinated by António Sousa Ribeiro.

In June 2009, in collaboration with the Faculty of Arts of the University of Coimbra, Maria Irene Ramalho, Maria Isabel Caldeira and Maria José Canelo organized the American Studies International Colloquium "America Where?"

Adriana Bebiano was part of the organizing team of the Irish Literary Festival Fundamental Sounds: Voices from Ireland (Porto, Faculdade de Letras e Teatro Carlos Alberto, 06 to 11 October 2009).

## **Industry contract research**

Not applicable.

#### **Internationalization**

RG collaborators include: AbdoolKarim Vakil, Francisco Bethencourt, Helder Macedo, (King's College London); Francisco Noa, João Paulo Borges Coelho (Univ. Eduardo Mondlane); Laura Padilha, Silvio Renato Jorge (Federal Fluminense Univ.); Roberto Vecchi (Bologna Univ.), Paulo Medeiros (Utrecht Univ.), Charles Bernstein (Univ. of Pennsylvania), Regis Bonvicino (Sibila, Brasil); Wilmar Silva (Portuguesia, Brasil).

The RG is involved in the following international networks:

- -AILA Language and Migration Network;
- -ATGENDER (former AOIFE, Association of Institutions for Feminist Education and Research in Europe);
- -BABYLON, Language and Globalization Research Network, Tilburg Univ;
- -Creating resources for tolerance in culturally and linguistically diverse school settings in Europe, with the Univ. of Jyväskylä, Finland, Univ. of Birmingham, National and Kapodistrian Univ. of Athens; Hedmark Univ. College;
- -Dipartimento di Lingue e Letterature Straniere Moderne, Univ. Bolonha;
- -Eurozine, European Network of Cultural Journals;
- -In Critical Discourse Analysis / Systemic Functional Linguistics, Literacy Studies and Linguistic Ethnography, links with Univ. of Brasília, Federal Univ. of Ceará and Univ. of Lisbon.
- -LUPOR Lusophone Postcolonial Research Network;
- -Multilingualism, Discourse and Institutions with King's College London, Univ. of Leeds, Freie Univ. Berlin, Univ. Autónoma de Barcelona, Univ. of Ghent, Roskilde Univ., Univ. of Lyon;
- -pennsound (Univ. of Pennsylvania) and Sibila (S. Paulo);
- 3 PhD and 5 post-doc researchers are supervised by members of the RG in collaboration with foreign universities. In 2010 this number will increase.

The various international affiliations of RG members (editorial boards, visiting

professors abroad, etc.) are not specified.

Maria Irene Ramalho is an International Affiliate of the Department of Comparative Literature of the Univ. of Wisconsin-Madison and Margarida Calafate Ribeiro currently holds the Eduardo Lourenço Chair at the Univ. of Bologna.

## **Government/Organization contract research**

Under this topic, the RG has signed up three contracts with Instituto Camões in 2009.

The first concerns the production of the e-learning course "Patrimónios de Influência Portuguesa" (Portuguese Influenced Heritages), coordinated by Margarida Calafate Ribeiro (NECC) and Walter Rossa (NAU, Urbanism and Architecture RG), with the collaboration of António Sousa Ribeiro (NECC), Paulo Peixoto (NECCURB, Cities and Urban Cultures RG) and Paulo Varela Gomes (NAU). The course has been on-line at the Instituto Camões' website since February 2010 (funded by Instituto Camões, 5.000 euros).

In September 2009 CES was invited by the Instituto Camões to create a teacher training programme in Portuguese as a foreign language in multilingual settings worldwide (for preschool and primary school levels). The proposal for this programme, coordinated by Margarida Calafate Ribeiro and Clara Keating, involves the participation of other Research Centers and individual experts under CES coordination, was submitted in January 2010; it was accepted with minor changes and is expected to be running by September 2010.

In articulation with the project "The Children of the Colonial War", coordinated by Margarida Calafate Ribeiro, a contract between the project and the Portuguese Ministry of National Defense was signed in 2009, concerning the research and dissemination of results on the Portuguese colonial war, memory and posttraumatic stress disorder as well as the war's side effects side effects on post-war generations.

#### **Future Research**

#### **Objectives**

One of the objectives of the RG for the future is strengthening the links with other RG, namely through collaborations in PhD programmes.

The very successful "Postcolonialisms and Global Citizenship" is now on its 4th edition. 7 MA theses have been completed and 35 PhD theses are currently under way (co-coord: António Sousa Ribeiro and Margarida Calafate Ribeiro).

Rui Bebiano collaborates in the CES PhD "Democracy in the 21st Century".

In a partnership CES/ Faculty of Arts, the PhD "Languages and Heterodoxies: History, Poetics and Social Practices" is being launched in September (coord: António Sousa Ribeiro). It is a revised edition of the still ongoing PhD "Language(s), Identities and

#### **Future Research**

Globalization" (CES/Faculty of Arts and School of Economics). Graça Capinha (cocoord.), Isabel Pedro and Rui Bebiano are part of its teaching team.

A new PhD "Heritage of Portuguese Influence" (coord: Margarida Calafate Ribeiro, NECC, and Walter Rossa, NAU) has been submitted and approved by the Univ. of Coimbra and is expected to be running in 2010-2011, pending the approval of the Science National Agency.

Training young scholars is an important objective. 3 PhD dissertations are expected to be completed in 2010 (in History, Musicology, and in Postcolonial Studies). Other dissertations are currently under way under the supervision of members of the RG.

Training also involves Junior Researchers in the research projects (2 in each of the 3 running projects). 2 MA dissertations have been completed in 2009 (see above) and another, on women poets published in little magazines, is to be submitted by Cristina Nery in 2010. The supervision of doctoral candidates and post-doc students comes under this objective (as well as under "internationalization"). The RG has welcomed the new BII (Bolsas de Integração na Investigação). Following up on the successful experience of 2009 (see above), another BII recipient has joined "New Poetics of Resistance". Poetry workshops in primary and secondary schools will continue to be offered.

The interdisciplinary vocation of the RG is reflected in its projects – in progress, in FCT evaluation, and future ones. Cluster themes such as violence, heterodoxies, silences, postcolonial writing, women's writing, history of the present, migrations, poetics and epistemology, politics of language and methodologies such as life-writing and oral history provide the interconnections between the members working in different disciplines.

"Children of the Colonial Wars" and "New Poetics of Resistance" will be completed in 2010. These two areas of research are far from exhausted and we hope to broaden the scope of analysis with new approaches and yet to be explored material, in the framework of follow-up projects to be submitted.

In February 2009, the project "Silence, Silencing, Resistance. An Interdisciplinary Cartography", involving 12 researchers and coordinated by António Sousa Ribeiro, was submitted to FCT for funding. Organized along a broad range of case studies in the fields of history, feminist studies, queer studies and literary and cultural studies, it aimed at an analysis of the political, social and cultural meanings of silence in contemporary societies. The evaluation panel rated the project highly, crediting it with being "well thought out and carefully described" and focusing on "a very relevant topic that will have national and international impact", yet the proposal was not selected for funding. Although more than six months have already gone by, a thoroughly argued appeal to FCT against this decision still awaits an answer. The same applies to the project proposal "Cidades Coloniais" under the coordination of Margarida Calafate Ribeiro (NECC) and Walter Rossa (NAU). "As mulheres portuguesas e os movimentos de libertação africanos" was submmited in December.

#### **Future Research**

Events open to a non-academic public are deemed vital. The highly successful Advanced Training courses on Creative Writing (coordinated by Graça Capinha, with the participation of other RG members) and on the Literatures of Cabo Verde, Guiné-Bissau and São Tomé e Príncipe (Coordinated by Margarida Calafate Ribeiro (NECC) and Silvio Renato Jorge (Universidade Federal Fluminense, Brazil), are to be offered again in 2010. These are two important lines of research in NECC, namely poetics and postcolonial literatures.

Migration and Feminist Studies are two other areas of reference. Two Advanced Training Courses on Women's Life Writing are planned, one in collaboration with NEP (Peace Studies RG); coord: Adriana Bebiano and Tatiana Moura (NEP) and another with NEM (Migration Studies RG); coord: Clara Keating and Elsa Lechner (NEM), thus strengthening the links between different RG within CES. Following up on the acquired scholarship on the representations of violence, a course on this subject is to be offered (coord: António Sousa Ribeiro).

The following colloquiums are currently being organized: "The Recent History of Portuguese Architecture (collaboration with NAU, Urbanism and Architecture RG); "The poetry of the colonial war"; "The Poetics of Resistance".

6 NECC members are the core group of the Coimbra International Meetings of Poets' organizing committee, which will have its 7th edition in 2010 (coordination: Maria Irene Ramalho).

Members of the RG will continue to be encouraged to increase the number of publications. Apart from a number of articles and book chapters to be submitted (with several contributions already accepted and pending publication), 5 books are due to appear in 2010 (on Contemporary History, Representations of Violence, Musicology, Poetry Translation, and Women and Theology). Members of the RG will be the guest editors of thematic issues of RCCS on "Feminist Studies" (Adriana Bebiano and Maria Irene Ramalho), on "Violence, Memory and Representation" (António Sousa Ribeiro, in collaboration with Sílvia Maeso and Cecília MacDowell Santos of the RG Democracy, Multicultural Citizenship and Participation).

Funding, source, dates

"Children of the Colonial Wars: Postmemory and Representations" (2007-2010), funded by FCT, Coordinator: Margarida Calafate Ribeiro, 115.000,00 euros.

"New Poetics of Resistance: the Twenty-first Century in Portugal" (2007-2010), funded by FCT, Coordinator: Graça Capinha, 75.000,00 euros.

"E-learning course on Patrimónios de Influência Portuguesa" (Portuguese Influenced Heritages), (2009-2010) coordinated by Margarida Calafate Ribeiro and Walter Rossa, funded by Instituto Camões, 11.000 euros.

"Cátedra Eduardo Lourenço – Formação e-learning sobre "Estudos Pós-Coloniais" (2010), funded by Instituto Camões and University of Bologna (Italy); Coordinatos: Margarida Calafate Ribeiro and Roberto Vecchi; 14.000,00 euros.

#### **Peace Studies**

**Group Description** 

Title of Research (RG-Centro-50012-3227)
Group: (RG-Centro-50012-3227)
Peace Studies

**Principal** 

José Manuel Marques da Silva Pureza

**Main Scientific** 

**Investigator:** 

Domain: Ciências Jurídicas e Ciências Políticas

Group Host Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da

**Institution:** Universidade de Coimbra

Funding, source, dates Funding, source, dates

Trajectories of violence dissemination and containment: comparing Bissau and Praia, Fundação para a Ciência e Tecnologia, Coord. by José Manuel Pureza, 2007-2009, 82.000 euros.

Portuguese Cooperation: Strengthening Human Security in Institutionally Weak State, Coord. by José Manuel Pureza, Instituto Português de Apoio ao Desenvolvimento (IPAD), 2007-2009. 82.835,89 euros.

Gender, Violence and Public Security, Coord. by Tatiana Moura, Ford Foundation, 2008-2009, 200 000 euros.

HUMCRICON, Humanitarian crisis and conflict studies. Bridging the gap between European Research, policy and practice, Coord. by José Manuel Pureza, Marie Curie Actions, European Union, 2006-2009, 50.985 euros.

National Strategy for Education and Development, Coord. by José Manuel Pureza, Instituto Português de Apoio ao Desenvolvimento (IPAD), 2009, 6.000 euros.

#### **Objectives & Achievements**

#### **Objectives**

This Research Group e co-coordinated by Maria Raquel Freire and Tatiana Moura.

Peace studies are currently a research area of utmost relevance in the research-action framing of Social Sciences. Its main assumption is that to the various facets of violence (not only physical and direct, but also structural and cultural) correspond different levels of peace (not only the absence of war, but also environmental balance, economic and social justice, political freedom and participation, and tolerance and multicultural openness). Hence, one of the key objectives of the research carried out by the Peace Studies Group (NEP) is to reveal the mechanisms producing and promoting violences and identify corresponding strategies of peacebuilding as transformative dynamics of the social.

Within this framework, the research developed so far has focused on three main topics: a) a critical analysis of peacebuilding processes as elements of contemporary liberal global governance and its impacts in postcolonial contexts; b) newest wars, taking

place in micro-territories (urban landscapes) and their crucial economic, cultural and social ingredients; c) small arms regulation, both on the demand and on the supply sides, and the connection between arms culture and gender violence.

These objectives are implied in the establishment of an Observatory on Gender and Armed Violence (OGAV) in June 2008. Its main activities envisage contributing to promote and strengthen the creation and consolidation of a research area on gender and armed violence at CES and in Portugal. Additionally, OGAV intends to establish itself as a key platform for research and intervention projects in this area in Europe, Portuguese-speaking countries and Latin American countries.

Main Achievements

NEP identifies 4 main achievements in its trajectory:

- a) Integration in the international network of peace studies centres being recognised as a reference research group in Portugal in the area of peace studies. The participation in the EU funded consortium Initiative for Peacebuilding, coordinated by International Alert; in the network who brings together NEP, HEGOA, Spain and the Grupo de Estudios Africanos, Spain; and in the CAPS exchange programme with International Relations professors from PUCRio (Brazil) and PUC São Paulo, are examples of this.
- b) Articulation between research and teaching the activities developed by NEP have been object of debate within the working programme of the PhD in International Politics and Conflict Resolution (School of Economics), with the seminars, publications and other initiatives.
- c) Diversification of funding sources research projects have been funded by different institutions including Fundação para a Ciência e a Tecnologia (FCT), Instituto Português de Apoio ao Desenvolvimento (IPAD), the European Commission, and the Ford Foundation.
- d) Dissemination of results this has mainly followed 3 different models: the organisation of training courses; the production of documentaries and video materials ("Luto como Mãe" (www.lutocomomae.com) and "Fala di Mindjeris"); the organisation of photo exhibitions ("Disarming sight violence and small arms in Portugal") and P@x, an online newsletter, published quarterly, available online and disseminated through a mailing list with over 1400 entries.

We single out the following activities carried out in 2009:

- i) Completion of the projects
- a. "Rostos Invisíveis" ["Invisible Faces"], a 24 month development education project, co-funded by IPAD, in partnership with the development NGO Instituto Marquês de Valle Flor, on the forms of violence perpetrated against and by women and girls in Brazil, Portugal (2008) and Guinea-Bissau (2009).
- Training course "Gender and Violence", aimed at youth associations and NGO's,

Guinea-Bissau, February 7-8 2009.

- Publication of the manual Mulheres e violências. Combater a violência: propostas para a Guiné-Bissau. Lisboa: Instituto Marquês de Valle Flor (Roque, Sílvia; Negrão, Sara (2009)
- b. "Trajectories of violence dissemination and containment: a comparative study of Bissau and Praia", a 24 month project funded by FCT, on youth violence.
- Training course "Youth and violence: Factors and Answers", aimed at youth associations, INEP, Bissau, Guinea-Bissau, November 29-30.
- Final seminar of the project "Violence trajectories: an analysis from the youth", CES Lisboa, Lisbon, Portugal, December 17.
- ii) Participation in the international campaign "Disarm Domestic Violence!", run by the IANSA (International Action Network on Small Arms) Women's Network, which involved data collection on the Portuguese reality, through the conduction of interviews with specialists on public security, health, social services and NGO which work on victims' support, and the application of questionnaires on small arms and domestic violence perceptions in victims centres, June-July 2009.
- iii) Premier of the documentary "Luto como Mãe" ["Right to mourn"], one of the products of the research-action project "Support programme for survivors of massacres in Rio de Janeiro" (2007-2010), produced by Cinema Nosso, Coimbra, June 29 2009. "Luto como Mãe" was selected to Rio's International Film Festival 2009 and to the Chilean International Film Festival of Viña del Mar (November 2009).
- iv) Book launch "Auto de Resistência. Relatos de familiares de vítimas de violência armada" (Barbara Musumeci Soares, Tatiana Moura and Carla Afonso, Rio de Janeiro: 7 Letras) –product of the research-action project "Support programme for survivors"-Rio de Janeiro, Brazil, July 24 2009.
- v) Organisation of the international Summer Course "The sex of violences", CES, Coimbra, Portugal, September 9-12 2009.
- vi) Organisation of the photo exhibition "Disarming sight: violence and small arms in Portugal", which documents the research project "Violence and Small Arms: the Portuguese case" (2008-2010), funded by the Portuguese Science and Technology Foundation, Coimbra, Portugal, September 12 2009.
- vii) Beginning of the research project "Early Warning: from analysis to action", a 36 month EU funded project (Instrument for Stability, Crisis Preparedness Component), coordinated by International Alert. NEP is involved in the "Youth, identities and security", and "Institutional constraints", with case studies of Rio de Janeiro (Brazil), San Salvador (El Salvador), Maputo (Mozambique), Bissau (Guinea-Bissau), Praia (Cape Verde) and Armenia.

#### **Group Productivity**

#### **Publications in peer review Journals**

Freire, Maria Raquel (2009), "A política externa em transição: o caso da Federação Russa", Relações Internacionais, 23, 75-89.

Freire, Maria Raquel (2009), "Russian Politics toward Central Asia: Supporting, Balancing, Coercing or Imposing?", Asian Perspective, 33, 2, 125-149.

Freire, Maria Raquel (2009), "Ukraine's Muli-Vectorial Foreign Policy: Looking West While not Overlooking its Eastern Neighbor", UNISCI Discussion Papers, 20, 232-249.

Freire, Maria Raquel; Ferreira-Pereira, Laura C. (2009), "International Relations in Portugal: The State of the Field and Beyond", Global Society, 23, 1, 79-96.

Freire, Maria Raquel; Lopes, Paula Duarte (2009), "A Segurança Internacional e a Institucionalização da Manutenção da Paz no Âmbito da ONU: Riscos e Expectativas", E-cadernos, 6, 6-23.

Freire, Maria Raquel; Lopes, Paula Duarte; Nascimento, Daniela (2009), "A Securitização de Políticas Ambientais: O Caso do Darfur", Nação e Defesa, 123, 203-219.

Freire, Maria Raquel; Mendes, Carmen (2009), "Realpolitik Dynamics and Image Construction in the Russia-China Relationship: Forging a Strategic Partnership?", Journal of Current Chinese Affairs, 2, 27-52.

Lopes, Paula Duarte (2009), "Água no séc. XXI: desafios e oportunidades", Debater a Europa, 1, 76-98.

Lopes, Paula Duarte (2009), "Sharing water: evolution, threats and challenges", Lusotopie, 1, 177-192.

Moura, Tatiana; Roque, Sílvia; Araújo, Sara; Rafael Simões, Mónica; Santos, Rita (2009), "Invisibilidades da guerra e da paz: Violências contra as mulheres na Guiné-Bissau, em Moçambique e em Angola", Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, 86, 95-122.

Moura, Tatiana; Santos, Rita (2009), "Transformar o luto em luta: sobreviventes da violência armada no Rio de Janeiro", Revista da Faculdade de Direito da FMP, 3, 207-236.

Nascimento, Daniela (2009) "Humanitarianism at the crossroads: Dilemmas and Opportunities of the 'War on Terror', Portuguese Journal of International Affairs, (Autumn/Winter 2009), 59-69.

Simões, Rita; Peça, Marta (2009), "Da Estrada para a Passerelle. O tráfico de mulheres para fins de exploração sexual na imprensa", Revista Media e Jornalismo, 15, 83-102. Other publications International

Cravo, Teresa (2009), "O conceito de segurança humana: Indícios de uma mudança paradigmática?", in Reginaldo Mattar Nasser (org.), Os conflitos internacionais em múltiplas dimensões. São Paulo: UNESP.

Freire, Maria Raquel (2009), "Different Sides of Deterrence: Threat Perception and Image Building in Russia" in International Studies Association (org.) United States of America: ISA.

Freire, Maria Raquel (2009), "Russian Politics towards Central Asia: Supporting, Balancing, Coercing or Imposing?" in International Studies Association (org.), United States of America: ISA.

Freire, Maria Raquel (2009), "The EU and Russia: Forging a Strategic Partnership?", in Roger E. Kanet (org.), A Resurgent Russia and the West: The European Union, NATO and Beyond. Dordrecht: Republic of Letters, 71-92.

Freire, Maria Raquel (2009), "The OSCE in the New Central Asia", in Emilian Kavalski (org.), The New Central Asia: The Regional Impact of International Actors. London: World Scientific Publishing Company.

Freire, Maria Raquel; Lopes, Paula Duarte (2009), "International Security and the Institutionalization of Peacekeeping: Perils and Prospects" in ABRI-ISA (org.) Brazil: ABRI-ISA.

Freire, Maria Raquel; Lopes, Paula Duarte (2009), "Peacekeeping Operations: Keeping Whose Peace?" in International Studies Association (org.) United States of America: ISA.

Freire, Maria Raquel; Lopes, Paula Duarte (2009), "Rethinking Peace and Violence: New Dimensions and New Strategies", in Paula Duarte Lopes e Stephen Ryan (org.), Rethinking Peace and Security: New Dimensions, Strategies and Actors. Bilbao: University of Deusto, 13-29.

Freire, Maria Raquel; Simão, Licinia (2009), "ENP and Post-Soviet Transition in the South-Caucasus: Triangulating Democracy, Security and Stability", in Kathrin Brockmann e David Bosold (org.), Democratization and Security in Central and Eastern Europe and the Post-Soviet States. Berlin: German Council on Foreign Relations (DGAP).

Lopes, Paula Duarte; Ryan, Stephen (orgs.) (2009), Rethinking Peace and Security: New Dimensions, Strategies and Actors. Bilbao: University of Deusto.

Moura, Tatiana; Roque, Sílvia (2009), "Invisible Vulnerabilities. The Cases of Rio de Janeiro (Brazil) and San Salvador (El Salvador)", in Denis Day et al. (org.), Cities and

Crises. Bilbao: Bilbao University Press.

Nascimento, Daniela (2009), "China in Africa: a mutually beneficial strategic partnership? The case of Sudan" (with Carmen Amado Mendes) in International Studies Association (org.) United States of America: ISA.

Nascimento, Daniela (2009), "The Denial of Economic and Social Rights as a Cause of Conflict in Sudan: A Critical Analysis of Dominant Conflict Prevention Models", in Paula Duarte Lopes, Stephen Ryan (org.), Rethinking Peace and Security: New Dimensions, Strategies and Actors. Bilbao: University of Deusto, 53-67.

Peça, Marta (2009), "Media Matters: Women's Organizations and the public sphere (em co-autoria com Maria João Silveirinha)", Utrecht: 7th European Feminism Research Conference.

Pureza, José Manuel (2009), "Democracia limitada y paz liberal:anotaciones sobre el 'totus orbis' en tiempo de globalización neoliberal", in Alfonso Guerra e José Félix Tezanos (org.), La calidad de la democracia. Las democracias del siglo XXI. Madrid: Editorial Sistema, 431-438.

Pureza, José Manuel (2009), "Segurança humana: vinho novo em odres velhos?", in Reginaldo Mattar Nasser (org.), Os conflitos internacionais em múltiplas dimensões. São Paulo: UNESP, 21-33.

Pureza, José Manuel; Simões, Mónica Rafael, José, André Cristiano e Marcelino, Carla (2009), "Las nuevas operaciones de Paz de Naciones Unidas: los casos de Angola, Timor Oriental y Mozambique", in Monica Hirst (org.), Crisis del Estado e intervención internacional. Buenos Aires: Edhasa.

Roque, Sílvia (2009), "Peacebuilding in Guinea-Bissau: a critical approach", NOREF Report, 7.

Santos, Rita; Moura, Tatiana (2009), "Transforming mourning into fighting: survivors of armed violence", in Day, D.; Grindsted, A.; Piquard, B.; Zammit, D. (org.), Cities and Crises. Bilbao: Bilbao University Press, 91-102.

Simões, Mónica Rafael (2009), "A construção da paz em Angola", in Reginaldo Mattar Nasser (org.), Os conflitos internacionais em múltiplas dimensões. São Paulo: Editora UNESP, 159-169.

Soares, Bárbara; Moura, Tatiana; Afonso, Carla (orgs.) (2009), Auto de Resistência. Relatos de Familiares de Vítimas da Violência Armada. Rio de Janeiro, Brazil: 7Letras.

#### Other publications National

Adams, Jacqueline (2009), "Solidarity Art and Repressive Regimes", Oficinas do CES, 327.

Adams, Jacqueline (2009), "To Take with You a Little Piece of Chile:" Exiles and Art from Home", Oficina do CES, 331.

Cardoso, Katia; Roque, Sílvia (2009), "Editorial - Jovens, Marginalização e Violência", P@x. Online Bulletin of the Peace Studies Group, 13.

Freire, Maria Raquel (2009), "(Des)securitizing Policies and Practices: EU-Russia Relations and the 'War on Terrorism' – Building Bridges or Closing Borders?", Oficina do CES, 329.

Freire, Maria Raquel (2009), "A Rússia Pós-Soviética: Pragmatismo, Multi-Vectorialismo e Reafirmação", Zoom – Revista do Centro de Estudos do Curso de Relações Internacionais, Minho University, 17, 25-33.

Freire, Maria Raquel (2009), "Ásia Central: O Regresso do 'Eurasianismo' às Políticas Russas", Revista Autor.

Freire, Maria Raquel (2009), "Nada de Novo a Leste: Rearmamento, Remilitarização e Reforma Militar na Rússia", Mundus, 9, 8.

Lopes, Paula Duarte (2009), "Os ODM: política internacional e cidadania", Mundus, Edição X, Dezembro, 3.

Moura, Tatiana; Roque, Sílvia (2009), "Estratégias de guerra contra mulheres em contextos de não guerra", P@x. Online Bulletin of the Peace Studies Group, 12.

Nascimento, Daniela (2009), "Sudan: Between the Promise of Peace in the South and the Uncertainty of War in Darfur", Oficina do CES, 316.

Peça, Marta (2009), "Da Estrada para a Passerelle. O tráfico de mulheres para fins de exploração sexual na imprensa (em co-autoria com Rita Basílio de Simões)", Lisbon: Congresso Feminista.

Peça, Marta (2009), "Os movimentos de mulheres e os media", Lisbon: SOPCOM - Sociedade dos Media: Comunicação, Política e Tecnologia.

Pureza, José Manuel (2009), "Património Comum da Humanidade", in A. Gattinni e Pedro Hespanha (org.), Dicionário da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Almedina.

Roque, Sílvia (2009), "Guiné Bissau: é suficiente reformar a segurança?", P@x. Online Bulletin of the Peace Studies Group, 11.

Roque, Sílvia (2009), "Percursos da violência pós-guerra em El Salvador: uma introdução", Cabo dos Trabalhos, 3.

Roque, Sílvia; Negrão, Sara (2009), "Mulheres e Violências: Combater as violências: propostas para a Guiné-Bissau", Lisbon: Instituto Marquês Valle Flor (manual).

Roque, Sílvia; Negrão, Sara (2009), Mulheres e violências. Combater a violência:

propostas para a Guiné-Bissau. Lisboa: Instituto Marquês de Valle Flor.

## Master and Ph.D. thesis completed

José Manuel Pureza

Marcelino, Carla. PhD thesis "Crianças-soldado entre a justica, a reconciliacao e a paz: justica juvenil transitória", Programme on International Politics and Conflict Resolution - CES/FEUC, University of Coimbra.

### Maria Raquel Freire

Nunes, Pedro dos Reis. Master thesis "O projecto ALBA: Equilibrando um Mundo Desequilibrado", Master in International Relations, School of Economics, University of Coimbra.

Pinto, Danielle Jacon Ayres. Master thesis "Mediação de conflitos internacionais e a inserção mundial do Brasil", Master in International Relations, School of Economics, University of Coimbra.

Ranito, Jovana. Master thesis "Limitations in post-conflict cooperative security: Kosovo after 1999", Master in International Relations, School of Economics, University of Coimbra. (Co-supervision with T.C.Gomes)

#### Paula Duarte Lopes

Brito, Rafaela. Master thesis Securitizing Climate Change, Master in International Relations, FEUC, University of Coimbra.

Masri, Lorena Pontes. Master thesis "Cooperação Sul-Sul: o modelo dos novos atores com velhos interesses", Master in International Relations, FEUC, University of Coimbra.

#### **Patents/propotypes**

Not applicable.

## **Organization of conferences**

Cardoso, Katia; Roque, Sílvia, Peça, Marta, organisation of the seminar "Jovens e violência: condições e respostas" ["Youth and violence: conditions and responses"], INEP, Bissau, 29-30 November.

Cardoso, Katia; Roque, Sílvia; Peça, Marta, organisation of the seminar "Trajectórias da violência: uma análise a partir das experiências dos jovens" ["Violence trajectories: an analysis from the experiences of the youth"], Centre for Social Studies, Lisbon, 17 December.

Freire, Maria Raquel, organisation of the Cycle of Conferences "O Papel da União Europeia no Mundo e o Diálogo Intercultural" ["The Role of the European Union in the World and in Intercultural Dialogue"], School of Economics, University of Coimbra, 18 March (with IPRI and support from the European Commission and the Centre Jacques Delors).

Freire, Maria Raquel; Lopes, Paula Duarte, coordination of the training course on "Global Terrorism", Centre for Social Studies, Coimbra, with Peace Operations Training Institute (POTI), United Nations Organisation.

Lopes, Paula Duarte, organisation of the International Seminar "Em Defesa do Direito à Água" ["In defense of the Right to Water"], Lisbon, 10 January (with Bau, João; Almeida, João M.; Calvário, Rita; Cortes, Rui; Neto, Susana).

Moura, Tatiana; Santos, Rita, organisation of the Summer Course "The Sex of Violences", Peace Studies Group (NEP) and the Observatory on Gender and Armed Violence (OGiVA), Centre for Social Studies, Coimbra, 9-12 September.

Pureza, José Manuel, organisation of the IV Jornadas Ibero-Americanas de Estudios Internacionales, Asociación Española de Profesores de Derecho Internacional y Relaciones Internacionales and Sociedade Portuguesa de Direito Internacional, Lisbon, 23-25 November.

Roque, Sílvia, organisation of the training course "Gender and Violences", Bissau, Guinea-Bissau, 7-8 February.

#### **Industry contract research**

Not applicable.

#### Internationalization

Collaborative publications, joint research, graduate training internationalisation have always been a top priority for NEP. Initiatives on these domains have been materialised along two major complementary lines. First, a privileged epistemological and institutional relation with the South. Great part of the research developed so far by NEP has focused on the reality of African and Latin American countries. Those projects have been conducted by bi-national research teams, aiming at a joint knowledge production process and at participatory working methodologies. International consulting processes and international experts meetings have been implemented in all those projects. Also a regular exchange of researchers with research centres in Latin America (Brazil, Argentina) has taken place.

The second line focused on the inclusion of NEP in European and world-wide networks. A special mention must be made to EDEN (European Doctorate Enhancement on Peace and Conflict Studies), to which NEP is connected through its PhD Programme and which gathers several top quality European universities in this area (Uppsala, Bradford, Kent, Utrecht, among others). Within EDEN, NEP has also

been a Marie Curie Training site for PhD students working on Peace and Conflict all over Europe. Also advocacy networks (like IANSA, the International Action Network on Small Arms) and research-action consortia (like "Initiative for Peace", gathering International Alert, Netherlands Institute of International Relations Clingendael, Saferworld, Fundación para las Relaciones Internacionales y el Diálogo Exterior; the network who brings together NEP, HEGOA, Spain and the Grupo de Estudios Africanos, Spain; and the CAPS exchange programme with International Relations professors from PUCRio (Brazil) and PUC São Paulo) have been targeted as strategic objectives of NEP's activities. More recently, NEP's involvement in COST Action IS0805, approved in November under the topic "New Challenges of Peacekeeping and the European Union's Role in Multilateral Crisis Management", is another example of internationalisation and joint research.

Government/Organization contract research

Portuguese Cooperation: Strengthening Human Security in Institutionally Weak State, Coord. by José Manuel Pureza, Instituto Português de Apoio ao Desenvolvimento (IPAD), 2007-2009. 82.835,89 euros.

Gender, Violence and Public Security, Coord. by Tatiana Moura, Ford Foundation, 2008-2009, 200 000 euros.

National Strategy for Education and Development, Coord. by José Manuel Pureza, Instituto Português de Apoio ao Desenvolvimento (IPAD), 2009, 6.000 euros

# Future Research Objectives

Building on the research being developed and consolidated, and thinking ahead on ways of maximising acquired knowledge and experience, NEP envisages to enlarge the application of its critical conceptual framing to four different, though correlated areas of research: a) peace media; b) the war on terror; c) the impacts of small and light weapons' trade; d) peacekeeping.

The development of an area of research and training dealing with peace media aims at responding to an increasing need to further research on this ever-growing crucial dimension of peacebuilding, where the involvement of non-traditional actors, with potentially high levels of impact, makes this an area of utmost relevance, both in contexts of violence and formal peace. The study of peace media will help to better understand its influence in dealing with continuums of peace and violence. Providing training courses in this area is also an innovative contribution which might generate positive synergies among practitioners, particularly those involved directly in media-related activities.

As for the war on terror, NEP is planning the organisation of an international conference to discuss the theme, on the lines of a critical assessment of its contours, discussing why, what and how this has evolved and the implications inherent to this evolution. The gaps enhanced along with manipulated structures of power restraining

#### **Future Research**

emancipatory practices are also focus of discussion.

The plans for a closer look at the United Nations work on the regulation of the trade of small arms and light weapons emerge as an urgent complement to the research already being carried out on violence and light weapons. On the one hand, it offers empirical evidence and conceptual support to the propositions under analysis, whereas on the other hand, it fits the internationalisation objective of the research group well, by allowing a wider dissemination and reflection of the research being conducted in this particular field subject.

Finally, research on peacekeeping missions aims mainly at addressing the most relevant contemporary conceptual debates on this crucial issue for international peace. On the one side, an identification of the possibilities and limitations of these operations, as increasingly institutionalised and relevant mechanisms for peacebuilding, will be undertaken; on the other side, a critical analysis of the evolving discourses and ideological assumptions that support the missions will be developed.

The overall objective of these complementary avenues of research is dual. By following the main goals of NEP, it aims at reinforcing research on peace and violence and identifying differentiated mechanisms that might better respond to peacebuilding contexts. By broadening the focus of study, to include peace journalism and peacekeeping missions, it aims at complementing and furthering the research developed so far, consolidating the Peace Studies Group activities, both in theoretical and empirical terms.

#### Funding, source, dates

Violence and Small Arms: the Portuguese case, Fundação para a Ciência e Tecnologia, Coord. by José Manuel Pureza, 2007-2010, 116.658 euros.

Early Warning Systems, from analysis to action, European Union, Coord. by Tatiana Moura, 2009-2011, 84.749,35 euros.

New Challenges of Peacekeeping and the European Union's Role in Multilateral Crisis Management, Cost Actions/European Union, Coord. by Maria Raquel Freire, 2009-2012.

Consultancy project "Conflict, violence and state fragility in West Africa", (NOREF - Norwegian Peacebuilding Centre), Coord. by Sílvia Roque, 2010, 13.700 euros.

Assessing the "One Country, Two Systems" Formula: The role of Macau in China's Relations with the EU and the Portuguese Speaking Countries., Fundação para a Ciência e Tecnologia, Coord. by Carmen Mendes, 2010-2013, 100.000 euros.

SPBUILD, Sustainable Peacebuilding, Coordinated by University of Deusto (Spain), Marie Curie Actions, European Union, Coord. by Paula Duarte Lopes, 2010-2013, CES budget - 269.773 euros.

# **Migration Studies**

**Group Description** 

Title of Research
Group: (RG-Centro-50012-3344)
Migration Studies

Principal

Domain:

Maria Ioannis Bennis Baganha

**Main Scientific** 

**Investigator:** 

Sociologia, Antropologia, Demografia e Geografia

Group Host Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da

**Institution:** Universidade de Coimbra

Funding, source, dates Funding, source, dates

"Ukrainians in Portugal", funded by the High Commission for Immigration and Intercultural Dialogue (ACIDI), 2008-2009 – Coordinated by José Carlos Marques, 5.445 euros:

"Cape Verdians in Portugal", funded by the High Commission for Immigration and Intercultural Dialogue (ACIDI), 2008-2009 - Coordinated by Pedro Góis, 5.445 euros;

"Foreigners paths in the judicial criminal system", funded by the High Commission for Immigration and Intercultural Dialogue (ACIDI), 2008-2009 - Coordinated by Graça Fonseca, 5.445 euros.

# **Objectives & Achievements**

#### **Objectives**

This Research Group is co-coordinated by Elsa Lechner and José Carlos Marques

The Group has two main objectives: 1. To be a forum for graduate and post-graduate students working on Migration Studies; 2. To aggregate capacities, know-how and team work to compete successfully at national and international levels for research projects and their subsequent elaboration.

As a forum for graduate and post-graduate students the group organises Ph D workshops to discuss ongoing work; promotes seminars with leading experts on Migration Studies; and offers effective international participation with more than 20 leading research institutions, through the group partnership in the European Network of Excellence IMISCOE.

The core of the group has been working together on research projects since the late 1990's, we have achieved not only a high level of efficiency and productivity as a team but given our cohesion we have been able to integrate in a smooth, successful, and very easy way newcomers and junior researchers.

Main Achievements

During the last years the Research Group achieved several important goals.

To won, in the 5th Framework Program of the European Commission, 1.6 million Euros to coordinate and carry out the European project "The Political Economy of

Migration in an Integrating Europe" (PEMINT). It was a main achievement because we were a very small team that had to do the research work on Portugal, and simultaneously to coordinate seven other research teams from six different countries. The work went smoothly and very successfully.

To be invited as one of the applicants that elaborates the proposal to form a European Network of Excellence. This proposal was the only one chosen on our area and consequently we became a partner of the European Network of Excellence IMISCOE. IMISCOE won 5 million Euros from the European Commission to promote research in the fields of migration and integration, what essentially means that over the last four years all the members of the group, particularly the graduate and post-graduate students, have been financially supported to attend workshops, summer courses, conferences and research meetings while doing their dissertations or pos-doc research projects.

#### **Group Productivity**

#### **Publications in peer review Journals**

Baganha, Maria; Marques, José Carlos; Góis, Pedro (2009), "Imigrantes em Portugal: uma síntese histórica", Ler História , 56, 123-133.

Góis, Pedro; Ioannis Baganha, Maria; Marques, José Carlos (2009), "Imigrantes em Portugal: uma síntese histórica", Ler História, 56.

Góis, Pedro; Marques, José Carlos (2009), "Portugal as a semiperipheral country in the global migration system", International Migration, OIM, Genéve.

Lechner, Elsa (2009), "Migração, pesquisa biográfica e emancipação social: contributos para a análise dos impactos da pesquisa biográfica junto de migrantes", Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, 85, Junho 2009.

Leitão, Nuno Carlos (2009), "Portuguese Tourism Demand", Journal of Global Business and Technology.

Leitão, Nuno Carlos; Faustino, Horácio C. (2009), "Intra- Industry Trade in the Automobile Components Industry: An Empirical Analysis", Journal of Global Business and Technology.

Marques, José Carlos (2009), "As Migrações Portuguesas Contemporâneas", Ler História, 56, 27-44.

Rosenfeld, Martin; Góis, Pedro; Lenz, Annika; Rea, Andrea; Reytjens, Pascal (2009), "La dimension transnationale de l'immigration brésilienne en Europe", Hommes & Migrations, 1281.

Yoshida, Yushi; Leitão, Nuno Carlos; Faustino, Horácio C. (2009), "Vertical Intra-Industry Trade and Foreign Direct Investment between Japan and European Countries",

Atlantic Economic Journal.

## **Other publications International**

Baganha, Maria; Marques, José Carlos; Góis, Pedro (2009), "Tendenzen der Einwanderung nach Portugal seit der Nelkenrevolution", in Teresa Pinheiro (org.), Portugiesische Migrationen. Geschichte, Repräsentation und Erinnerungskulturen. Wiesbaden: VS Verlag für Sozialwissenschaften, 57-70.

Góis, Pedro (2009), Assessment of Brazilian Migration Patterns and Assisted Voluntary Return Programme from selected European Member States to Brazil. Brussels: International Organisation for Migration.

Góis, Pedro (org.) (2009), Identity Processes and Dynamics in Multiethnic Europe. Amsterdam: Amsterdam University Press.

Góis, Pedro (2009), Onderzoek naar Braziliaanse migratiepatronen en programma's van bijgestane vrijwillige terugkeer vanuit geselecteerde Europese Unie lidstaten naar Brazilië (ONDERZOEKSRAPPORT). Brussels: International Organisation for Migration.

Góis, Pedro (2009), "Cape Verdeanness as a complex social construct: analysis of ethnicity trough complexity theory", in Charles Westin; J. Bastos; J. Daninhem; Pedro Góis (org.), Identity processes and dynamics in multi-ethnic Europe. Amsterdam: Amsterdam University Press.

Góis, Pedro; Marques, José Carlos (2009), "Portugal – eine Semiperipherie im globalen Migrationssytem: Aus- und Einwanderung als verschränkte Phänomene", in Teresa Pinheiro (org.), Portugiesische Migrationen. Geschichte, Repräsentation und Erinnerungskulturen. Wiesbaden: VS Verlag für Sozialwissenschaften, 37-53.

Lechner, Elsa (2009), "D'un dispositif émancipatoire des migrants", in Christine Delory-Momberger e Christophe Niewiadomski (org.), Vivre, survivre, récits de résistance. Paris: Téraèdre.

Marques, José Carlos (2009), "Die portugiesische Emigration nach dem 'Ende der portugiesischen Emigration'", in Teresa Pinheiro (org.), Portugiesische Migrationen. Geschichte, Repräsentation und Erinnerungskulturen. Wiesbaden: VS Verlag für Sozialwissenschaften, 23-36.

Other publications National

Góis, Pedro; Marques, José Carlos; Padilla, Beatriz; Peixoto, João (2009), "Segunda ou terceira vaga? As características da imigração brasileira recente em Portugal", Migrações, 5, 111-133.

Lechner, Elsa (org.) (2009), Histórias de vida: olhares interdisciplinares. Porto: Afrontamento.

Lechner, Elsa (org.) (2009), Migração, saúde e diversidade cultural. Lisboa: Imprensa

de Ciências Sociais.

Lechner, Elsa (2009), O essencial sobre migração e conflito. Coimbra: Angelus Novus.

Lechner, Elsa (2009), "A biografização como alternativa à medicalização da experiência migratória", in Elsa Lechner (org.), Migração, saúde e diversidade cultural. Lisboa: ICS.

Lechner, Elsa (2009), "Biografia e transmissão na diápora portuguesa em França", in Daniel Melo e Eduardo Caetano da Silva (org.), A construção da nação e o associativismo português na diáspora. Lisboa: ICS.

Lechner, Elsa (2009), "Diálogos de vida: as entrevistas biográficas no estudo da imigração", in Elsa Lechner (org.), Histórias de vida: olhares interdisciplinares. Porto: Afrontamento.

# Master and Ph.D. thesis completed

Not applicable during this year.

### Patents/propotypes

Not applicable.

# **Organization of conferences**

Organization of the workshop "A new global player: recent Brazilian migration patterns", Copenhagen, Denmark, 14 September to 18 October 2009 (with Pascal Reyntjens International Organization for Migration, Belgium).

#### **Industry contract research**

Not applicable.

#### Internationalization

During the last years, the researchers of this RG have been involved in several international research projects.

The RG is part with other 23 established European research institutes of the European network of excellence "International Migration, Integration and Social Cohesion (IMISCOE)". Some of its researchers are also member of the International Metropolis Project which is a forum for bridging research, policy and practice on migration and diversity. The researchers are also part of different international scientific associations thus promoting their internationalization (International Sociological Association, European Sociological Association, European Population Association, etc.).

The researchers of this unit have presented their work at several international conferences in Denmark, Belgium, Brazil, Spain or Germany.

# **Government/Organization contract research**

Some projects have been funded by Government organizations which reveal the collaboration of the Migration Group in the development of studies that could be used in public policies:

"Ukrainians in Portugal", funded by the High Commission for Immigration and Intercultural Dialogue (ACIDI), 2007-2008 - 5.445 euros;

"Cape Verdians in Portugal", funded by the High Commission for Immigration and Intercultural Dialogue (ACIDI), 2007-2008 - 5.445 euros;

"Foreigners paths in the judicial criminal system", funded by the High Commission for Immigration and Intercultural Dialogue (ACIDI), 2007-2008 - 5.445 euros;

"Short comparative analysis of three cultural consultations: Avicenne (Bobigny), Mortimor (Montreal), Miguel Bombarda (Lisboa), in Pussetti C. (coord.) 2009, Migrantes e Saúde Mental. A Construção da Competência Cultural, Observatório da Imigração, ACIDI.

#### **Future Research**

#### **Objectives**

Currently, we have several projects that point to an enlargement of our fields of interest, namely the development of action-research based on biographical workshops with migrants in Portugal.

Additionally, several PhD projects are being developed, regarding, among others, the return of the second generation to their countries of origin, the access to justice by immigrants, transnationalism, the professional mobility of internationally educated health care workers, migrant entrepreneurship, and the movement of professional sports players.

The Migration Studies Research Group has several pending project applications that involve the participation of other European, Canadian, North-American, Brazilian, French, and Cape-verdian research centres. If funded, these projects would extend the comparative perspective, essential in migration research.

Funding, source, dates

Survey and Analysis on the Immigrant Communities, Its Problems and Contributions to Local Development Dynamics in Braga and Guimarães Municipalities, funded by the High Commission for Immigration and Intercultural Dialogue (ACIDI), Coordinated by Pedro Góis, 2010 – 7.500 euros;

Immigrant Families: a longitudinal study of Brazilians, Cape-Verdians and Ukrainians in Portugal, funded by FCT and ACIDI, 2008-2010 – Coordinated by Maria Ioannis

#### **Future Research**

Baganha and Joana Sousa Ribeiro, 50.000 euros

Atlantic Waves: Brazilian Immigration to Portugal, funded by FCT, 2007-2010 – Coordinated by Maria Ioannis Baganha and José Carlos Marques, National consortium led by Socius/ISEG, 34.200 euros

"International Migration Integration and Social Cohesion in Europe" (IMISCOE), Network of Excellence, European Commission, 2004-2009 – Coordinated by José Carlos Marques, 44.241 euros

# **Labour and Trade Unionism**

**Group Description** 

Title of Research (RG-Centro-50012-3345)

**Group:** Labour and Trade Unionism

Principal
Investigator:

Elísio Guerreiro do Estanque

**Main Scientific** 

Domain: Sociologia, Antropologia, Demografia e Geografia

Group Host Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da

**Institution:** Universidade de Coimbra

Funding, source, dates Funding, source, dates

The Professional Field of Social Work: sociological study in order to create of social workers professional order, funded by the Professional Association of Social Workers, coordinated by António Casimiro Ferreira, 2009, 26.700 Euros.

Study of the Social Situation in Portugal, funded by União Geral dos Trabalhadores/UGT, coordinated by António Casimiro Ferreira, 2009, 24.000 Euros.

# Objectives & Achievements Objectives

This Research Group is coordinated by Elísio Estanque.

The strategic aims which guide the activity of the Research Group Labour and Trade Unionism consist, in the main, of highlighting the importance and centrality of studies on labour relations, trade unionism and inequalities, taking on a perspective which pursues the tradition of critical sociology – seeking objectivity but refusing neutrality, and combining methodological rigour, epistemological irreverence and constant theoretical updating – in defence of the values of citizenship and of labour rights as inalienable requirements for building up social and labour justice in the democratic society.

The studies and reflection we have been conducting on the world of labour, trade unionism and inequalities (found in class and gender) share this concern. In addition, the results of the research and the diagnoses we have developed, besides being inspired by the academic knowledge of the social sciences (national and international, especially as a result of contact with Latin-American colleagues), aim to set up an ongoing dialogue with social actors and partners, seeking mutual enrichment between social practices, theoretical reflection and empirical analysis. The trade union, entrepreneurial and institutional fields have thus represented privileged spheres for dialogue, partnership and cooperation. Hence, in tandem with research carried out within the academic community, the Research Group further aims to contribute to scientifically grounded knowledge which may assist the dialogue with social actors and economic agents committed to modernising our entrepreneurial fabric and to lending greater

democratic depth to society.

This Research Group further seeks actively to participate in the public debate, both by participating in academic gatherings and conferences, and by presenting reports and diagnoses requested by diverse institutions, associations and social actors, and, further, by regular appearances in the media.

#### **Main Achievements**

During 2009, the main achievements of this Research Group were in accordance with its strategic goals. The reinforcement of the centrality of studies on labour relations, trade unionism and inequalities, resulting both from the academic context (national and international) and dialogue with social actors and economic agents was evident in domains: the participation/organisation of national/international several events/conferences; the internationalisation of the Research Group activities through research networks; the planning of national and international research projects; the offer of pos-graduate courses (Master and PhD); the national and international publications; the participation in TV and Radio programmes; etc. Some of the topics presented bellow (in different sections of this form) are the best testimony of these achievements. However, we would like to emphasise the following:

- The continuity of the Conferences Cycle on "O Trabalho não é [é] uma mercadoria" [Labour is not [it is] a commodity], with the following invited speakers: (see below the list of conferences): Ilona Kovács (ISEG, U. Lisbon), Klaus Doerre (Jena Univesity, Germany), Reinhard Naumann (Friedrich Ebert Foundation)
- The organisation of a joint cicle of conferences between this Research Group, the Master and PhD Research Programs on "Labour Relations, Social Inequalities and Trade Unionism" and The Sociology Group from School of Economics (FEUC). Under this joint cicle the following invited speakers were present both at FEUC or CES: Giovanni Alves (UNESP/Marília, São Paulo), Sílvia Araújo (UFPE, Curitiba)
- Edition of editorial series CES/Almedina, titled "Labour and Society". The reference of the first published volume was the following: Costa, Hermes Augusto; Araújo, Pedro (2009), As vozes do trabalho nas multinacionais: o impacto dos Conselhos de Empresa Europeus em Portugal [The voices of labour within multunational companies: the impacts of European Works Councils in Portugal]. Coimbra: Almedina/CES.
- Submition of two international research projects to the FCT: "The legacy of trade unionism for the 21st century democracy: a prospective analysis", Ref<sup>a</sup> FCT: PTDC/CS-SOC/113002/2009; "Citizenship and governance in post-industrial port cities: a comparative study in Europe", Ref<sup>a</sup> FCT: PTDC/CS-SOC/114260/2009
- Coordination of Master and PhD Programmes on Relações de Trabalho, Desigualdades Sociais e Sindicalismo (at FEUC and CES).

#### **Publications in peer review Journals**

Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009), "The impacts of European Works Councils in Portugal" in Research Network 17 Industrial Relations, Labour Market Institutions and Employment (org.), European Society or European Societies?. Lisbon: ESA/RN 17, 1-20.

Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009), "The place of the international relations policy within national trade union organisations: the case of the CUT in Brazil", Revue Lusotopie, 26, 2, 41-64.

Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009), "A flexigurança em Portugal: desafios e dilemas da sua aplicação", Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, 86, 123-144.

Dias, Hugo (2009), "A participação dos sindicatos portugueses nos Conselhos Sindicais Inter-regionais", Iberografias - Revista de Estudos Ibéricos, 5, 61-74.

Estanque, Elísio (2009), "Trabalho e Sindicalismo – os impactos da crise", Finisterra , 65/66, 0, 135-150.

Ferreira, Virgínia (2009), "Employment Policies from a Gender Equality Perspective in Europe: developments and challenges", Options Méditerranéennes, n.° 87, 33-44.

Silva, Manuel Carvalho da (2009), "A Crise", As Causas, consequências e Saídas, Outono 2009/ISCTE-IU, 75-80.

Silva, Manuel Carvalho da; Garrido, Ulisses (2009), "Tecnologias, Inovação e Emprego", Revista Kriativ, Edição 002, ISTEC, 11-18.

Other publications International

Barca, Stefania (2009) Critical review on Tito Menzani (2008), Le bonifiche in Romagna, Imola: La Mandragora, 359, in Il mestiere di storico.

Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009), "Modalidades de cooperação laboral transnacional: obstáculos e oportunidades para o sindicalismo ibérico", in A. A. Buiza e E. J. M. Pérez (org.), Relaciones laborales y acción sindical transfronteriza. Granada: Editorial Comares, 193-229.

Estanque, Elísio (2009), "Sociologia e engajamento em Portugal: reflexões a partir do trabalho e do sindicalismo", CRH - Centro de Recursos Humanos, Salvador - Bahia, 22, 56, 311-324.

Estanque, Elísio (2009), "Trabalho, desigualdades e sindicalismo em Portugal", in Buiza, Alfredo y Perez, Enrique (org.), Relaciones Laborales y Ación Syndicale. Relaciones Laborales Transfronterizas, Portugal-España. Valladolid/ Granada: Instituto de Estudios Europeos, 127-150.

Ferreira, António Casimiro (2009), "The crisis and the dynamics of global justice" in ETUI (org.), The crisis and the transition to new models of work and welfare. Lisboa: ETUI, 1-11.

Ferreira, Virgínia (2009), "Flexible working time arrangements in Portugal", External report commissioned by and presented to the EU Directorate-General Employment and Social Affairs, Unit G1 'Equality between women and men'.

Silva, Manuel Carvalho da (2009), Organization of Labour, Family and Society, in Economic and Social Council /Europe Council, in collaboration with European CES /Europe Community /Fund. Calouste Gulbenkian (org.), European Conference Building Social Cohesion. Lisbon: Economic and Social Council, 85-90.

Other publications National

Bebiano, Rui (2009), Outubro. Coimbra: Angelus Novus.

Bebiano, Rui (2009), "O combate pela dignidade na memória do Gulag", LER, 85, 70-73.

Bebiano, Rui (2009), "Spartakus em Berlim", Tambores na Noite. Manual de leitura, folheto para a peço homónima de Bertolt Brecht, Porto, Teatro Nacional de São João, 18-20.

Costa, Hermes Augusto; Araújo, Pedro (2009), As vozes do trabalho nas multinacionais: o impacto dos Conselhos de Empresa Europeus em Portugal. Coimbra: Almedina/CES.

Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009), "Conselhos de Empresa", in A. D. Cattani, J-L Laville, L. I. Gaiger e P. Hespanha (org.), Dicionário internacional da outra economia. Coimbra: Almedina/CES, 68-73.

Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009), "A nova «Internacional operária»: rumo a uma «sociedade laboral global»?" in Congresso Luso-Afro-Brasileiro de Ciências Sociais (org.), Sociedades Desiguais e Paradigmas em Confronto. Braga: XLAB, 1-8.

Dias, Hugo (2009), "Eppur si muove: Trabalho e sindicalismo no século XXI", Virus, nº 5, 5-12.

Estanque, Elísio (2009), "Diferenças sociais de classe e conflitualidade social", In Lages, Mário e Matos, Artur Teodoro (org.), Portugal Intercultural: Razão e Projecto. Lisboa: CEPCEP-Universidade Católica Portuguesa/ ACID, 123-176.

Estanque, Elísio (2009), "O sindicalismo português: um breve balanço", in Ideias para Grandes Decisões: OPS – Revista de Opinião Socialista, nºs 1/2/3/4. Lisboa: Campo da Comunicação, 23-28.

Estanque, Elísio (2009), "Precariedade, sindicalismo e acção colectiva", in FERVE (org.), Anos a FERVEr - balanço da precariedade, retratos da luta.. Porto:Afrontamento, 87-91.

Estanque, Elísio (2009), "Reforma laboral e dificuldades do sindicalismo – Entrevista a Manuel Carvalho da Silva", in Ideias para Grandes Decisões: OPS – Revista de Opinião Socialista, nºs 1/2/3/4. Lisboa: Campo da Comunicação, 29-35.

Estanque, Elísio; A. Costa, Hermes (2009), "XVIII Congresso Luso-Afro-Brasileiro de Ciências Sociais", thematic edition in "Travessias", 6/7.

Ferreira, António Casimiro (coord.); Henriques, Marina (2009), Da sociedade precária à sociedade digna: balanço da evolução social em portugal 2003-2008, Coimbra: CES.

Silva, Manuel Carvalho da (2009), A Crise: analisar as causas, formular e exigir reformas e rupturas, in bnomics (org.), Crise, As causas da crise económica e financeira. Soluções para o Futuro de Portugal e do Mundo. Lisboa: bnomics, 144-147.

Silva, Manuel Carvalho da (2009), "Pelo Futuro, Contra Vidas Vazias", in FERVE (org.), Dois Anos a Ferver. Porto: Afrontamento, 122-125.

Silva, Manuel Carvalho da (2009), Conference "Trabalho e sindicalismo: questionamentos", Publicações cesemcena, 11.

Silva, Manuel Carvalho da (2009), "Sessão Comemorativa dos 90 anos da OIT na Assembleia da República", OIT Lisboa - Ano 7 - Newsletter Especial, 3.

Master and Ph.D. thesis completed

Master thesis at the School of Economics – University of Coimbra:

Almada, Pablo Emanuel. Master Thesis: Resistência, Ocupação e Criminalização: o movimento estudantil nas greves das Universidades Paulistas em 2007. Supervisor: Elísio Estanque

Brandão, Sônia Maria Pires. Report/Project: Uma experiência Profissional: Trabalho Infantil - Estratégias de Mudança. Supervisor: Virgínia Ferreira.

Costa, Elizardo Scarpatti. Master Thesis: Movimentos Sociais Latino-Americanos: «A ch'ama dos movimentos campesino-indígenas bolivianos». Supervisor: Hermes Costa.

Cristina, Sílvia Domingos. Master Thesis: A Vida de um Conselho De Empresa Europeu: Que Práticas e Expectativas? Supervisor: Hermes Costa.

Fonseca, Marta Clara Tavares da. Report Stage: O Comércio em áreas Urbanas Antigas: o caso da Baixa de Coimbra. Supervisor: Elísio Estanque

Lousã, Olinda Fernandes. Report/Project: Do que Temos ao que Desejamos: um sindicato ideal é possível! (?). Supervisor: Hermes Costa.

Rodrigues, Rosana Lima. Master Thesis: Muito além do Grande Bom Jardim: alcances e limitações das acções e projectos baseados na socioeconomia solidária realizados pela Rede de Desenvolvimento Sustentável do Grande Bom Jardim, na cidade de Fortaleza. Supervisor: Elísio Estanque.

Santos, Marta Almeida. Report Stage: Empresas de Inserção - Colheitas do passado, trilhos do Futuro. Supervisor: Virgínia Ferreira.

#### Patents/propotypes

Not applicable

#### **Organization of conferences**

Barca, Stefania (2009, 17th Apr) - Organization of Round Table: Il rischio ambientale. Scienza, societá e partecipazione, Think Thanks Centro di Documentazione, Naples, 17 de Abril 2009.

Estanque, Elísio and Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009, 4th Dec) – Organization of Program "Cinema e Trabalho", with the movie Metropolis, by Fritz Lang (1927), and the Conference «O trabalho através do cinema», presented by Giovanni Alves, from UNESP (Universidade Estadual de S. Paulo, Marília).

Estanque, Elísio, and Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009, 15th Oct) – Organization of Conference "A indústria automobilística no séc. XXI: processos de trabalho no Brasil" by Profa. Sílvia Araújo, UFPE – Curitiba, Brasil. Coimbra, FEUC – sala Keynes.

Estanque, Elísio, and Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009, 14th May) – Organization of Conference "Economia e Sociedade: o individualismo em questão" by Klaus Doerre (Jena University - Germany) e Reinhard Naumann (Fundação Friedrich Hebert). Coimbra, FEUC – Auditório.

Estanque, Elísio, and Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009, 25th Feb) – Organization of the conference "Trabalho, Fragmentações e Precaridades", by Ilona Kovács (ISEG, U. Lisboa). Coimbra, FEUC – Sala Keynes.

# **Industry contract research**

Not applicable

#### Internationalization

Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009, 02nd - 05th Sep), "The impacts of European Works Councils in Portugal", paper presented at the 9th Conference of the European Sociological Association, European Society or European Societies?, Lisbon, ISCTE-IUL.

Dias, Hugo (2009, 02nd -05th Sep), Interregional Trade Union Councils between Portugal and Spain - a Portuguese viewpoint of an ongoing process, paper presented at 9th Conference of the European Sociological Association, ISCTE-IUL.

Estanque, Elisio (2009, 1st Oct) – Meeting of ABET (Associação Brasileira de Estudos do Trabalho), where presented and approved a cooperation agreement between this association and CES, through this group.

Estanque, Elisio (2009, 21st Sept) – Presented inaugural class of the Post-Graduation Program of the Sociology Department at UNESP – Universidade Estadual de São Paulo/ Marilia.

Estanque, Elisio (2009, 10th Sept) – Invited speaker at the National Meeting of Scoiety and Work, organized by the Department of Sociology at UFPA – Universidade Federal do Paraná, Curitiba - Brazil.

Estanque, Elisio (2009, 9th Sept) – Seminary at the Department of Sociology, UFRGS (Universidade Federal do Rio Grande do Sul). Porto Alegre - Brazil.

Estanque, Elisio (2009, 1st Sept) – Conference at the Panel «Reestruturación Produtiva, Trabajo y Dominación Social», included in XXVII Congresso ALAS – Associação Latinoamericana de Sociologia. Buenos Aires, Argentina.

Ferreira, António Casimiro (2009, 13th Oct), "The crisis and the dynamics of global justice", paper presented at The crisis and the transition to new models of work and welfare, Lisboa.

Ferreira, Virgínia (2009), "Flexible working time arrangements in Portugal", External report commissioned by and presented to the EU Directorate-General Employment and Social Affairs, Unit G1 'Equality between women and men'.

Ferreira, Virgínia (2009), Member of Expert Group on Gender and Employment Network.

#### Government/Organization contract research

The Professional Field of Social Work: sociological study in order to create of social workers professional order, funded by the Professional Association of Social Workers, coordinated by António Casimiro Ferreira, 2009, 26.700 Euros.

Study of the Social Situation in Portugal, funded by União Geral dos Trabalhadores/UGT, coordinated by António Casimiro Ferreira, 2009, 24.000 Euros.

#### **Future Research**

# **Objectives**

In its research and outreach activities in the fields of labour studies, trade unions and inequality relations, NETSIND will work on several fronts, namely with the aim of:

Initiation of the following Research Projects (to be approved):

- "The legacy of trade unionism for the 21st century democracy: a prospective analysis", Ref<sup>a</sup> FCT: PTDC/CS-SOC/113002/2009.
- "Citizenship and governance in post-industrial port cities: a comparative study in Europe", Ref<sup>a</sup> FCT: PTDC/CS-SOC/114260/2009
- Promote a set of conferences, advanced courses, namely those taking place at the new space CES-Lisbon.
- Following the recent cooperation agreement between CES and ILO, organize and disseminate a new observatory of Labour and Social Innovation (LSI), which will include a network of partners and institutions from different areas (academic, state institutions, social partners, etc.). The projected activities will include creating databases on 'work', comprising studies, reports and statistical data, both Portuguese and international.
- Continuing to participate in several networks, namely the international networks Rede de Estudos do Trabalho (RET) [Labour Studies Network], State University of São Paulo (Unesp-Marília), and Rede Associação Brasileira de Estudos do Trabalho (ABET) [The network Brazilian association on labour studies], Federal University of Paraíba
- Participating in research projects (in progress and pending) (see the list below)
- Reinforcing training opportunities through the Doctoral Programme in 'Labour Relations, Social Inequalities and Trade Unionism' (CES-FEUC), as well as through training courses at CES (both in Lisbon and Coimbra);
- Among these advanced training courses, the following subjects should be mentioned: Governance, labour and innovation; companies, workers and trade unions; new forms of social activism
- Reinforcing the research team with new post-PhD researchers
- Mobilising 3rd cycle (doctorate) students (but also those of the 2nd cycle and Masters

#### **Future Research**

degrees) towards the Research Group activities.

- Disseminating its results by publicly presenting the results of the research carried out.
- Making the NETSIND internationally known, by setting up partnerships with other researcher centres
- Reinforcing research lines on the following topics: labour relations and trade unions; collective action and social movements; classes, social inequalities and the labour market; forms of sex-based discrimination in the workplace; social dialogue, collective bargaining and collective negotiation; conflicts in the workplace; business and identity cultures in the workplace; the precariousness of work, clandestine work and other forms of 'atypical' work; safety, hygiene and health in the workplace; labour rights and citizenship in the workplace; labour internationalism; articulation between union action and other civil society organisations; etc.
- Edition of the volumes 2, 3 and 4 of the editorial series CES/Almedina, titled "Labour and Society"

Funding, source, dates

Study on The Changes in the Portuguese Employment System: the perspective of woman and men equality (1979 -2009), funded by Commission for Equality in Labour and Employment (CITE), coordinated by Virginia Ferreira, 2009-2010, 13.187 euros.

Labour Accidents and Labour Risk Narratives in Portuguese Context, funded by CGTP – Intersindical Nacional, coordinated by António Casimiro Ferreira, 2009-2010, 40.000 euros.

Information and consultation of employees in multinational corporations: analysis of the impact of European Works Councils in Portugal in the metallurgical, chemical and financial, funded by Instituto Interdiciplinar de Investigação/University of Coimbra, coordinated by Hermes Costa, 2008-2010, 25.000 euros.

# **Governance and Economic Institutions**

**Group Description** 

Title of Research (RG-Centro-50012-3641)

**Group:** Governance and Economic Institutions

Principal
Investigator:

José Joaquim Dinis Reis

Main Scientific

Domain: Economia e Gestão

Group Host Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da

**Institution:** Universidade de Coimbra

Funding, source, dates Funding, source, dates

Project "Technical Advisement for the QREN Observatory in the field of interterritorial relations" funded by Observatório do QREN (Quadro de Referência Estratégico Nacional), 2008-2009, coordinated by José Reis, 2009, 55.000,00 euros

Project "Monitoring the Implementation of the Public Initiative "Partnerships for Urban Regeneration", funded by Direcção Geral do Ordenamento do Território e Desenvolvimento Urbano, 2008-2009, coordinated by José Reis, 2009, 30.000,00 euros

#### **Objectives & Achievements**

## **Objectives**

Broadly defined this is a multidisciplinary research group devoted to the study of the economy. The view of the economy we hold is a substantive one, that is, one which understands the economy as an institutionally situated process of interaction between human beings and their social and natural environment. The research carried out by the group is open to contributions from different social disciplines and humanities.

Having diverse backgrounds, interests and theoretical leanings, the researchers in the group share a perspective on the economy that highlights the importance of variety of modes of coordination, of institutions, and public policies and takes the time, uncertainty and space aspects of economic processes seriously. These researchers further share a pluralistic view of economic knowledge that recognizes the diversity of theoretical approaches as a feature of knowledge in this domain and a condition for its growth.

The group intends to contribute to strengthening Political Economy as a cross-disciplinary field devoted to the study of the economy. Its goals are to:

- Strengthen the conceptual, theoretical and methodological foundations of the study of the economy
- Expand research on real-life economic processes which may contribute to better

knowledge of Portuguese reality and problems

- Focus on issues of political relevance contributing to a more informed public debate and to widening the scope for choice in public policy
- Contribute to fostering pluralism in economic research and teaching
- Strengthen the interface between research carried out by the research group and post-graduate training
- Disseminate the research results across the scientific community, public decision makers and wider public

These goals were pursued along the following research lines:

- Philosophy of economics
- Knowledge, technology and innovation
- Institutions, incentives and behavior
- Institutions, policy and economic governance
- The territorial dimension of economic processes
- Controversies in the history of economic thought
- Decision making (public and individual), value conflicts and incommensurability
- Ethics and organizational social responsibility
- Feminist economics

Main Achievements

The main activities and achievements of the group in 2009 were the following:

- Consolidation of the PhD Program on Governance, Knowledge and Innovation with the starting of a new edition;
- Preparation and successful submission to FCT of project BECOM Choice Beyond (in)commensurabilty: controversies and public decision making on territorial sustainable development (PTDC/CS-ECS/099630/2008);
- Seminar "A Economia e o económico", January 23 and 24, initiating a series of annual international seminars on "The Foundations of Economics";
- Critical Economics CES Summer School The Institutional Foundations of the Economy: property, markets and Public Policy, July 6-9, attended by 19 students, from

10 countries

- Two Advanced Training Courses: (1) "Afinal o que é a Economia? O que nos ensina a sua história", May 9, 16 and 23 (attended by 32 students); (2) "Assuntos privados e serviço público: o que nos faz correr?", May 30, June 6 and 20 (attended by 15 students)
- A number of relevant publications and presentations in scientific events by group members (listed below)

#### **Group Productivity**

#### **Publications in peer review Journals**

Almeida, Filipe (2009), "Os Valores Pessoais e o Comprometimento Social dos Gestores: um estudo sobre a Responsabilidade Social das Empresas no Brasil", Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, 86, 144-166.

Almeida, Filipe; Sobral, Filipe (2009), "O Sistema de Valores Humanos de Administradores Brasileiros: adaptação da escala PVQ para o estudo de valores no Brasil", Revista de Administração Mackenzie, 10, 3, 101-126.

Almeida, Filipe; Sobral, Filipe (2009), "The Psychological and Structural Determinants of Technology Integration in Organizations: An empirical study", Management Research, 7, 1, 61-74.

Caldas, José Maria Castro; Mira Godinho, Manuel; Mamede, Ricardo (2009), "Simulating the Prospects of Technological Catching up", Economics of Innovation and New Technology, 18, 6, 565-586.

Carpentier-Tanguy, Xavier (2009), "Deutschland, Land der Ideen: 1'Allemagne impose sa marque", Revue d'Allemagne et des pays de langue allemande, 41, 2, 265-276.

Centemeri, Laura (2009), "Environmental Damage as Negative Externality: Uncertainty, Moral Complexity and the Limits of the Market", E-Cadernos CES, 5, 22-41.

Lopes, Helena; Santos, Ana Cordeiro; Teles, Nuno (2009), "The Motives for Cooperation in Work Organisations", Journal of Institutional Economics, 5, 3, 315–338.

Reis, José (2009), "As relações inter-regionais em Portugal e o "efeito-capitalidade"", Finisterra, 88, 25-37.

Reis, José (2009), "O Paradoxo de Coimbra: relações inter-territoriais e espaço público", Arquitectura 21, 6, 62-63.

Reis, José (2009), "Os caminhos estreitos da economia portuguesa: trabalho, produção,

empresas e mercados", Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, 85, 5-21.

Santos, Ana Cordeiro (2009), "Behavioral experiments: how and what can we learn about human behavior", Journal of Economic Methodology, 16, 1, 71-88.

Santos, Ana Cordeiro; Rodrigues, João (2009), "Economics as Social Engineering? Questioning the Performativity Thesis", Cambridge Journal of Economics, 33, 5, 985-1000.

Yasin, Mahmoud; Gomes, Carlos; Almeida, Filipe (2009), "Effective Managerial Performance and Education: Towards closing the gaps", International Journal of Continuing Engineering Education and Life-Long Learning, 19, 1, 59-73.

Other publications International

Carpentier-Tanguy, Xavier (2009), Une Allemagne en quête d'auteur ? Films de fiction et écriture de l'histoire en RDA. Paris: L Harmattan editions. (book)

Carpentier-Tanguy, Xavier (2009) critical review of Maurice Vaisse (2009), La puissance ou l'influence. La France dans le monde depuis 1958, Paris: Fayard, in Nonfiction. (critical review)

Carpentier-Tanguy, Xavier (2009) critical review of Nicolas Tenzer (2009), Quand la France disparaît du monde, Paris: Grasset, in Nonfiction. (critical review)

Carpentier-Tanguy, Xavier (2009) critical review of Jean Pierre Jouyet (2009), Une présidence en crise. Les six mois qui ont bousculé l'Europe, Paris: Albin Michel, in Nonfiction. (critical review)

Hagendijk, Rob; Healey, Peter; Pereira, Tiago Santos (coord.); Hagendijk, Rob; Healey, Peter; Pereira, Tiago Santos (2009), Policy evaluation and application: ResIST WPO Synthesis Report, Oxford: University of Oxford. (report)

#### **Other publications National**

Caldas, José Castro (2009), "A Economia dos Bens Comuns", Le Monde Diplomatique - edição portuguesa, Novembro .

Caldas, José Castro (2009), "A Economia Moral do Recibo Verde", in Dois Anos a Ferver – Retratos da Luta, Balanço da Precariedade, 72-74.

Caldas, José Castro (2009), "A insustentável leveza da finança de mercado", Ops, Revista de Opinião Socialista, 3.

Caldas, José Castro; Costa, Ana; Pereira, Cícero (2009), "Economia e Moralidade", in Luís de Sousa (org.), Ética, Estado e Economia – Atitudes e práticas dos europeus. Lisboa: Imprensa de Ciências Sociais, 67-92.

Coelho, Lina (2009), "Economia da Família", in António Cattani, Luis Inácio Gaiger, Pedro Hespanha, Jean Louis Laville (org.), Dicionário Internacional da Outra

Economia. Coimbra: Almedina, 114-119.

Coelho, Lina (2009), "Economia Feminista", in António Cattani, Luis Inácio Gaiger, Pedro Hespanha, Jean Louis Laville (org.), Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Almedina, 128-133.

Louçã, Francisco; Caldas, José Castro (2009), Economia(s). Porto: Afrontamento.

Mano, Margarida; Almeida, Filipe; Moura Ramos, Luís; Marques, Maria Conceição; Nolan, Sílvia (orgs.) (2009), Governance and Management Models in Higher Education: a global perspective. Porto: Vida Económica.

Neves, Vítor (2009), "A questão habitacional em Portugal: velhos e novos problemas", Le Monde Diplomatique - edição portuguesa, 32, II Série, Junho.

Pereira, Tiago Santos (2009), "Carreiras de investigação e carreiras docentes ou uma única carreira académica?", Ensino Superior - Revista do SNESup, 33, 27-31.

Reis, José; Pinho, Paulo (coord.); Reis, José (2009), Política de Cidades POLIS XXI: Parcerias para a Regeneração Urbana, Lisboa: Direcção-Geral do Ordenamento do Território e Desenvolvimento Urbano, 34.

Reis, José (2009), "Desenvolvimento inclusivo e sustentabilidade", Ops! Revista de opinião socialista, 3, 24-26.

Reis, José (2009), Ensaios de Economia Impura (2ª edition). Coimbra: Almedina/CES.

Santos, Ana C.; Tolda, João; Castro Caldas, José; Reis, José; Centemeri, Laura; Pereira, Tiago Santos; Neves, Vitor (2009), ""O 'Prémio Nobel' da Economia de 2009: A Economia das instituições não-mercantis" ", Público , 16 Outubro 2009, 39.

Santos, Ana Cordeiro; Caldas, José Castro; Reis, José (2009), "As fundações institucionais da economia: propriedade, mercados e políticas públicas", "e-cadernos", 5.

Santos, Ana Cordeiro; Ariely, Dan (2009), "Previsivelmente Irracional. As Forças Ocultas que Influenciam as Nossa Decisões", Alfragide: Estrela Polar, 238, in Le Monde Diplomatique, edição portuguesa.

Santos, Ana Cordeiro (2009), critical review of Richard H. Thaler e Cass R. Sunstein (2009), "Nudge, Como Melhorar as Decisões sobre Saúde, Dinheiro e Felicidade", Alfragide: Academia do Livro, 362, in Le Monde diplomatique, edição portuguesa.

Tolda, João (2009), "Análise sistémica das dinâmicas espaciais de inovação: fundamentos teóricos e estudo empírico", in COSTA, José Silva; NIJKAMP, Peter e DENTINHO, Tomaz Ponce (org.), Compêndio de Economia Regional, Volume II. Angra do Heroísmo: APDR.

#### Master and Ph.D. thesis completed

Carvalho, Luis Francisco. PhD, "Four Essays on John Ruskin's Economic Writings", at ISCTE-IUL, Lisbon University Institute (co-supervisor: José Castro Caldas).

Loureiro, Marisa Inês. Master in Local Economy, "Os controlos de renda: o caso do concelho de Lisboa", at the School of Economics – University of Coimbra (supervisor: Vítor Neves)

#### Patents/propotypes

Not applicable

## **Organization of conferences**

Workshop "A Economia e o económico", Coimbra, January 23-24 2009

2009 CES Critical Economics Summer School, Hotel Quinta da Geia, Aldeia das Dez, Portugal, July 6-9 2009

VI Encontro Ibérico de História do Pensamento Económico, Faculdade de Economia, Coimbra, December 3-5 2009 (with Feio, Joaquim; Cardoso, José Luís)

#### **Industry contract research**

Not applicable

#### **Internationalization**

Group members have participated in various international conferences and workshops. They are affiliated to international associations namely the European Association for Evolutionary Political Economy, the Association for Social Economics, the International Network for Economic Method (INEM).

Activities carried on by the group involve international collaborations, namely:

Project BECOM – Choice Beyond (in)commensurabilty: controversies and public decision making on territorial sustainable development (PTDC/CS-ECS/099630/2008), includes an international team of consultants: John O'Neil (University of Manchester) and Laurent Thévenot (Ecole des Hautes Etudes en Sciences Sociales).

The Critical Economics CES Summer School – The Institutional Foundations of the Economy: property, markets and Public Policy, July 6-9, engaged besides 19 students, from 10 countries, a international group of lecturers: Daniel W. Bromley (Wisconsin-Madison University),, Julie A. Nelson (Massachusetts University, Boston) and John O'Neill (University of Manchester).

A number of publications (above listed) were the product of international

collaborations.

## **Government/Organization contract research**

"Technical Advisement for the QREN Observatory in the field of interterritorial relations" funded by Observatório do QREN (Quadro de Referência Estratégico Nacional), 2008-2009, coordinated by José Reis, 2009, 55.000,00 euros

"Monitoring the Implementation of the Public Initiative "Partnerships for Urban Regeneration", 2008-2009, funded by Direcção Geral do Ordenamento do Território e Desenvolvimento Urbano, coordinated by José Reis, 2009, 30.000,00 euros

#### **Future Research**

#### **Objectives**

In pursing the general objectives of the research group stated above, the emphasis in 2010 will be given to activities which will:

- Strengthen the group's engagement in international research networks. This includes: (a) Organization of an International Conference on "The Revival of Political Economy Prospects for Sustainable Provision", to take place in Coimbra, October 21-23, 2010; (b) Organization whith Universdade Federal Fluminense, Brasil, of a seminar on "Economics and Interdisciplinarities" to take place in Rio de Janeiro, April 29-30, 2010; (c) Participation in the drafting of a proposal for FP7, Work programme SSH.2010.1.2-1on "Finance, Society and Sustainable Development.
- Consolidate the group focus on the research on the foundations of economics. This will include the organization of the 2nd International Seminar on the Foundations of Economics on "Facts, Values and Objectivity"
- Focus on issues of political relevance contributing to a more informed public debate and to widening the scope for choice in public policy. This includes: (a) Activities in the frame ob project BECOM; (b) The preparation of a project on land, town planning and housing
- Disseminate the research results across the scientific community, public decision makers and wider public: This includes: two advanced training courses on "The Economics of Common Goods" and "What is Economics After All?" (2nd ed.) Funding, source, dates
- Project BECOM Choice beyond (in)commensurability: controversies and public decision making on territorial sustainable development, (funded by Fundação para a Ciência e Tecnologia FCT), 2010-2013, 143.931,00 euros
- SPOTIA: Sustainable Spatial Policy Orientations and Territorial Impact Assessment Contribution to Portuguese context, (funded by Fundação para a Ciência e Tecnologia FCT), National Consortium led by the Lisbon University Foundation, 2010-2013,

# **Future Research**

36.630,00 euros

• Assessment of "Iniciativa Bairros Críticos", funded by Instituto de Habitação e Reabilitação Urbana – IHRU), 2010, 45.000,00 euros

# **Architecture and Urbanism**

**Group Description** 

Title of Research (RG-Centro-50012-3642)

**Group:** Architecture and Urbanism

Principal
Investigator:

Jose Antonio Oliveira Bandeirinha

Main Scientific

Domain: Sociologia, Antropologia, Demografia e Geografia

Group Host Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da

**Institution:** Universidade de Coimbra

Funding, source, dates Funding, source, dates

Not applicable this year. Because the development of this Research Group is very recent at CES, its members are in the process of submitting applications to different funding agencies. This process had already some success, as it's possible to observe in the last point of this Research Group report. Several scientific activities were developed but without funding from scientific agencies.

# **Objectives & Achievements**

### **Objectives**

This Research Group is coordinated by José António Bandeirinha

In 2009, Architecture and Urbanism Research Group developed its four research lines looking for a sustainable strategy to consolidate the architectural research at the Centre of Social Studies. During this year, seven new researchers were added to the team for the among research lines. The goals of each research line were:

#### 1. 1. Urbanism and Heritage

- a) Urban Morphology, focusing on establishing a methodology based on design and GIS which can allow for an effective contribution from the History of Urbanism to planning and action of conservation and development of imperilled urban areas.
- b) Portuguese culture of territory in Asia, with a special focus on the old Northern Province of the Estado da Índia, mainly about the Portuguese presence in the metropolitan area of Greater Mumbai;
- c) Urban regeneration and historical sites, a research line looking to evaluate the changes produced by the most recent urban programs in Portugal and their relation with other urban renovation and environmental oriented urban experiences in Europe.

# 1. 2. Design and Architecture

The goal of the research line "Design and Architecture" was to work on the topic "architecture and territory in the 20th century". This project has, as a starting point, the built environment fitted by interventions carried out through the last century. Its development based on a group of complementary studies aimed to understand the architectural, urban and construction practices that shaped urban environment focused on the peninsular and colonial territory.

# 1. 3. Art expression and architecture

The relationship between art and architecture is the aim of our research. Here, the relations with architecture are not concerned with its specificities as a discipline, but mostly with the idea of the spacialization of subjectivity.

In the context of this line of investigation, the project in course privileges the current Portuguese artistic production: "The relationship between self and space in current Portuguese art".

#### 1. 4. Theory and criticism of modern and contemporary architecture

It aimed to explore the disciplinary relationships on architectural design as well as in the built work, against the backdrop of schools, movements and trends, along with artistic itineraries of authors of reference.

The lines of research integrated the work of individual researchers (Ph.D.), thus building projects involving a broad number of researchers as well as research objects, such as the translation and edition of Alberti's De re aedificatoria for the first time in the Portuguese language or the relationship between Culture and Architecture in late 20th century in Portugal.

#### **Main Achievements**

The Architecture and Urbanism Research Group consolidated its four lines with the organization of several activities, such as submission of research projects to FCT competitions, internal seminars, colloquia, publications and PhD programs. Some researchers already working with the group presented their PhD thesis.

#### 2. 1. Urbanism and Heritage

- a) On Urban Morphology the relevant activities are: 1 submission to FCT of the research project Designing History: urban morphology as a development tool, 2 PhD theses of Luísa Trindade (see productivity), 3 preparation of the meeting urbanistic before the treaties in the South of Europe: workshop on morphology for the operative design of history.
- b) The research project on Portuguese territorial culture in the old Northern Province of the 'Estado da Índia' sponsored by FCT is concluded, but the team is still working on the subject, i.e. Sidh Mendiratta is developing his PhD dissertation about the architecture of the military defence system, and Walter Rossa is concluding the edition

of a collective book (for Fundação Calouste Gulbenkian) with an overall survey about the heritage of Portuguese influence in Asia.

c) The PhD program Heritages of Portuguese Influence was submitted to Government's approval and is first edition will start next September. It's an activity promoted by CES within III-UC, coordinated by Walter Rossa and Margarida Calafate Ribeiro. An E-Learning course with the same designation is now running at Instituto Camões platform.

# 2. 2. "Design and Architecture"

The research line "Design and Architecture" developed in 2009 some activities to create a solid research on "architecture and territory in the 20th century", namely two research projects submitted to FCT, 20th Century Today – Architectural Studies on Portuguese Built Environment and From Public towards Mediatic: Architectural studies throughout the three Portuguese republican policies, the last one was reformulated and submitted again.

The team meets every month to debate ten individual research projects (PhD thesis) and to work on group research.

To help on the consolidation and spread of the research, the group organized a CES Seminar "Architecture and territory in the 20th century" (April, 2009) and started the preparation of a colloquium, with NECC, about the impact of the "Encontro Nacional dos Arquitectos 1969" on contemporary architecture which will be held in 2010. In this context we are also preparing a thematic issue of Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, with Giovanni Alegretti.

The PhD and Master theses approved at the University of Coimbra (see productivity) are now being reformulated to publish at CES Almedina. The first one, from Susana Constantino, is already in preparation with the title, Arquitectura de Cine-Teatros: evolução e registo [1927-1959].

#### 2. 3. Art and Architecture

We established a growing net of contacts with visual artists who are collaborating in our project achieving a process of research on art as an inside view.

The amount and diversity of collaborations we had is quite rewarding and a major contribution towards the understanding of the complexity of the relations between self and space in contemporary art.

#### 2. 4. Theory and criticism of modern and contemporary architecture

Submission to Fundação Calouste Gulbenkian of Alberti's treatise De re aedificatoria, in collaboration with A. E. Santo, which is going for the first time to be published in Portuguese.

Submission to FCT of the research project Digital Alberti in order to trace the cultural

influences of Alberti's treatise on Portuguese Classical Architecture with the use of a computational framework provided by description and shape grammars to determine the extension of such influence in the counter-reform period.

Approval by the Ministry of Science, Technology and Higher Learning of the Doctoral Course in Architecture promoted by the Faculty of Sciences and Technology of the University of Coimbra and which is research based at the CES.

Approval of PhD Theses at the University of Coimbra (see productivity)

# **Group Productivity**

#### **Publications in peer review Journals**

Bandeirinha, José António (2009), "Crime e Castigo. Coimbra e a ambição de resistir à metrópole", Arquitectura 21, 6, 58-59.

Bandeirinha, José António (2009), "Emília e o Espelho do Siza ou a Incómoda Residência da Arquitectura / Emília and Siza's Mirror or the Uncomfortable Residence of Architecture", Jornal Arquitectos, 234, 64-75.

Figueira, Jorge (2009), ""A arquitectura tóxica"", Jornal Arquitectos, 235.

Figueira, Jorge (2009), ""Pancho Guedes. Colonização/Performance"", Jornal Arquitectos, 236.

Figueira, Jorge (2009), ""Sobre um espelho em Veneza", Jornal Arquitectos, 234.

Grande, Nuno (2009), "Poetizar a Pobreza", Jornal Arquitectos, 236 (Jul/Ago/Set), 42-43.

Grande, Nuno (2009), "Porto, cidade em voo raso", Arquitectura 21, 7, 20-25.

Grande, Nuno (2009), "Regreso a Casa, una conversacion con Eduardo Souto de Moura", El Croquis - Eduardo Souto de Moura, Teatros del Mundo , Croquis, 146, 6-24.

Grande, Nuno (2009), "Teatros del Mundo", El Croquis - Eduardo Souto de Moura, Teatros del Mundo, 146, 24-29.

Kruger, Mário (2009), "Unidade Pedagógica Central-Pólo II", Rua Larga, 24, 53-59.

Mateus, João Mascarenhas (2009), "A Baixa Pombalina de Lisboa e o Cinema: uma operação de Conservação da Memória", Metakinema, Revista de Cine e Historia, 4, 77-86.

Moniz, Gonçalo Canto (2009), "A Construção do Programa Liceal: Arquitectura, Política e Ensino", Arquitectura 21, 4, 28-36.

Murtinho, Vítor (2009), "O Espírito Geométrico", Boletim da APROGED, 28.

Olaio, António (2009), "Coimbra Sine Die", Arquitectura 21, 6, 1.

Olaio, António (2009), "Na cabeça do convento", ECDJ, 12.

Other publications International

Mateus, João Mascarenhas (2009), "Il Salone rosso dell'Istituto Portoghese a Roma. Un restauro conservativo", i Beni Culturali - rivista bimestrale a carattere scientifico, 2, 3, 26-32; 44.

Rossa, Walter (2009), "I piani per Lisbona dopo il terremoto del 1755" in Stefano Piazza (org.), Terremoti e ricostruzioni tra XVII e XVIII secolo. Siracusa: Soprintendenza Beni Culturali e Ambientali di Siracusa.

Gonçalves, José Fernando (2009), "Superfície comercial MINIPREÇO", ARCHIBOOK 60' – Portuguese Architecture Generation.

Gonçalves, José Fernando (2009), "Superfície comercial", Catálogo do IV Prémio de Arquitectura Ascensores ENOR 2008, 4.

#### **Other publications National**

Bandeirinha, José António (2009), "O ressurgimento de Santa Clara-a-Velha. O que acontece quando a alma não é pequena", Rua Larga, 25, 14-19.

Bandeirinha, José António (2009), "Poderá a arquitectura servir para justificar as funções às quais se destina?", in Pedro Medeiros (org.), Intro Pedro Medeiros Estabelecimento Prisional de Coimbra 1889-2009. Coimbra: Estabelecimento Prisional de Coimbra, 10-13.

Bandeirinha, José António (2009), "Valorização da Memória. Para um roteiro da arquitectura contemporânea de Coimbra", Artes & Leilões, 22, 66-68.

Cardielos, João Paulo (2009), "Arquitecturas para novas Paisagens", in Ricardo Vieira de Melo; João Paulo Cardielos (org.), '00'09 DEZ ANOS DE ARQUITECTURA DO NAAV. Aveiro: Núcleo de Arquitectos de Aveiro - SRN - OA, 4.

Cardielos, João Paulo; Melo, Ricardo Vieira de (orgs.) (2009), '00'09 DEZ ANOS DE ARQUITECTURA DO NAAV. AVEIRO: Núcleo de Arquitectos de Aveiro - SRN - OA.

Figueira, Jorge (2009), "O projecto Sonâmbulo" / "The sleepwalking project", in Pancho Guedes (org.), Pancho Guedes, "Vitruvius Mozambicanus". Lisboa: Colecção Berardo.

Grande, Nuno (2009), "Arquitecturas no Porto: Escolástica e Contaminação (Comissariado para a AMPorto", in Pedro Gadanho (org.), Habitar Portugal, 2006-

2008. Lisboa: Ordem dos Arquitectos, 60-85.

Grande, Nuno (2009), "O Palácio Escarlate", in Casa das Histórias Paula Rego (org.), Casa das Histórias Paula Rego (Arquitectura). Cascais: Câmara Municipal de Cascais, 11-15.

Grande, Nuno (2009), "Reabitar o Centro, Hoje: sem retóricas, sem nostalgias, sem desculpas", in José Manuel das Neves (org.), Habitar a Cidade. Lisboa: TrueTeam, 14-21.

Grande, Nuno (2009), "Um Olhar Transcultural. A propósito da Escola Portuguesa de Benguela", in Manuel Graça Dias (org.), Cinco Áfricas, Cinco Escolas, 8ª Bienal Internacional de Arquitectura de São Paulo, Representação Oficial Portuguesa. Lisboa/São Paulo: Direcção Geral das Artes/MC, 134-141.

Grande, Nuno (2009), MuseuMania, Museus de Hoje, Modelos de Ontem. Porto: Fundação de Serralves/Público.

Krüger, M. (2009) "A Questão da Tecnologia em Arquitectura": Construção Magazine, 33, 10-15.

Krüger, M. (2009) Editorial and Interview as Co-editor of Construção Magazine, 33, 2, 4-9.

Moniz, Gonçalo Canto (2009) recensão crítica a João Vieira, Margarida Alçada, Maria Helena Barreiros (coord.) (2009), Arquitectura dos Serviços Públicos em Portugal: os internatos na justiça de menores 1871-1978, Lisboa: Direcção Geral de Reinserção Social, IHRU, 295, in Jornal Arquitectos, 116-117.

Moniz, Gonçalo Canto (2009), "Arquitectura do Barco: Cultura marítima no ensino da ESBAP (1958/59-1968/69)", in Álvaro Garrido, Francisco Alves (org.), Octávio Lixa Filgueiras: Arquitecto de Culturas Marítimas. Lisboa: Âncora Editora, 38-56.

Murtinho, Vítor (2009), "Affordable Houses: Um Conceito Modelar de Habitação Unifamiliar Residencial" in Associação Portuguesa de Construção Metálica Mista (org.), Actas do VII Congresso de Construção Metálica e Mista. Coimbra, 553-562.

Olaio, António (2009), "Armando Azevedo enquanto D'eus", EASI, 1, 1.

Olaio, António; Wandschneider, Miguel ; João Pinharanda; Schachter, Kenny (2009), Brrrrain. Lisboa: Culturgest.

Rossa, Walter (2009), "Da fábrica urbanística do Bairro das Águas Livres / About the urban fabric of the Bairro das Águas Livres", in Marina Bairrão Ruivo (org.), Património e Biografia, Vieira da Silva e o Jardim das Amoreiras, catálogo da exposição. Lisboa: Fundação Arpad Szenes-Vieira da Silva, 19-35 e 84-88.

Rossa, Walter (2009), "No 1º Plano / On the first plan", in Ana Tostões e Walter Rossa

(org.), Lisboa 1758: o plano da Baixa Hoje, catálogo da exposição / Lisbon 1758: the Baixa Plan today, exhibition catalogue. Lisboa: Câmara Municipal de Lisboa, 24-81.

Tostões, Ana; Rossa, Walter (orgs.) (2009), Lisboa 1758: o plano da Baixa Hoje, Catálogo da Exposição. Lisboa: Câmara Municipal de Lisboa.

# Master and Ph.D. thesis completed Master thesis

Almeida, Bertânia (2009), Pensar e construir habitação: o contexto do realojamento social na cidade do Mindelo, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by José António Bandeirinha.

Carvalho, Marta (2009), O papel do Pólo II da Universidade de Coimbra no processo de transformação urbana da cidade. Uma metodologia de ocupação da expansão, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by José António Bandeirinha.

Contantino, Susana (2009), Arquitectura de Cine-Teatros: evolução e registo [1927-1959]. Equipamentos de Cultura e Lazer em Portugal no Estado Novo, supervised by José António Bandeirinha.

Loureiro, Luís (2009), A leste da herança moderna. Zlin e Bata na vanguarda do funcionalismo Europeu, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by José António Bandeirinha.

Martins, Luisa Pimentel (2009), O Loft (n)O Património Industrial (d)A Cidade, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by José Fernando Gonçalves

Monteiro, Ana Helena (2009), O Sanatório da Covilhã. Arquitectura, Turismo e Saúde, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by José António Bandeirinha.

Ramos, Sofia (2009), O Cine-Teatro de Mangualde do Arquitecto Keil do Amaral. Génese Monográfica no contexto da arquitectura Portuguesa do Séc. XX, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by José António Bandeirinha.

Silva, David da (2009), O Problema da Habitação. Interpretação operativa de um caso de estudo em Bissau, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by José António Bandeirinha.

#### Ph.D. thesis

Almeida, Joaquim (2009), Matéria do projecto: ideias puristas e razão técnica na arquitectura contemporânea, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by Mário Krüger.

Cardielos, João Paulo (2009), A construção de uma Arquitectura da Paisagem, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by Domingos Tavares.

Conceição, Margarida Tavares da (2008), Da cidade e fortificação em textos

portugueses (1540-1640), DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by Walter Rossa.

Figueira, Jorge (2009), A periferia perfeita: pós-modernidade na arquitectura portuguesa, anos 60-anos 80, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by Alexandre Alves Costa.

Grande, Nuno (2009), Arquitecturas da cultura: política, debate, espaço: génese dos grandes equipamentos culturais da contemporaneidade portuguesa, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by Mário Krüger and Nuno Portas.

Lousa, António (2009), Object-city, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by Mário Krüger.

Ribeiro, João Mendes (2009), Arquitectura e espaço cénico: um percurso biográfico, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by Mário Krüger.

#### Patents/propotypes

Not applicable

#### **Organization of conferences**

The Research Group was involved directly in the organization o several scientific evetns, namely:

Bandeirinha, José António (org.), seminar Arquitectura e Território no século XX, CES, 29 April de 2009.

Bandeirinha, José António; Providência, Paulo; Porto, Nuno; Quintais, Luís; Xavier, Sandra (org.), Intersecções de Antropologia e Arquitectura / Crisscrossing Anthropology and Architecture, University of Coimbra, 23rd November 2009 to 24 March 2010.

Grande, Nuno; Cardielos, João Paulo; Lobo, Rui (org.), Visões Urbanas para a Alta de Coimbra, Museu Nacional de Machado de Castro, 29th October to 08th December 2009.

Costa, Alexandre Alves; Correia, Luís Miguel; Moniz, Gonçalo Canto, (org.) A Viagem: Alexandre Alves Costa, Departament of Architecture FCTUC, 18th December 2009 to 18th February 2010.

#### **Industry contract research**

Not applicable

#### **Internationalization**

The Research Group has been developing contacts with other research groups and

institutions dedicated to the study of the Portuguese Cities in the world, namely in Brazil, Mozambique, Angola, Cabo Verde, Guiné Bissau, Marrocos and India. This collective work started 14 years ago with the organization of the conference Portuguese Urbanistic Universe.

The Conservation of the Modern Movement heritage became in the last years an area of research that resulted in the publication of Masters Thesis in 2008, and the activity of the Master programme on the Rehabilitation of Built Environment. This activity allowed the group to be part of the DOCOMOMO, Documentation and Conservation of the Modern Movement.

Other activities like the establishment of new transdisciplinair fields of research are also included in the group activities, like the organization of the first conference about Construction History in Portugal.

One or more researchers of the group are also members of the Société Internationale Leon Battista Alberti, "Microcomputer User's Directory", of "United Nations Centre for Human Settlements" (HABITAT), "Corrispondenti Scientifici" of the magazine Città & Storia of the AISU — Associazione Italiana di Storia Urbana and of the "Comitato Scientifico" of the magazine Storia dell'urbanistica, "corrispondenti" of the Scuola di Specializzazione in Beni Architettonici e del Paesaggio (La Sapienza University, Valle Giulia, Roma), representatives of the Construction Hisory Society (UK), members of the Institut de Recherche sur L'architecture Antique, CNRS, France, USR 3155.

The researchers of the group are also members of the Société Internationale Leon Battista Alberti, "Microcomputer User's Directory", of "United Nations Centre for Human Settlements" (HABITAT), "Corrispondenti Scientifici" of the magazine Città & Storia of the AISU — Associazione Italiana di Storia Urbana and of the "Comitato Scientifico" of the magazine Storia dell'urbanistica.

#### **Government/Organization contract research**

Not applicable

#### **Future Research**

# **Objectives**

Beyond individual research projects, the Architecture and Urbanism research group proposes to consolidate and develop, in the next years, its four research lines through research projects and PhD programmes:

#### 1. 1. Urbanism and Heritage

- a) On Urban Morphology we will organize the meeting Urbanistic before the treaties in the South of Europe: workshop on morphology for the operative design of history.
- b) On Portuguese culture of territory in Asia, Sidh Mendiratta will continue his research

#### **Future Research**

to his PhD theses and Walter Rossa will publish the survey he his coordinating for Fundação Calouste Gulbenkian.

c) The PhD program Heritages of Portuguese Influence will start in September 2010, if the Government approves it.

# 1. 2. Design and Architecture

The research line "Design and Architecture" will consolidate the research on "architecture and territory in the 20th century", developing studies on particularly issues that will improve the global understanding of the theme.

- a) The "Public Architecture", the "Social aim of the architect" and probably the relations between the Mediterranean modern architecture will be the main focus of the team. To help on the debate about the research on architecture the NAU will organize internal seminars with important international researchers, such as Georges Teyssot (March, 2010) and Dirk Van der Heuvel Dirk van den Heuvel, Tom Avermaete and Dick van Gameren (June, 2010).
- b) A new research will be developed concerning the women's contribution to modern and contemporary architecture history. To open the debate, an event "Women on architecture: colloquium, exhibition and publication" will take place in 2010. This research, although centred in the architecture field, will have the participation of scholars from different areas, including sociology, and activists from the feminist movement.
- c) The collection CES Almedina, Cidade e Arquitectura will publish Susana Constantino's master theses, Arquitectura de Cine-Teatros: evolução e registo [1927-1959]. Other PhD and Master theses will also be submitted to publication on different editors to spread the knowledge about this subject.

#### 1. 3. Art expression and architecture

Our objective is to produce broad research on contemporary Portuguese art conduced by the conceptual aims of the project "The relationship between self and space in current Portuguese art" that will finally be published in a book. And at the same time reinforce the idea of art as conceptual research, not only as object of research.

#### 1. 4. Theory and criticism of modern and contemporary architecture

Start of a three-year contract of 161.636,00 euros approved by the FCT to run the research project Digital Alberti. The project is due to start in 1st April 2010. Coordinator: Mário Krüger

Start of a new Doctoral Program in Architecture in September 2010 promoted by FCTUC and which is research based at the CES. Coordinator: Mário Krüger.

Publication by Calouste Gulbenkian Foundation of Alberti's De re aedificatoria in

#### **Future Research**

Portuguese translated by A. E. Santo and M. Krüger.

Submission for publication of the book "Comentários à Arte Edificatória de Leon Battista Alberti" by M. Krüger.

Supervision by M. Krüger of nine doctoral research students enrolled before the Bologna's process.

#### 1. 5. PhD Programmes

Also worth mentioning is the intention of creating a PhD Programme in the area of Theory and History of Architecture and Urbanism, which is now in progress.

Preparation of a new Doctoral Program in Patrimónios de Influência Portuguesa to start in September 2010 promoted by Instituto de Investigação Interdisciplinar e do Centro de Estudos Sociais da Universidade de Coimbra. Coordinator: Walter Rossa and Margarida Calafate Ribeiro

Preparation of a new Doctoral Program in Architecture to start in September 2010 promoted by FCTUC and which the research is based at the CES. Coordinator: Mário Krüger.

Funding, source, dates

The Research Group, being recent in this institution, was, during 2009, applying for several grants and tenders of science funding agencies, and is now waiting for the evaluation results.

The research project "Digital Alberti - Tradition and Innovation in the Theory and Practice of Architecture in Portugal", coordinated by Mário Kruger, involving other national institutions, was approved by FCT in 2009 and runs, from 2010 to 2013, with a budget of 161.363,00 euros.

# **Democracy, Multicultural Citizenship and Participation**

**Group Description** 

Title of Research (RG-Centro-50012-3643)

**Group:** Democracy, Multicultural Citizenship and Participation

Principal
Investigator:

Maria Paula Guttierrez Meneses

Main Scientific

Domain: Sociologia, Antropologia, Demografia e Geografia

Group Host Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da

**Institution:** Universidade de Coimbra

Funding, source, dates Funding, source, dates

"Global Charter - Agenda of Human Rights in the City", funded by Barcelona Municipality, 8.712€ (2008-2009). Coordinated by Bouventura de Sousa Santos.

"Participatory Budget – More Participation, Better Democracy", funded by the European Programme EQUAL, 83.916€ (2007-2009). Coordinated by Giovanni Allegretti, in a partnership led by Association In Loco.

# Objectives & Achievements Objectives

The Research Group on Democracy, Multicultural Citizenship and Participation (NECDMP) is committed to broaden the interdisciplinarity of its outlooks, seeking to promote a critical approach to contemporary social and political processes by challenging dominant ideas and practices of equality, democracy and interculturality.

The Group is coordinated by Maria Paula Meneses and Marta Araújo. Sharing related academic interests, its 21 scholars (senior and junior researchers) contribute towards attending the Centre's main goal – pursuing high quality research – along three main axes of intervention: inter- and transdisciplinary research; internationalization, particularly North-South relations; articulation between research, training and other outreach activities. In order to carry out this mission the Group, as whole, benefits from the distinct academic backgrounds of its members (an of the networks they belong to), including researchers with interests in Law, Anthropology, Sociology, Political Science, Education, History, Philosophy and Urbanism.

Working in wide geo-political contexts, such as Europe, Latin American and Africa, and debating the interrelations and interdependencies among these regions — with a postcolonial approach — this Group has been working around the following themes:

- Processes of democratization, political theory and cosmopolitanism
- Equality and interculturality in education
- Identity constructions, memory(ies) and politics of recognition
- (Anti-)racism and public policies
- (Re)emergence of political interpretations of religion.

Bringing together these different topics, the researchers are committed to develop comparative approaches that allow for generalizations without universalisms. The position at stake stems from the view that both in the global North and in the global South, there is a growing recognition of societies' heterogeneity and of the inadequacy and impossibility of using analogous concepts to analyse rather distinct societies. This awareness is reflected in the activities carried out within the Group, especially in seeking to carry out innovative and critical projects that allow for a broader and more inclusive discussion.

Additionally, the Group aims at promoting the broadening scope of academic intervention, and to engage with wider audiences in debating the results and implications of the studies it is involved with. In order to achieve this, this Group seeks to carry out innovative and critical initiatives that allow for a broader and more inclusive discussion and participation. More specifically, the following strategies are highlighted: organization of Advanced Training Courses; lecturing and coordination of PhD Programmes (particularly, Democracy in the 21st Century and Post-colonialisms and Global Citizenship); development of several Observatories, which collate and analyse data on central issues, combining local, national and international perspectives. Another goal of these Observatories is to articulate academic and non-academic actors, reinforcing mechanisms for building up citizenship and promoting inclusion processes. Within this approach, the research Group has been promoting the integration of PhD students in its scientific activities, contributing to CES's strategic role as an Associate Laboratory.

Finally, the Group aims at continuing the dissemination and discussion of the research produced in national and international contexts, as well as enlarging the international network of researchers and institutions sharing similar academic interests.

#### Main Achievements

In 2009 the Group, as a whole, witnessed the reinforcement of the participation of its scholars in in several national and international transdisciplinary research groups. Members of the Group are currently present in national and international arenas through their involvement in projects, conferences, teaching activities and networks.

The Group's transdisciplinary approach is being achieved through the integration of different academic traditions and backgrounds. This helps to enlarge the geo-political scope of the research environment by generating a synergy of critical thinking and by including researchers from both the global North and South. Project highlights:

# **Objectives & Achievements**

- Global Charter-agenda of Human Rights in the City (funded by Ayuntamiento de Barcelona, Spain, and including sociologists, architects, anthropologists and lawyers);
- 'Race' and Africa in Portugal: a study on history textbooks (funded by FCT, and integrating researchers in sociology, anthropology, education and history).

The results of research have been disseminated in a growing number of prestigious publications. Highlights:

#### Books:

Allegretti, G; Sintomer, Y (2009), "I Bilanci Partecipativi in Europa. Nuove esperienze democratiche nel vecchio continente". Roma: Ediesse.

# Peer-reviewed journals

Araújo, M (2009), "A Fresh Start for a failing school? A qualitative study", British Educational Research Journal, 35, 4, 599–617.

Baldi, V (2009), "Strategie di coesistenza culturale. Politiche della traduzione culturale", Fenomenologia e Societa, 3, 57-74.

Francisco, D (2009), "Territories Named Desire: From the Breadth of Concepts to the Containment of Experience", RCCS Annual Review, 1, 1-33.

Santos, B S (2009), "Portugal: Tales of Being and not Being", Portuguese Literary & Cultural Studies, 20, 1-45.

# Book chapters:

Guilherme, M (2009), "Multiculturalismo e educação: Carta aos professores brasileiros", in O. Sopelsa & J. V. Trevisol (org.), Currículo, Diversidade e Políticas Pública. Joaçaba, SC: Editora UNOESC, 45-50.

The Group regularly organises academic events reflecting a broad spectrum of interests, which have widened academic discussion between researchers, students and other audiences. These wide-open debates bring together researchers from CES and guest speakers. A successful example is the Tuesday Seminars, focused on discussing work in progress directly related to the main areas of the Group.

The Group actively engages with broadening the scientific dialogue beyond the academic sphere, reflecting on the impact of research with actors from the civil society and policy-makers. The Group has also been promoting the integration of PhD students and of new researchers in its scientific activities, contributing to CES's role as an Associate Laboratory.

Such constructive engagements are being achieved through the following strategies:

1. Research projects (consolidation of previous research lines and the extension of

# **Objectives & Achievements**

research lines opened up by previous research, at both the national and international levels), overarching the broad spectrum of interests of the Group. Highlights:

- Formal access to local political spaces in the local context: immigrant voters and elected in Portuguese municipalities and parishes (funded by FCT);
- Participatory Budget more participation, better democracy (funded by Equal);
- 2. Lecturing in, and coordinating of, several PhD Programmes (e.g. Democracy in the 21st Century and Post-colonialisms and Global Citizenship).
- 3. The implementation of Observatories, which engage with the analysis of policies and practices of equality and participation and articulate academic and non-academic actors.
- 4. The organization of Advanced Training Courses, privileging a comparative approach and the construction of fruitful policy dialogues (e.g. Course 'Europe as idea and practice'). This Group has also been actively involved in outreach activities with secondary school students through the partnership with the National Agency 'Ciência Viva'.

# **Group Productivity**

# **Publications in peer review Journals**

Allegretti, Giovanni (2009), "I bilanci Partecipativi in Europa. Una ricerca comparativa nel Vecchio Continente, «Quale Stato» nr. 3-4, 287–302.

Allegretti, Giovanni (2009), "Rovereto s'interesse au referendums locaux", "Territoires", 503, 40-42.

Allegretti, Giovanni; Zobel, Clemens (2009), "Spazi di partecipazione politica per i cittadini immigrati. Analisi di un'opportunità sottostimata nel Portogallo post-coloniale", "La Società degli individui", setembro/dezembro, 36, 66-82.

Araújo, Marta (2009), "A Fresh Start for a failing school? A qualitative study", British Educational Research Journal, 35, 4, 599–617.

Baldi, Vania (2009), "Strategie di coesistenza culturale. Politiche della traduzione culturale", Fenomenologia e Societa, 3/2009, 57-74.

Francisco, Daniel (2009), "Territories Named Desire: From the Breadth of Concepts to the Containment of Experience", RCCS Annual Review, 1, 1-33.

Khan, Sheila (2009), 'A espessura do exílio em 'A Balada do Ultramar''. Revista Teia Literária, PUC/RJ, Brasil.

Khan, Sheila (2009), 'No teu rosto encontro uma janela: Nakulosa, Kokwana Maria'. Metamorfoses, Revista da Cátedra Jorge de Sena para Estudos Literários Luso-Afro-

Brasileiros, 10, Lisboa; Rio de Janeiro: Ed. Caminho; Faculdade de Letras da UFRJ, 41-56.

Thaler, Mathias (2009), "From Public Reason to Reasonable Accommodation: Negotiating the Place of Religion in the Public Sphere", Diacrítica. Revista do Centro de Estudos Humanísticos da Universidade de Minho 23, no. 2, 249-270.

Zobel, Clemens; Barbosa, Carlos Elias (2009), "Aproximación à Participación Formal de Cidadáns dos Países Lusófonos na Política Local Portuguesa", Tempo Exterior, 19, 47-60.

# **Other publications International**

**Books** 

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (org.) (2009), As Vozes do Mundo. Rio de Janeiro: Civilização Brasileira.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), Una Epistemologia del Sur. La reinvención del Conocimiento y la Emancipación Social. Buenos Aires: Siglo XXI Editores, CLACSO.

# Book chapters

Allegretti, Giovanni (2009), "Partecipazione", in Alessandro Bosi, Marco Deriu, Vincenza Pellegrino (org.), Il dolce avvenire. Esercizi di immaginazione radicale del presente. Reggio Emilia: Diabasis, 234-241.

Guilherme, Maria Manuela (2009), "Multiculturalismo e educação: Carta aos professores brasileiros, Segundo inspiração de Paulo Freire", in O. Sopelsa & J. V. Trevisol (org.), Currículo, Diversidade e Políticas Pública. Joaçaba, SC: Editora UNOESC, 45-50.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Maciane F. Zimba e Carolina J. Tamele: médicos tradicionais, dirigentes da Associação de Médicos Tradicionais", in Boaventura de Sousa Santos (org.), Vozes do Mundo. Rio de Janeiro: Civilização Brasileira, 405-462.

Santos, Ana Cristina (2009), "Portugal", in Chuck Stewart (org.), The Greenwood Encyclopedia of LGBT Issues Worldwide. Connecticut: Greenwood Publishers.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Para uma pedagogia do conflito", in Freitas, Ana Lúcia e Moraes, Salete Campos (Orgs.), Contra o desperdício da experiência. A pedagogia do conflito revisitada. Porto Alegre: Redes Editora Lda., 15-40.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Las paradojas de nuestro tiempo y la plurinacionald", in Acosta, Alberto e Martínez, Esperanza (org.), Plurianacional. Democracia en la diversidad. Quito: Abya Yala, 21-62.

Venkateswar, Sita (2009), "Poverty, Empowerment and Grassroots Democracy:

defining participatory approaches." in Feiziya Patel and Kogi Naidoo (org.), Working Women, Stories of Struggle and Strife. New Delhi: Sage Publications, 210-222.

Book reviews

Guilherme, Maria Manuela (2009) review of Alison Phipps (2007), Learning the Arts of Linguistic Survival: Languaging, Tourism, Life, Cleveland, United Kingdom: Multilingual Matters, 205 págs., in International Journal of Culture, Tourism and Hospitality Research, 3, 2,181 – 182.

# Other publications National

Book chapters

Khan, Sheila (2009), "Imigrantes Africanos Moçambicanos: narrativa de Imigração e de Identidade e Estratégias de Aculturação em Portugal e na Inglaterra. Lisboa: Colibri.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Corpos de violência, linguagens de resistência: as complexas teias de conhecimentos no Moçambique contemporâneo", in Boaventura de Sousa Santos e Maria Paula Meneses (org.), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Almedina, 177-213.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Justiça Cognitiva", in António Cattani, J. L. Laville, Luis Inácio Gaiger e Pedro Hespanha (org.), Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Editora Almedina, 231-236.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Um Ocidente Não-Ocidentalista?: a filosofia à venda, a douta ignorância e a aposta de Pascal", in Boaventura de Sousa e Meneses, Maria Paula (org.), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Editora Almedina, 445-486.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Para além do pensamento abissal: das linhas globais a uma ecologia de saberes", in Boaventura de Sousa e Meneses, Maria Paula (org.), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Editora Almedina, 23-71.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa; Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Introdução", in Boaventura de Sousa Santos e Maria Paula Meneses (org.), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Almedina, 9-19.

Edition of scientific journals special volumes

Araújo, Marta; Matias, Marisa; Santos, Hélia; Sena Martins, Bruno (2009), "O Imaginário Europeu a partir da Controvérsia dos Cartoons: Desenhando Civilizações?", thematic number of "e-cadernos ces", 03.

Book reviews

Maeso, Silvia Rodríguez (2009) review of Gabriel Gatti (2008), El detenidodesaparecido. Narrativas posibles para una catástrofe de la identidad, Montevideo:

Trilce, 176 págs., in Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, 85, 172-176.

Master and Ph.D. thesis completed

Gomes, Catarina Antunes. PhD thesis "De como o poder se produz: Angola e as suas transições", supervised by Fernando Ruivo (FEUC).

Rodrigues, António Farinhas Master's dissertation "O lugar do político no parlamento português", supervised by Fernando Ruivo (FEUC).

Rosário, Maria Luísa do. Master's dissertation "O contributo das Autarquias na educação", supervised by Fernando Ruivo (FEUC).

# Patents/propotypes

Not applicable

## **Organization of conferences**

Allegretti, Giovanni; Dias, Nelson (2009), Organisation of "Universidade de Verão: Governação e Participação desafiando a crise", São Brás de Alportel, Portugal, 8-12 September.

Allegretti, Giovanni; Ramos, Alfredo (2009), Organisation of IX Conferência Internacional do OIDP - Grupo de trabajo: "La imagen como herramienta comunicativa y participativa, Reggio Emila, Italy, 18-20 November.

Barbosa, Carlos Elias; Mendes, Paulo (2009) Organisation of the Seminar "Escola, Associativismo Imigrante e Participação Política em Portugal", Ponta Delgada, Portugal, 23 June.

Khan, Sheila (2009), Organisation and convenor of the session, 'Voicing Africa(s): Narratives, Readings and Reflections', at Africa - In Search of Alternatives, Nordic Africa Days, Africa Network Norway and the Nordic Africa Institute (orgs.), NTNU, Trondheim, Norway, 1-3 October.

Maeso, Silvia Rodríguez; Sousa Ribeiro, António; MacDowell Santos, Cecília; Cruzeiro, Manuela (2009) Organisation of "Memória, História e Justiça", CES, Coimbra, 15-16 September.

Maeso, Silvia Rodríguez; Hernández, Raúl (2009) Organisation of the Symposium "Más allá de las movilizaciones étnicas. Políticas de la identidad, conflictos sociales y relaciones estado/sociedad en América Latina", at the 53rd Congresso Internacional de Americanistas, Ciudad de México, 24 July.

Maeso, Silvia Rodríguez; Gatti, Gabriel; MacDowell Santos, Cecília (2009) Organisation of "Las ciencias sociales y el derecho ante la violencia social. Memoria, identidad y quiebras de lo cotidiano", Instituto Internacional de Sociología Jurídica, Oñati, Spain, 4-5 June.

Meneses, Maria Paula; Avritzer, Leonardo; Gomes, Nilma (2009) Organisation of "Sociedade Civil e Pós-colonialismo: um debate sobre paradigmas para o entendimento da América Latina", Belo Horizonte, Brasil, 4-8 August.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009) Organisation of the Conference "Uma história Portuguesa numa aldeia do Ribatejo" - Fotografias de Fausto Giaccone, CES, 30 April (with Centro de Documentação 25 de Abril).

## **Industry contract research**

Not applicable

#### Internationalization

The internationalisation of research projects and teams have allowed to echo the results in a growing number of publications in international peer-reviewed journals, edited books in prestigious publishing houses, as well as keynote addresses by several members of the Group.

The growing number of research projects has contributed to the broadening of the number of international researchers associated with the Group – namely, integrating well-known scholars as consultants of research projects -, which has helped to deepen the debates at the core of the thematic interests of the Group. One of the strategic aims of the Group is to be at the centre of controversial and fracturing debates in contemporary societies, both in the global North and South, such as questions related to the colonial fracture and its postcolonial impacts, racism and critical race theories, identity processes, religion and cultural rights, among others. The recently approved European research project "TOLERACE - The semantics of tolerance and (anti-)racism in Europe: Public bodies and civil society on a comparative perspective", within the European Commission's FP7 Programme is a good example of internationalisation of research.

Moreover, several protocols have been established with internationally recognised institutions, which have been materialized in the joint organisation of international conferences, Advanced Training Courses and workshops.

Several Researchers participated in international activities and evaluation committees including memberships of CODESRIA (Lusophone section).

Finally, several of the members of this Group have also been actively engaged in the setting up of CES-América Latina (Brazil) and of CES-Aquino de Bragança (Mozambique). These collaborative protocols aim to consolidate and expand North-South dialogues, with a specific emphasis on international, collaborative research carried out in Latin American an African contexts by researchers with an interdisciplinary approach.

Government/Organization contract research

The Group aims to intensify its endeavours in promoting Advanced Training and Policy Discussion Workshops for policy-makers and civil society agents in Portugal,

particularly those engaged in political participation, decentralization, interculturality and anti-racism.

This strategy is being strengthened through the carrying out of several research projects, namely: Formal access to local political spaces in the local context: immigrant voters and elected in Portuguese municipalities and parishes (FCT); Participatory Budget – more participation, better democracy (funded by Equal); 'Race' and Africa in Portugal: a study on history textbooks (FCT); Global Charter-agenda of Human Rights in the City (funded by Ayuntamiento de Barcelona, Spain); "TOLERACE - The semantics of tolerance and (anti-)racism in Europe: Public bodies and civil society on a comparative perspective" (EC-FP7-SSH). These projects have a strong focus on the construction of partnerships with public institutions and civil society organizations.

#### **Future Research**

## **Objectives**

NEDCMP will continue to develop its lines of research, in connection with a number of approved research projects, as well as through outreach activities, and with the further development of research networks in Portugal, Europe and beyond.

The growing number of incoming researchers and the enlargement of the international scholars involved in projects within the Group poses a challenge both in terms of management of the research environment and capacity-building, as well as the difficulties of establishing a productive academic debate, namely in discussing how interculturality is seen from different international contexts and scholar traditions across the North-South divide. The discussions on the research results have contributed towards the reworking of key theoretical concepts and debates, as well as spaces of intervention.

In the near future, the NEDCMP aims at:

- consolidating the research along the above mentioned five thematic lines of the Group, together with a reinforcement of the interdisciplinary character of approaches. A strong emphasis will be placed upon issues related to antiracism to be carried out both along the research lines of the several projects envisaged, to colonial/postcolonial fractures and disability studies, and on issues relating to domestic violence.
- implementing the Observatory of Cultural and Religious Diversity in Southern Europe. Sponsored by the programme "Compromisso com a Ciência", its main research objective lies in probing the (re)emergence of political interpretations of religion in Europe from an interdisciplinary perspective. Its principal aim is to enliven the discussion by comparing religious and political practices in the Mediterranean basin.

These two lines are particularly relevant, since they seek to broaden the critical analysis of Portuguese society in relation to southern Europe, Europe and the world, using a transcalar approach.

- reinforcing the research on complex legal pluralities - the multiple norms, institutions,

practices and beliefs that characterise post-colonial societies. Tackling these issues from a transdisciplinar perspective, with a stronger emphasis placed upon the countries that integrate CPLP (Countries with Portuguese as Official Language), members of the Group will participate in projects and working groups, critically addressing the role played by the multiple legal instances present in shaping understandings of gender, justice, community and personhood;

- broadening the network of researchers and institutions sharing similar academic interest, thus further reinforcing the internationalization of the Group and of CES as a whole. Another important moment will be the reinforcement of research and outreach activities to be carried out with CES Aquino de Bragança and Ces América Latina;
- expanding the research networking and collaboration with other research groups at CES, especially through the co-organization of advanced training courses, research seminars, etc.
- deepening the articulation of policy(ies), research, training and other outreach activities, thus fulfilling one of main obligations of CES as an Associate Laboratory;
- increasing the involvement of Ph.D. students and postdoctoral research fellows in research and outreach activities carried out by the Group, as well as the number of publications.

Among other activities to be developed are included a number of seminars, workshops and conferences, some within the framework of the existing research projects. Special reference deserves the Tuesday Seminars, an innovative model of seminar, involving a number of stakeholders in dialogue with NECDMP research, will debate current controversies and debates.

On the overall, some of the Group planned multiple scientific events for 2010 are:

Seminars: "Religion and migration" by Ronaldo Machado (Univer. Estadual de Campinas); "Education and (anti)racism" Teun Van Dijk (Univer. Pompeu Fabra); "Migrations and Spaces of Participation" (NEM/NEDCMP); "Heritage, Memories and Identities" (Paula Meneses, Marta Araújo, Sílvia Maeso, Cecília MacDowell Santos)

Distinguished Lecturers: "Africa: colonialism, decolonization and postcolonialism", by Immanuel Wallerstein, under the scope of the Ph.D. program on Postcolonialisms and Global Citizenship

Advanced Training Courses: "Political participation of immigrants" (Clemens Zobel, Giovanni Allegretti, Carlos Elias Barbosa) (CES/ACIDI); "Secularism and Human Rights" (Mathias Thaler, Teresa Toldy); "Race' and Africa in Portugal: a study on history schoolbooks in Portugal" (Marta Araújo)".

In addition to the ongoing research projects, we will continue to seek to further develop the research results from recent projects, namely through new European research proposals. A recent large European project was accepted (TOLERACE), and another

one, in which CES acts as a partner, was submitted.

Research activities in the coming year are going to be largely concentrated on studies developed in the framework of ten projects, five of which to start anew in 2010.

# Funding, source, dates

"Formal access to local political spaces in the local context: immigrant voters and elected in Portuguese municipalities and parishes", FCT/ACIDI, 57.500€ (20082010). Coord. by Fernando Ruivo.

"'Race' and Africa in Portugal: a study on history textbooks - RAP", FCT, 57.460€ (2008-2011). Coord. by Marta Araújo.

"External Impact Evaluation of International Cooperation Projects Implemented by NGO Africa 70", Africa 70, 20.040€ (2008-2011). Coord. by Giovanni Allegretti.

"Participatory Budgets in Sweden", Swedish Association of Local Authorities and Regions – SALAR, 9.500€ (2008-2010). Coord. by G. Allegretti.

"Lives scarred by History: The Portuguese Colonial War and the "Disabled of the Armed Forces"", FCT, 104.000€ (2010-2013). Coord. Boaventura de Sousa Santos.

"Participatory Budgeting as innovative tool for reinventing local institutions in Portugal and Cape Verde? A critical analysis of performance and transfers" FCT, 163.499,00€ (2010-2013). Coord. Giovanni Allegretti.

"The comprometidos': questioning the future of the past in Mozambique", FCT, 95.000€ (2010-2013). Coord. Maria Paula Meneses.

"TOLERACE - The semantics of tolerance and (anti-)racism in Europe: Public bodies and civil society on a comparative perspective", EU / FP7, CES budget - 615.332€ (2010-2013). Coord. B. de Sousa Santos, with 5 European partners.

"The Reasonable Accommodation of Minorities: Lessons from Canada", Canada-Europe Award program (2010-2011), 9.500 CND (Canadian dollars). Coord. Mathias Thaler.

# State, Law and Administration

**Group Description** 

Title of Research (RG-Centro-50012-3644)

Group: State, Law and Administration

Principal António Manuel Carvalho de Casimiro Ferreira

Investigator:

**Main Scientific** 

Domain: Ciências Jurídicas e Ciências Políticas

Group Host Centro de Estudos Sociais - Faculdade de Economia da

**Institution:** Universidade de Coimbra

Funding, source, dates Funding, source, dates

Monitoring the Reform of Criminal Law Code and Process, Coordinators: Boaventura de Sousa Santos and Conceição Gomes, 2007-2009, Funded by Portuguese Ministry of Justice, 257.000€

Support to the creation of the Permanent Observatory for Brazilian Justice, Coordinator: Boaventura de Sousa Santos, 2007-2009, Funded by Brazilian Ministry of Justice, 29.500€

Plurality of legal and justice systems in Luanda, Angola, Coordinator: Boaventura de Sousa Santos, 2007-2009, Coordinator: Boaventura de Sousa Santos, Funded by Agostinho Neto University, Angola, 113.156€

# **Objectives & Achievements**

## **Objectives**

This Research Group is co-coordinated by Cecília MacDowell Santos and António Casimiro Ferreira

The State, Law, and Administration Research Group (NEEDA) devotes its work to socio-legal research and disseminating knowledge on the functioning of the State and the administration of justice; State law and its relations to other sources of the production of law; the relations between the State, the law and social movements; the exercise of justice and the construction of human rights in contemporary societies. With a multidisciplinary and international research team, this Research Group brings together diverse theoretical perspectives on the State and the law which meet at a point of common critical and socially engaged vision of the social sciences, in general, and the socio-legal knowledge, in particular.

In the current context of neo-liberal globalization, this Research Group has focused its research projects on themes such as the globalization of the law; legal pluralism; prisons; access to the law and the administration of justice; legal professions and their role to the performance of justice; transnational mobilization of human rights;

# **Objectives & Achievements**

trafficking of women for the purpose of sexual exploitation; over-indebtedness; and the conditions of possibility for the construction of new citizenship rights, such as labour rights in the context of the precarization of labour, children's rights, women's rights, indigenous' rights, consumers' rights, environmental rights, among others.

In addition to its recognized scientific contribution and its increasing internationalization, the State, the Law, and Administration Research Group has also contributed to the improvement of the administration of justice through invitations to participate in the processes of judicial reform in Portugal and in other countries, through it's Observatory of Portuguese Justice, and the support to the creation of the Observatory of Brazilian Justice. We highlight the development of the Observatory of Portuguese Justice, not only for its contribution to the national debate and reforms, but also for the increasing participation in international networks and the widening of their interests, as it can be seen by the current research projects.

Disseminating socio-legal knowledge is another area where NEEDA intervenes. To that end, training courses are structured for the scientific community and legal operators, focusing on themes such as the new penal reform; the challenges of Labour Law; Immigration, Integration and Human Rights; organisation and management of the Courts; and the new Administrative Justice. Another objective which should be singled out is the consolidation of the PhD programme on 'Law, Justice and Citizenship in the 21st Century', which began in 2006.

#### **Main Achievements**

Of the objectives determined for NEEDA for 2009 we highlight three main achievements, regarding the increase and consolidation of international cooperation and research, through the set up of networks and partnerships, which have in turn allowed for consolidation of the research group's international project, whether in the form of research networks or training and teaching protocols.

We single out the following examples: 1) The implementation of the Observatory of Brazilian Justice; 2) The research project "European Arrest Warrant in law and in practice: a comparative study for the consolidation of the European law-enforcement area", a partnership of four countries (Italy, Spain, Portugal and Netherlands), coordinated by CES (funded by the European Union – Justice, Home Affairs and Freedom Department); 3) the research project "Menu for Justice. Toward a European Curriculum Studiorum on Judicial Studies", a network of 45 European partners, coordinated by the University of Bologna (Italy); 4) The research project "Plurality of legal and justice systems in Luanda, Angola", a bi-national research team, in a project funded by the Agostinho Neto University (Angola); 5) The partnership with the Association of Portuguese Judges (Protocol for cooperation which includes the Advanced Training Programme Justiça XXI); 6) The establishment of a protocol with the Instituto de Ricerca sui Sistemi Giudiziari (Research Institute on Judicial Systems - IRSIG), Consiglio Nazionale delle Ricerche.

# **Objectives & Achievements**

Secondly, in 2009 NEEDA organized several international scientific conferences in Coimbra, namely: "Les orientations de recherché d'une sociologie politique du droit et de la justice", with the participation of Prof. Jacques Commaille (ENS Cachan); "Globalization and the Legal Profession", with Prof. John Flood (Univ. Westminster); "A Lei e a Legitimação do Sofrimento (Law and the Legitimation of Suffering)", with Prof. Richard Mohr (Univ. Wollongon - Australia); the International Seminar "Direitos Humanos e Mobilização Jurídica Transnacional no Contexto Europeu (Human Rights and Transnational Juridical Mobilization in the European Context)"; "States of Impunity: The Role of NGOs in Addressing Gross and Systematic Violations of the European Convention on Human Rights", with Prof. Loveday Hodson (UK). Researchers from NEEDA also participated in international conferences in other countries, such as: International Congress "Complexity, Conflicts and Justice", in the International Institute for Sociology of Law (IISL), Oñati, Spain, among others, reinforcing their integration in international networks, for which we have been frequently invited, as a recognition of the high quality of our research activities.

Thirdly, in the area of the training and teaching protocols, 2009 was the year of the second edition of the PhD program on "Law, Justice and Citizenship in the 21st Century", an innovative doctoral program resulting from the cooperation between CES and the Faculty of Law of the University of Coimbra. Furthermore, during 2009 the Advanced Training Programme "Justiça XXI", jointly organized by NEEDA and the Association of Portuguese Judges, was maintained with four different thematic sessions. The Research Group also organized other training courses and seminars, such as "O acesso e a promoção do direito das crianças e jovens (Acessing and Promoting Law on Child and Youth) and "Métodos Qualitativos de Investigação (Qualitative Research Methods), among other activities related with our research projects.

# **Group Productivity**

# **Publications in peer review Journals**

Alferes, V. R.; Bidarra, M. G.; Lopes, C. A.; Mónico, L. S. (2009), "Domínios de investigação, orientações metodológicas e autores das revistas portuguesas de psicologia: Tendências de publicação nas últimas quatro décadas do séc. XX", Análise Psicológica, 27, 1, 3-20.

Antonio Gomes Moreira, Maués; Santos, Élida (2009), "Estabilidade constitucional e acordos constitucionais: os processos constituintes de Brasil e Espanha", Revista Direito GV, 4, 349-387.

Barradas, Carlos (2009), "No prelo - Poder ver, poder saber. A fotografia nos meandros do colonialismo e pós-colonialismo", Arquivos da Memória, 4.

Barradas, Carlos; Duarte, Madalena (2009), "No prelo - Entre a legalidade e a ilegalidade: representações em torno do direito ao aborto em Portugal", e-cadernos CES, 4, 24.

Gomes, Conceição (2009), "A emergência da avaliação e da responsabilização na

reforma do sistema penal: alguns tópicos", Justiça XXI, 1.

Machado, Helena (2009), "Builders of bio(in)security: The role of politicians, experts, police agents and volunteers in the DNA profiles database for forensic purposes", Etnográfica.

Machado, Helena; Santos, Filipe (2009), "Popular press and forensic genetics in Portugal – Expectation and disappointment regarding two cases of missing children", Public Understanding of Science, online first, 1-16.

Machado, Helena; Santos, Filipe (2009), "Popular press and forensic genetics in Portugal – Expectation and disappointment regarding two cases of missing children", Public Understanding of Science, Disponível em, http://pus.sagepub.co.uk.

Machado, Helena; Santos, Filipe (2009), "The disappearance of Madeleine McCann: Public drama and trial by media in the Portuguese press", Crime, Media, Culture, 5, 2, 146-167.

Machado, Helena; Santos, Filipe (2009), "The disappearance of Madeleine McCann: Public drama and trial by media in the Portuguese press", Crime, Media, Culture, 5, 2, 146-167.

Machado, Helena; Silva, Susana (2009), "Gender and ethics in qualitative interviewing: Research relationships in the context of a study of infertility in Portugal", Journal of International Ethics, 6, 2-3, 1-29.

Machado, Helena; Silva, Susana (2009), "Informed consent in forensic DNA databases: Volunteering, constructions of risk and identity categorization", Biosocieties, 4, 4, 335-348.

Machado, Helena; Silva, Susana (2009), "Trust, morality and altruism in the donation of biological material – The case of Portugal", New Genetics and Society, 28, 2, 103-118.

Machado, Helena; Silva, Susana; Amorim, António (2009), "DNA profile and politics of identity: The genetic-criminal identity", Análise Social.

Maués, Antonio Gomes Moreira; Santos, Élida (2009), "Estabilidade constitucional e acordos constitucionais: os processos constituintes de Brasil e Espanha", Revista Direito GV, 4, 349-387.

Namorado, Rui (2009), "Para uma economia solidária - a partir do caso português", Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, 84.

Namorado, Rui (2009), "Sobre o sector cooperativo em Portugal", Cooperativismo e Economia Social, 31.

Santos, Ana Cristina; Madalena, Duarte; Carlos, Barradas; Magda, Alves (2009), "Entre a legalidade e a ilegalidade: representações em torno do direito ao aborto em

Portugal" thematic number of "e-cadernos", 4.

Santos, Ana Cristina; Madalena, Duarte; Carlos, Barradas; Magda, Alves (2009), ""Representações sobre o aborto: acção colectiva e (i)legalidade num contexto em mudança"" thematic number of "e-cadernos CES", 4.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), ""If God were a Human Rights Activist: Human Rights and the Challenge of Political Theologies", Law Social Justice and Global Development, 1.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "A Non-Occidentalist West?: Philosophy for Sale, Learned Ignorance, and the Wager", Theory, Culture & Society Special Issue: Occidentalism: Jack Goody and Comparative History.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "L'università del XXI secolo: verso una riforma universitaria democratica ed emancipatrice", Studi Culturali, 1, 3-22.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Por qué Cuba se ha vuelto un problema difícil para la izquierda?", El Viejo Topo, 256, 29-37.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Portugal: Tales of Being and not Being", Portuguese Literary & Cultural Studies, 20, 1-45.

Santos, Cecília MacDowell; Lima, Teresa Maneca; Santos, Ana Cristina; Duarte, Madalena (2009), "Portugal e o Tribunal Europeu dos Direitos Humanos: Reflexões sobre a Literatura Jurídica", Revista do Ministério Público, 117, 127-158.

Santos, Cecília; Santos, Ana Cristina; Duarte, Madalena; Lima, Teresa Maneca (2009), "Portugal e o Tribunal Europeu dos Direitos Humanos", Revista do Ministério Público, 117, 127-158.

Silva, Susana; Machado, Helena (2009), "The governance of adequate patients in the access to assisted reproduction technologies in Portugal", Sociologia – Problemas e Práticas.

Silva, Susana; Machado, Helena (2009), "The juridical, medical and 'lay' understanding of the embryo in Portugal: An alignment with biology?", Interface (Botucatu), 13, 30, 31-43.

Zobel, Clemens; Barbosa, Carlos Elias (2009), "Eleitos e eleitores estrangeiros nas autarquias portugueses", Revista Critica das Cîencias Sociais

Other publications International

Branco, Patrícia (2009) critical recension to Bernini, Stefania (2007), Family Life and Individual Welfare in Post-war Europe: Britain and Italy Compared., Basingstoke: Palgrave Macmillan, 199, in Journal of Social Policy, 193-194.

Branco, Patrícia (2009), "Justice et architecture: la relation entre accès au droit et architecture judiciaire", in Guillaume Protière (org.), Espaces du Droit et Droit des

Espaces. Paris: L'Harmattan.

Ferreira, António Casimiro (2009-10-30), "The crisis and the dynamics of global justice" in ETUI (org.), The crisis and the transition to new models of work and welfare. Lisboa: ETUI.

Frade, Catarina (2009), "- "Financial Stress and Over-Indebtedness: A Comparative Study Across Europe", in Niemi-Kiesilainen, J., Ramsay, I. e Whitford, W. (org.) (org.), Consumer credit, debt and bankruptcy: Comparative and international perspective. Oxford: Hart Publishing.

Frade, Catarina; Lopes, Cláudia A. (2009), "Financial stress and overindebtedness in Europe", in Joanna Niemi, Iain Ramsay, and William Whitford (org.), Consumer credit, debt and bankruptcy: Comparative and international perspective. Oxford: Hart Publishing, 249-271.

Harris, Bernard; Gálvez, Lina; Machado. Helena (org.), The transmission of wellbeing: Marriage strategies and inheritance systems in Europe from 17th-20th centuries. Bern: Peter Lang.

Machado, Helena (2009), "Gendered and social differences on acceding to inheritance by illegitimate children: Analysing court procedures for the determination of paternity in Portugal (1893-1966)", in Harris, Bernard; Gálvez, Lina; Machado, Helena (org.), Gender and well-being: Historical and contemporary perspectives. Aldershot: Ashgate, 223-242.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Maciane F. Zimba e Carolina J. Tamele: médicos tradicionais, dirigentes da Associação de Médicos Tradicionais", in Boaventura de Sousa Santos (org.), Vozes do Mundo. Rio de Janeiro: Civilização Brasileira.

Pedroso, João; Branco, Patrícia (2009), "Law is not enough! - The mutations of the access to family and children law and justice in Portugal" in International Society of Family

Law (org.)
http://www.law2.byu.edu/isfl/conferences/Law%20is%20not%20enough!.pdf.

Pureza, José Manuel (2009), ""Segurança humana: vinho novo em odres velhos?"", in Reginaldo Mattar Nasser (org.), Os conflitos internacionais em múltiplas dimensões. São Paulo: UNESP, 21-33.

Pureza, José Manuel (2009), "Democracia limitada y paz liberal:anotaciones sobre el 'totus orbis' en tiempo de globalización neoliberal", in Alfonso Guerra e José Félix Tezanos (org.), La calidad de la democracia. Las democracias del siglo XXI. Madrid: Editorial Sistema, 431-438.

Pureza, José Manuel; Simões, Mónica Rafael; José, André Cristiano; Marcelino, Carla (2009), ""Las nuevas operaciones de Paz de Naciones Unidas: los casos de Angola, Timor Oriental y Mozambique" ", in Monica Hirst (org.), Crisis del Estado e intervención internacional. Buenos Aires: Edhasa.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Las paradojas de nuestro tiempo y la plurinacionald", in Acosta, Alberto e Martínez, Esperanza (org.), Plurianacional. Democracia en la diversidad. Quito: Abya Yala, 21-62.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Para além do Pensamento Abissal: Das linhas globais a uma ecologia de saberes", in Starling, Heloisa e Almeida, Sandra (org.), Sentimentos do Mundo. Ciclo de Conferências dos 80 anos da UFMG. Belo Horizonte: Editora UFMG.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Para além do Pensamento Abissal: Das linhas globais a uma ecologia de saberes" in Starling, Heloisa e Almeida, Sandra (org.), Sentimentos do Mundo. Ciclo de Conferências dos 80 anos da UFMG. Belo Horizonte: Editora UFMG, 77-128.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Para uma pedagogia do conflito", in Freitas, Ana Lúcia e Moraes, Salete Campos (org.), Contra o desperdício da experiência. A pedagogia do conflito revisitada. Porto Alegre: Redes Editora Lda., 15-40.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Pourquoi Cuba est devenu un problème difficile pour la gauche", Mouvements, 31 mai 2009.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Toward a multicultural conception of human rights", in Isa, Felipe Gómez e Feyter, Koen (org.), Gómez and Feyter, Koen (Orgs.), International. Bilbão: University of Deusto, 97-121.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Why Has Cuba Become a Difficult Problem for the Left?", Latin American Perspectives.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), Una Epistemologia del Sur. La reinvención del Conocimiento y la Emancipación Social. Buenos Aires: Siglo XXI Editores, CLACSO.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (org.) (2009), As Vozes do Mundo. Rio de Janeiro: Civilização Brasileira.

Santos, Cecília MacDowell (2009) critical recension to Sarah Hautzinger (2007), Violence in the City of Women: Police and Batterers in Bahia, Brazil, Berkeley e Los Angeles: University of California Press, 342, in Journal of Latin American and Caribbean Anthropology, 485-487.

Santos, Cecília MacDowell (2009), "A justiça ao serviço da memória: mobilização jurídica transnacional, direitos humanos e memória da ditadura", in C. M. Santos, E. L. de A. Teles e J. de A. Teles (org.), Desarquivando a Ditadura: Memória e Justiça no Brasil (Vol. 2). São Paulo: Editora Hucitec, 472-495.

Santos, Cecília MacDowell (2009), "Xucuru do Ororubá e Direitos Humanos dos Indígenas: Lutas pela Terra-Segurança e Estado no Brasil", in Jayme Benvenuto (org.), Direitos Humanos: Debates Contemporâneos. Recife. Recife: By the author, 24-50.

Santos, Cecilia MacDowell; Teles, Edson; Teles, Janaina de Almeida (orgs.) (2009),

Desarquivando a Ditadura: Memória e Justiça no Brasil (Volume 1 e Volume 2). São Paulo: Editora Hucitec.

Santos, Cecília MacDowell; Teles, Edson; Teles, Janaína de Almeida (2009), "Apresentação", in Cecília MacDowell Santos, Edson Teles e Janaína de Almeida Teles (org.), Desarquivando a Ditadura: Memória e Justiça no Brasil. São Paulo: Editora Hucitec, 11-21.

## **Other publications National**

Barradas, Carlos (2009-06-29), "A vez das mulheres - representações sobre aborto em Portugal" in UMAR (org.), CD-ROM Actas do Congresso Feminista. Lisboa: UMAR.

Branco, Patrícia (2009), "A Tecnologia ao Serviço da Parentalidade Tradicional: Considerações sobre um caso não tradicional" in UMAR (org.), Actas do Congresso Feminista 2008, Lisboa.

Branco, Patrícia (2009), "Fragilidades e potencialidades do sistema de acesso ao direito e à justiça da família e dos menores: um estudo de caso" in Associação Portuguesa de Sociologia (org.), Actas do VI Congresso Português de Sociologia. Lisboa.

Calori, Andrea (2009), "Medindo o progresso e o bem-estar: temas interdisciplinares e novos campos de políticas"; "Encontros entre culturas: sugestões sobre relações socio-económicas da cultura financeira islâmica e práticas mutualistas". Coimbra: CES.

Calori, Andrea (2009), Encontros entre culturas: sugestões sobre relações socioeconómicas da cultura financeira islâmica e práticas mutualistas. Coimbra: CES.

Gomes, Conceição (2009), "A emergência da avaliação e da responsabilização na reforma do sistema penal: alguns tópicos", Justiça XXI, 1.

Lopes, Cláudia A. (2009), "Moralidade Económica e Crimes do dia-a-dia", in Luis de Sousa (org.), Ética, Estado e Economia: Atitudes e práticas dos Europeus. Lisboa: Imprensa de Ciências Socias, 27-65.

Machado, Helena (2009), "Foreword", in Susana Silva and Luísa Veloso (org.), Representações jurídicas das tecnologias reprodutivas: Contributos para uma reflexão. Porto: Editora da Universidade do Porto, 9-12.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Corpos de violência, linguagens de resistência: as complexas teias de conhecimentos no Moçambique contemporâneo", in Boaventura de Sousa Santos e Maria Paula Meneses (org.), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Almedina, 177-213.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Justiça Cognitiva", in António Cattani, J. L. Laville, Luis Inácio Gaiger e Pedro Hespanha (org.), Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Editora Almedina, 231-236.

Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Maciane F. Zimba e Carolina J. Tamele: médicos tradicionais, dirigentes da Associação de Médicos Tradicionais", in Boaventura de Sousa Santos (org.), Vozes do Mundo. Rio de Janeiro: Civilização Brasileira.

Namorado, Rui (2009), "Cooperativismo", Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Editora Almedina.

Namorado, Rui (2009), "Sobre o sector cooperativo em Portugal", Cooperativismo e Economia Social, 31.

Pedroso, João (2009), "A justiça civil em crise: a oportunidade/necessidade de reformar o processo civil", in Brito, Rita (org.), Novos Rumos da Justiça Cível. Coimbra: Coimbra Editora, 53-79.

Pedroso, João (2009), "Fragilidades e potencialidades do sistema de acesso ao direito e à justiça da família e dos menores: um estudo de caso" in Associação Portuguesa de Sociologia (org.), Actas do VI Congresso Português de Sociologia.

Pureza, José Manuel (2009), "Património Comum da Humanidade", in A. Gattinni e Pedro Hespanha (org.), Dicionário da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Almedina.

Ribeiro, Tiago (2009), Uma perspectiva de género da Revolta na Bounty. Conchada: Conchada editoras.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Para além do Pensamento Abissal: Das linhas globais a uma ecologia de saberes", in Santos, Boaventura de Sousa e Meneses, Maria Paula (org.), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Almedina.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Um Ocidente Não-Ocidentalista?: a filosofia à venda, a douta ignorância e a aposta de Pascal", in Boaventura de Sousa e Meneses, Maria Paula (org.), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Editora Almedina, 445-486.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa; Gomes, Conceição; Duarte, Madalena; Baganha, Maria Ioannis (2009), Tráfico de Mulheres em Portugal para fins de exploração sexual/Trafficking in women for the purposes of sexual exploitation in Portugal. Lisboa: Comissão para a Cidadania e Igualdade de Género.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa; Meneses, Maria Paula (2009), "Introdução", in Boaventura de Sousa Santos e Maria Paula Meneses (org.), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Almedina, 9-19.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa; Meneses, Maria Paula (orgs.) (2009), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Almedina.

Master and Ph.D. thesis completed

Gomes, Catarina Antunes - Ph. D. thesis, "De como o poder se produz: Angola e as suas transições", Faculdade de Economia, Universidade de Coimbra, Supervised by Fernando Ruivo.

Lopes, Ana Maria Pereira - master thesis "Desigualdades de Género no Poder Local", Faculdade de Economia, Universidade de Coimbra, Supervised by Fernando Ruivo.

Rodrigues, António Farinhas - master thesis "O lugar do político no parlamento português", Faculdade de Economia, Universidade de Coimbra, Supervised by Fernando Ruivo.

Rosário, Maria Luísa do - master thesis "O contributo das Autarquias na educação", Faculdade de Economia, Universidade de Coimbra, Supervised by Fernando Ruivo.

## **Patents/propotypes**

Not applicable

# **Organization of conferences**

Several events were organised by NEEDA researchers:

"A Cegueira nas Representações Culturais", Leiria, Jan. 2009

"O acesso ao direito e à justiça da família em transformação", Coimbra, Nov. 2009

"Les orientations de recherche d'une sociologie politique du droit et de la justice", with Jacques Commaille, Coimbra, Nov. 2009

"Globalization and the Legal Profession", with John Flod, Coimbra, Nov. 2009

"Accessing and promoting law of child and youth", Coimbra, Sep. 2009

«A Lei e a Legitimação do Sofrimento», with Richard Mohr, Coimbra, May 2009

"Justiça de Proximidade: Uma promessa de cidadania", Coimbra, May 2009

"Arquitectura judiciária: o espaço ao serviço da justiça?", Coimbra, April 2009

"A avaliação do dano corporal: as relações difíceis entre os peritos e os juristas", Coimbra, Jan. 2009

"Estágios de Verão 2009 - CES/Ciência Viva", Coimbra, July 2009

"Avaliação e Gestão das Magistraturas", Coimbra, Sep. 2009

"The politics of human rights, Transnational activism and justice", Oñati, July 2009

"Direitos Humanos e Mobilização Jurídica Transnacional no Contexto Europeu", Coimbra, July 2009

- "Métodos avançados de análise de dados em ciências sociais", Lisbon, July 2009
- "The dilemmas of Ethnic Studies in the United States", with Ramón Grosfoguel, Coimbra, Oct. 2009
- "Sociedade Civil e Pós-colonialismo: América Latina", Belo Horizonte, Brasil, Aug. 2009
- "Transculturação e representatividade linguística em Ungulani Ba Ka Khosa", with Natanile Ngomane, Coimbra, May 2009
- "Uma história Portuguesa numa aldeia do Ribatejo Fotografias de Fausto Giaccone", Coimbra, April 2009
- "Uma Arcádia da Mente ou a Transparência do «Pensamento Selvagem»: Claude Lévi-Strauss", with Luis Quintais, Coimbra, April 2009
- "X Congresso Luso-Afro-Brasileiro de Ciências Sociais", Braga, February 2009
- "Instituições artísticas, Indústrias culturais e Poder Político em Moçambique", Coimbra, Jan. 2009
- "Diálogos Interdisciplinares sobre Justica", Coimbra, April 2009
- "Repressão e Memória Política", Coimbra, July 2009

# **Industry contract research**

Not applicable

## Internationalization

NEEDA has maintained a stance of profound commitment to internationalization of its work, majorly through cooperative networks, the organization of international conferences and research projects at the international scale.

Concerning its international collaboration, through 2009 NEEDA provided assistance for the implementation of the Observatory on Brazilian Justice, and also signed a protocol with the Instituto de Ricerca sui Sistemi Giudiziari (Research Institute on Judicial Systems - IRSIG), Consiglio Nazionale delle Ricerche. Furthermore, NEEDA also organized – or was member of the organization – of several international conferences, namely "Les orientations de recherché d'une sociologie politique du droit et de la justice", "Globalization and the Legal Profession", "A Lei e a Legitimação do Sofrimento (Law and Legitimating of Suffering)", the International Seminar "Direitos Humanos e Mobilização Jurídica Transnacional no Contexto Europeu (Human Rights and Transnational Juridical Mobilization in the European Context)" and "States of Impunity: The Role of NGOs in Addressing Gross and Systematic Violations of the European Convention on Human Rights". Finally, regarding international research

projects, NEEDA has worked for foreign organizations, with the research projects "European Arrest Warrant in law and in practice: a comparative study for the consolidation of the European law-enforcement area" and "Menu for Justice. Toward a European Curriculum Studiorum on Judicial Studies", both for the European Union, and "Pluralidade de ordens jurídicas e sistemas de justiça em Luanda, Angola" (Plurality of legal and justice systems in Luanda, Angola), for the Faculty of Law of the University Agostinho Neto in Angola.

## **Government/Organization contract research**

Through 2009, NEEDA was contracted by the Portuguese Government and Portuguese organizations and institutes (Ministry of Justice and National Institute for Cooperation and Aid), in order to develop several research projects, regarding areas such as the evaluation of law reforms (Monitoring the Reform of Criminal Law Code and Process; Assessment of the Legal Regime and Application of Family Law in Portuguese Courts and Reform Proposals), resolution of juridical disputes (Training Courses – Office for Alternative Dispute Resolution), the evaluation of national plans for governmental policies (Evaluation of the National Plan against Human Trafficking), the evaluation of international cooperation of the Portuguese State (Portuguese Cooperation in the Sector of Justice in African Portuguese Speaking Countries (2000-2009) – an Evaluation) and the organization of the judicial system (Bailiffs' and Magistrates' Work Practices in Court: How to Achieve More Qualification, Less Repetition and Better Efficiency?).

These contracts shows the recognition of our research results and productivity in areas where demanded expertise and knowledge are very specific. Therefore, it has been possible to articulate research independence with support to public policies, with public impact.

#### **Future Research**

Objectives

For the near future, NEEDA's objectives encompass a wide range of areas, ranging from internationalization and knowledge dissemination to research activities.

Regarding its international activity, the Research Group shall seek to widen its international status, both through the establishment of new – and consolidation of present – partnerships and networks for research and knowledge transferring, on one hand, and the publishing of NEEDA's works on international journals whenever possible, on the other. Also, the Research Group intends to organize international conferences in Coimbra, encompassing the thematic areas it researches, in general, and particularly on the specific themes which are to be researched through 2010. Finally, the Research Group plans to have its members participating in international conferences organized by foreign institutions, as much as possible, simultaneously as a means to share knowledge and establish contacts with other analogous researchers and institutions.

Regarding the dissemination of knowledge, NEEDA shall follow four different but complementary paths in 2010. First and foremost, the Research Group intends both to maintain and broaden the organization of advanced training courses, by itself and through its present partnerships, namely with the Association of Portuguese Judges, and also to participate with its members in training courses organized by other institutions, whenever invited, thus making full use of its researchers ample knowledge on a wide range of issues encompassed by our activity. Furthermore, adding to the same effort at the international level, NEEDA intends to present the results of its works on a variety of publications, from national scientific journals to a broader range of a more general nature, in order to reach a varied public which might show interest in the thematic areas researched by the Research Group. Thirdly, NEEDA shall regularly call for press conferences in which its work will be reported, as a means to regularly take its work to the general public and society. Among these objectives, some highlights will be the edition of the book "Governação das Relações Laborais e Negociação Colectiva em Portugal (Labor Relations Governance and Collective Bargaining in Portugal") and of a special thematic edition of CES's international journal, dedicated to the theme "Direito e Justiça no Século XXI (Law and Justice on the XXI Century), authored and coordinated by some of NEEDAs' researchers (five other books are also planned to be released during the year, related with the research projects that will end in 2010). Lastly, several seminars and colloquia are already programmed for 2010, on the areas researched by the Research Group, simultaneously as a means to disseminate knowledge, and to offer training on a variety of issues concerning law and justice.

Finally, the Research Group will start several research projects in 2010, and continue others already ongoing, on a ample range of thematic areas, both financed by the Fundação para a Ciência e Tecnologia (Science and Technology Foundation) and resulting from contracts with public and private institutions, both national and international, as such widening and consolidating its status of reference on the scientific panorama. Included in the themes of these new projects to be started in 2010, are gender, family, infant/child and divorce law reforms, the socioprofessional characterization of judges and public prosecutors in Portugal, illegal immigration and access to law and justice in the European Union, and comparative analysis of access to justice the capitals of four different countries.

Funding, source, dates FCT Projects:

J

The mutations of access to law and justice in the European Union, 2007-2010, 70.080€

Compensations for personal injuries in law and court decisions, 2007-2010, 65.509€

Transnational Legal Mobilization? Portugal and the ECHR, 2007-2010, 72.456€

Gender inequality and violence in family law, 2010-2012, 62.088€

Who are they? Professional characterisation of judges and public prosecutors in Portugal, 2010-2013, 70.000€

Organized civil society and courts: the mobilization of law and justice in Lisbon,

Luanda, Maputo and São Paulo, 2010-2012, 70.000€

Without rights: the (limited) citizenship of illegal immigrants in the European Union and Portugal, 2010-2012, 35.000€

Courthouse architecture and access to law and justice: the case of family and child courts in Portugal, 2010-2011, 35.000€

Ministry of Justice projects:

Assessment of the Legal Regime and Application of Family Law in Portuguese Courts and Reform Proposals, 2009-2010, 80.000€

Training Courses – Office for Alternative Dispute Resolution, 2009-2010, 50.000€

Bailiffs' and Magistrates' Work Practices in Court, 2009-2010, 80.000€

Assessment on the Law of Divorce, 2010, 40.000€

#### Other:

European Arrest Warrant in law and in practice, 2008-2010, European Union, 382.836€

Evaluation of the National Plan against Human Trafficking, 2009-2010, Commission for Citizenship and Gender Equality, 40.000€

Portuguese Cooperation in the Sector of Justice in African Countries, 2009-2010, Institute for Development Aid, 70.000€

## **Research Lines**

# **Institutions, Regulation and Citizenship**

**Group Description** 

(RL-CJP-LA12-35)

Title of Research Group: Institutions, Regulation and Citizenship

Cecilia MacDowell Santos **Principal Investigator:** 

Main Scientific Domain: Ciências Jurídicas e Ciências Políticas

**Objectives & Achievements** 

**General Objectives** 

The Research Area is co-coordinated by Cecília MacDowell Santos and José Manuel Pureza.

This Area includes three Research Groups (State, Law and Administration-NEEDA; Democracy, Multicultural Citizenship and Participation-NEDCMP; and Peace Studies-NEP) and three Observatories (Permanent Observatory for Portuguese Justice-OPJ; Observatory for Consumer Debt-OEC; and Observatory for Gender and Armed Violence-OGAV). The projects developed in this Area centre on the following research lines: justice and access to law; legal pluralism; the state and institutions of global regulation; human rights; violence; peace; migrations; identity policies; democracy and participation; territories and powers. In line with the strategic orientations of CES, the general objectives of the Area are threefold: consolidation of a strong interdisciplinary and internationalised research team; training of young scientists; and promotion and diffusion of scientific culture.

## **Main Achievements**

This Area has developed a solid interdisciplinary and internationalised research agenda. In 2009, Research Groups and Observatories completed and initiated numerous projects, consolidated networks, integrated new ones and established new partnerships (e.g., European Union-funded consortium Initiative for Peacebuilding, among others). In addition to the Portuguese Foundation for Science and Technology, funding sources included the European Council, Ministry of Justice of Brazil, United Nations Programme for Development, among others. The Research Groups and Observatories' publications speak to the productive use of these funds.

The Area continued to successfully engage in the training of young scientists. Three types of activities involved collaboration among members of various Research Groups and attracted international students. First, the ongoing coordination and teaching of four PhD programmes: "Democracy in the 21st Century"; "Postcolonialisms and Global Citizenship"; "Law, Justice and Citizenship in the 21st Century"; "International Politics and Conflict Resolution." Secondly, the continued organisation of advanced training courses, such as "Justice in the XXI Century" and "Europe as Idea and Practice."

# **Objectives & Achievements**

Thirdly, the organisation of summer courses, namely "Renewed Ways of Doing Politics" and "The Sex of Violences," two out of the three courses offered under the newly-created CES Summer Courses programme.

The promotion and diffusion of scientific culture was also successful. The OPJ established new projects with European partners. OEC expanded its database on consumer debt. NEP and OGAV promoted numerous outreach activities and produced different types of materials, such as award-winning documentaries. NEDCMP continued to collaborate with the National Agency "Ciência Viva" and contributed, along with NEEDA and OPJ, to the creation of the Brazilian Observatory of Justice.

## **Research Line Output**

## **Collaborative Publications in peer review Journals**

Alferes, V. R.; Bidarra, M. G.; Lopes, C. A.; Mónico, L. S. (2009), "Domínios de investigação, orientações metodológicas e autores das revistas portuguesas de psicologia: Tendências de publicação nas últimas quatro décadas do séc. XX", Análise Psicológica, 27, 1, 3-20.

Duarte, Madalena; Barradas, Carlos; Santos, Ana Cristina; Alves, Madga (2009), "Representações em torno da lei do aborto em Portugal: cenários passados e futuros", Revista do Ministério Público, 120, 191-217.

Freire, Maria Raquel; Ferreira-Pereira, Laura C. (2009), "International Relations in Portugal: The State of the Field and Beyond", Global Society, 23, 1, 79-96.

Freire, Maria Raquel; Mendes, Carmen (2009), "Realpolitik Dynamics and Image Construction in the Russia-China Relationship: Forging a Strategic Partnership?", Journal of Current Chinese Affairs, 2, 27-52.

Machado, Helena; Santos, Filipe (2009), "The disappearance of Madeleine McCann: Public drama and trial by media in the Portuguese press", Crime, Media, Culture, 5, 2, 146-167.

Machado, Helena; Silva, Susana (2009), "Trust, morality and altruism in the donation of biological material – The case of Portugal", New Genetics and Society, 28, 2, 103-118.

Moura, Tatiana; Santos, Rita (2009), "Transformar o luto em luta: sobreviventes da violência armada no Rio de Janeiro", Revista da Faculdade de Direito da FMP, 3, 207-236.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "If God were a Human Rights Activist: Human Rights and the Challenge of Political Theologies", Law Social Justice and Global Development, 1.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa (2009), "Por qué Cuba se ha vuelto un problema difícil para la izquierda?", El Viejo Topo , 256, 29-37.

Santos, Cecília MacDowell; Lima, Teresa Maneca; Santos, Ana Cristina; Duarte, Madalena (2009), "Portugal e o Tribunal Europeu dos Direitos Humanos: Reflexões sobre a Literatura Jurídica", Revista do Ministério Público, 117, 127-158.

# **Collaborative Other Publications**

Allegretti, Giovanni; Sintomer, Yves (2009), I Bilanci Partecipativi in Europa. Nuove esperienze democratiche nel vecchio continente. Roma: Ediesse.

Frade, Catarina; Lopes, Cláudia Abreu (2009), "Overindebtedness and financial stress: A comparative study in Europe", in Johanna Niemi, Iain Ramsay, and William C. Whitford (org.), Consumer credit, debt and bankruptcy: Comparative and international perspectives. Oxford: Hart Publishing, 249-271.

Freire, Maria Raquel; Lopes, Paula Duarte (2009), "Rethinking Peace and Violence: New Dimensions and New Strategies", in Paula Duarte Lopes e Stephen Ryan (org.), Rethinking Peace and Security: New Dimensions, Strategies and Actors. Bilbao: University of Deusto, 13-29.

Machado, Helena; Remoaldo, Paula (2009), "Incomplete women and strong men – Accounts of infertility as a gendered construction of well-being", in Bernard Harris, Lina Gálvez e Helena Machado (org.), Gender and well-being: Historical and contemporary perspectives. Aldershot: Ashgate, 223-242.

Pureza, José Manuel; Mónica Rafael Simões, André Cristiano José e Carla Marcelino (2009), "Las nuevas operaciones de Paz de Naciones Unidas: los casos de Angola, Timor Oriental y Mozambique", in Monica Hirst (org.), Crisis del Estado e intervención internacional. Buenos Aires: Edhasa.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa; Meneses, Maria Paula (orgs.) (2009), Epistemologias do Sul. Coimbra: Almedina.

Santos, Boaventura de Sousa; Gomes, Conceição; Duarte, Madalena; Baganha, Maria Ioannis (2009), Tráfico de Mulheres em Portugal para fins de exploração sexual/Trafficking in women for the purposes of sexual exploitation in Portugal. Lisboa: Comissão para a Cidadania e Igualdade de Género.

Santos, Cecilia MacDowell; Teles, Edson; Teles, Janaina de Almeida (orgs.) (2009), Desarquivando a Ditadura: Memória e Justiça no Brasil. Two volumes. São Paulo: Editora Hucitec.

### Master and PhD thesis completed

José Manuel Pureza

Marcelino, Carla Supervision. PhD thesis "Crianças-soldado entre a justica, a reconciliação e a paz: justica juvenil transitória", Programme on International Politics

and Conflict Resolution - CES/FEUC, University of Coimbra.

## Maria Raquel Freire

Nunes, Pedro dos Reis. Master thesis O projecto ALBA: Equilibrando um Mundo Desequilibrado by Master in International Relations, School of Economics, University of Coimbra.

Pinto, Danielle Jacon Ayres. Master thesis "Mediação de conflitos internacionais e a inserção mundial do Brasil", Master in International Relations, School of Economics, University of Coimbra.

Ranito, Jovana (Co-supervision with T.C.Gomes). Master thesis "Limitations in post-conflict cooperative security: Kosovo after 1999", Master in International Relations, School of Economics, University of Coimbra.

## Paula Duarte Lopes

Brito, Rafaela. Master thesis "Securitizing Climate Change", Master in International Relations, FEUC, University of Coimbra.

Masri, Lorena Pontes. Master thesis Cooperação Sul-Sul: o modelo dos novos atores com velhos interesses, Master in International Relations, FEUC, University of Coimbra.

# Marta Araújo

Santos, Hélia. (co-supervision with Margarida Calafate Ribeiro) Master thesis "Jovens Muçulmanos, Identidades e Escola Pública: um estudo de caso", Programme on Postcolonialisms and Global Citizenship – CES/FEUC, University of Coimbra.

## Maria Paula Meneses

Pereira, Ana Maria Baila Albergaria (co-supervision with João Arriscado Nunes). Master thesis "Viagem ao Interior da Sombra: deficiência, doença crónica e invisibilidade numa sociedade capacitista", Programme on Postcolonialisms and Global Citizenship – CES/FEUC, University of Coimbra.

#### Cecília MacDowell Santos

Osoria, José M. Atiles. Master thesis "Colonialismo, Estado de Excepción y Resistencia: La Criminalización de la Lucha Armada en Puerto Rico", International Institute for Sociology of Law, Oñati, Spain.

#### Fernando Ruivo

Lopes, Ana Maria Pereira. Master thesis "Desigualdades de Género no Poder Local: duas autarquias em estudo", by Programme "Políticas Locais e Descentralização,"

School of Economics, University of Coimbra.

#### **Future Research**

### **Other Information**

Future research will build on the research projects, conferences and other events that have been organized by the Research Groups and Observatories. Below are examples of activities planned for 2010, attesting to the consolidation of a strong interdisciplinary and internationalised research agenda within this Area.

Organization of colloquia, conferences and seminars (selected)

Colloquium As mutações do acesso à lei e à Justiça na União Europeia, February, CES.

Conference Participação dos cidadãos e eficácia das escolhas na metodologia do Debate Publico, March, CES.

Cycle of four seminars on Pacifism, April, CES.

International Colloquium International Forced Migration: Gender and Agency, May, CES.

Seminar Media and Peacebuilding, June, CES.

Advanced training courses (selected)

Olhares sobre o Tribunal Europeu de Direitos Humanos: Casos contra Portugal e desafios ao TEDH, January 6-7, CES.

Justiça, Media e Cidadania, April 15-16, CES.

Jornalismo para a Paz, May, CES-Lisboa.

Secularism, September, CES-Lisboa.

Summer Courses

Fragilidade, Paz e Conflito, July, CES.

Diversidade Cultural e Racismos: Desafios Contemporâneos, September, CES.

Observatories

The Permanent Observatory for Portuguese Justice (OPJ) (http://opj.ces.uc.pt/) was created in 1996. The main objective is to monitor and study the administration of justice in Portugal. It also conducts comparative studies inside and outside the European Union. The work of OPJ is widely recognized as the major source of information on the Portuguese justice system. In 2009, OPJ initiated a series of training

courses for Julgados da Paz. It also served as consultant and a model for the creation of the Brazilian Observatory of Justice.

The Observatory for Consumer Debt (OEC) (http://www.oec.fe.uc.pt/) was created in 2001. Its major goal is to monitor and analyse the problem of expanding consumer debt. In addition to its research projects on this theme, the OEC publishes a newsletter and has organized conferences on families´ indebtedness in Portugal.

The Observatory for Gender and Armed Violence (OGAV) (www.¬ces.¬uc.¬pt/¬ogiva/¬) was created in 2008 and has already developed a robust agenda for research and social intervention. Its major goal is to analyse and make recommendations for the advancement of policies on gender and security in contexts of armed violence in Europe, Portuguese-speaking African countries and Latin American countries.

#### **Future Plans**

Building on the projects developed by the Research Groups and Observatories, future plans include: first, to reinforce the long-established research lines, such as justice and access to law, human rights, state and democracy. The partnerships that have been established with universities, research centres and networks in Europe, Africa and Latin America will help to achieve this plan.

Secondly, to further expand and consolidate new lines of research on such themes as peace, violence and security; new forms of social regulation in the context of transnational migration; new challenges facing political participation; intercultural education; identity policies; gendered violence, racism and discrimination. The recently approved research projects will contribute to meeting this plan. Advanced training courses and summer courses will also contribute to systematise and disseminate the outcomes of the new projects.

Thirdly, to further promote interdisciplinarity and reinforce inter-Group and inter-Observatory dialogues and activities. The recently approved project "TOLERACE-The Semantics of tolerance and (anti-)racism in Europe," funded by the European Commission, will contribute to reinforce interdisciplinarity. Comparative studies will be an excellent instrument to foster inter-Group dialogues, as well as partnerships with CES-Aquino de Bragança in Mozambique and CES-América Latina in Brazil. The organisation of conferences, summer courses, advanced training courses, co-edited volumes and co-edited special issues of scientific journals will also help to implement this plan.

Finally, the Area will continue to prioritise internationalisation – namely through the inclusion of research projects and PhD programmes in transnational networks, and through the organisation of international scientific meetings. This will be combined with the continued diversification of funding sources, both at the national and international levels.

# New Solidarities: Local, National, Global

**Group Description** 

(RL-SADG-LA12-36)

Title of Research Group: New Solidarities: Local, National, Global

José Manuel de Oliveira Mendes **Principal Investigator:** 

Main Scientific Domain: Sociologia, Antropologia, Demografia e Geografia

**Objectives & Achievements** 

**General Objectives** 

This Thematic Area, co-coordinated by Pedro Hespanha and José Manuel Mendes, includes two Research Groups (NECPS and NETS) and the Observatory of Local Government. Much of the activities were rooted in these research units and thus a part of the scientific outputs of the thematic area 2 is also mentioned in the partial reports. But a number of other activities held by the Area were cut across different Research Groups, beyond those two and joined together researchers with diverse perspectives.

The general objectives follow the three strategic orientations of CES: consolidation of a strong interdisciplinary and internationalised research team; training of young scientists; and promotion and diffusion of scientific culture. In terms of substantive matters, attention has been given to the emergence of new solidarities in economic and social life, new forms of democratic participation compensating for the weakening of the trade unionism, and social democratic political parties and to the redefinition of the role of the State and the third sector in pace with the new forms of governance.

### **Main Achievements**

Almost all the activities foreseen for 2009 have been carried out and some others have been added. In broad terms, extending research and advanced training to new areas and new dimensions of social solidarity, involving in it new generations of researchers and promoting debate and strategic thinking at different levels were a major achievement in 2009. A good example is ECOSOL/CES, a research network created by a group of post-graduate students in CES aiming at developing a theoretical and methodological debate on Solidarity-based Economy, through regular seminars, visiting experiences, and disseminating results of their own academic research. The publication of the "International Dictionary of Alternative Economy", of a special issue of the Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais (no. 84 on "The challenges of Solidarity-based economy") and of a book joining contributions of these post-graduated students to be published soon are some of the outcomes of the network.

Outreach activities were particularly relevant and comprised a wide set of activities, such as dissemination of information, organization of debates, offer of consultancy and advanced training services, and development of networks joining together researchers, professionals and social policy users. In order to maximize the accumulated experience and expertise in public policy evaluation, a permanent unit of public policy evaluation has been created jointly by NECPS and the NETSind aiming to a better external provision of specialized services. Also the Observatory of Local Government has been

# **Objectives & Achievements**

active in disseminating information through its database of the national press and in organizing or participating in public debates before and during the Municipal Elections (October 2009). Worth mentioning, as well, is the research contract signed by CES and the Association of Social Workers on the profession of social workers in Portugal in order to substantiate the request for the creation of a Professional Association to be presented to the Parliament. The study was carried out by researchers of NECPS and NETSind.

# **Research Line Output**

# **Collaborative Publications in peer review Journals**

Dornelles, Denise F. (2009) "Análisis por contraste de programas de Transferencia condicionada para la lucha contra la pobreza en Brasil y Portugal". Portularia (Huelva), v. IX, p. 59-74

Ferreira, Virgínia (2009), "Employment Policies from a Gender Equality Perspective in Europe: developments and challenges", Options Méditerranéennes, n.º 87, 33-44

Hespanha, Pedro; Namorado, Rui (2009), "Os desafios da economia solidária" [The challenges of the solidarity based economy]. Revista Crítica de Ciências Sociais, nº 84 (special issue).

## **Collaborative Other Publications**

Cattani, A.D.; Laville, J.-L.; Gaiger, L.I.; Hespanha, P. (orgs.) (2009), Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Almedina/CES

Costa, Hermes; Araújo, Pedro (2009), As Vozes do Trabalho nas Multinacionais: O impacto dos Conselhos de Empresa Europeus em Portugal. Coimbra: Almedina/ CES.

Costa, Hermes Augusto (2009), "Modalidades de cooperação laboral transnacional: obstáculos e oportunidades para o sindicalismo ibérico", in A. A. Buiza e E. J. M. Pérez (org.), Relaciones laborales y acción sindical transfronteriza. Granada: Editorial Comares, 193-229

Estanque, Elísio (2009), "Trabalho, desigualdades e sindicalismo em Portugal", in Buiza, Alfredo y Perez, Enrique (org.), Relaciones Laborales y Ación Syndicale. Relaciones Laborales Transfronterizas, Portugal-España. Valladolid/ Granada: Instituto de Estudios Europeos, 127-150.

Mendes, José Manuel; Tavares, Alexandre (2009), "Building Resilience to Natural Hazards. Practices and Policies on Governance and Mitigation in the Central Region of Portugal", in Sebastian Martorell, C. Guedes Soares and Julie Barnett (org.), Safety, Reliability and Risk Analysis. Vol. 2, Theory, Methods and Applications.. Leiden: CRC Press/Balkema, 1577-1584.

Serapioni, Mauro (2009), "Health Systems. Brazil", in Elisabetta Bertotti e Serena Foresi (org.), Global Health and Development Assistance Rights, Ideologies and

Deceit. Pisa: Edizioni ETS, 276-283.

# Master and PhD thesis completed

PhD thesis:

Mariz, Maria Elisa de Almeida. "Além dos 60: moradores de Coimbra e São Paulo" [Beyond 60s: neighbours in Coimbra and São Paulo compared], by Pontifícia Universidade Católica de São Paulo (Brazil) - co-supervised by Pedro Hespanha (PH)

#### Master thesis:

Almeida, Maria de Fátima. "Formação para que mercado de trabalho? Dilemas de um programa formativo numa sociedade em construção" [Training for which labour market? Dilemmas in a developing Country] (Dec., 3), supervised by PH

Costa, Elizardo Scarpatti. "Movimentos Sociais Latino-Americanos: A chama dos movimentos campesino-indígenas bolivianos" [Latin-American Social Movements: the peasant indigenous SM in Bolivia] (Dec., 9), co-supervised by HC

Costa, Hector. "Economia Informal dos Estudantes dos PALOP em Coimbra" [The Informal Economy of African Portuguese Speaking Students] (Oct., 29), supervised by PH

Cristina, Sílvia Domingos. "A Vida de um Conselho De Empresa Europeu: Que Práticas e Expectativas?" [Enterprise committees in EU: practices and expectations] (Nov., 30), co-supervised by Hermes Costa (HC).

Lopes, Ana. "Desigualdades de Género no Poder Local: duas autarquias em estudo" [Gender Inequalities in Local Governments] (Dec., 18), supervised by PH

Lopes, Mónica. "Trabalho e parentalidade. Um Estudo sobre a acomodação e custos da maternidade e da paternidade para os indivíduos e as organizações" [Employment and Parental Leave] (Dec., 17), supervised by VF

Louro, Catarina. "Violência doméstica e precariedade laboral: Uma relação possível" [Domestic Violence and Labour precarity] (Dec., 22), supervised by VF

Nogueira, Cláudia. "Mulheres com negócios. Contributos para uma avaliação do potencial emancipatório do empreendedorismo feminino" [Women in business. On the emancipatory role of women's enterpreneurship] (Dec., 16), supervised by PH.

Pacheco, Vanda. "Entre a fobia da cigarra e a apologia da formiga: a Inclusão Activa e os Esquemas de Rendimento Mínimo na Europa" [Active Social Inclusion and Minimum Income Schemes] (Dec., 17), supervised by PH

Rodrigues, Rosana Lima. "Muito além do Grande Bom Jardim: alcances e limitações das acções e projectos baseados na socioeconomia solidária realizados pela Rede de

Desenvolvimento Sustentável" [Solidarity based economic projects: limits and challenges] (Nov., 27), supervised by Elísio Estanque (EE).

Silva, José. "Economia Solidária e Mercado" [Solidarity based Economy and the Market], School of Economics of Universidade Lusíada de Lisboa (Nov.,12), supervised by PH

Silva, Sandra. "Economia Solidária e Solidariedade" [Solidarity based Economy and the Solidarity], School of Economics of Universidade Lusíada de Lisboa (Nov., 12), supervised by PH

Silva, Sofia. "Envelhecimento Activo Trajectórias de Vida e Ocupações na Reforma" [Active Ageing, life trajectories and retirement strategies] (Dec., 2), supervised by PH.

Teixeira, Ana. "Quando Desemprego se Escreve no Feminino: Estudo de Caso em Vila Nova de Gaia" [Women's unemployment] (Dec., 28), supervised by PH

Vieira, Raluca. "Entre Ficar ou Partir. As Expectativas dos Jovens e o Desenho das Políticas" [Leaving or stay? The Expectations of Young People and the Design of Youth Policies] (Jul., 24), supervised by PH

# **Future Research**

#### **Other Information**

Future research will build on the developments of the projects and activities carried out by the Research Groups and the Observatory of Local Government. Some initiatives relating to the organization of conferences and advanced training courses, as well as information on the work of the OPL are foreseen to be undertaken in the next future by researchers in this Area.

### Organization of colloquia, conferences and seminars

Conference on "How economic crisis is affecting social policy and social wellbeing" involving policy makers, social partners and scholars

Conference on "Environmental Costs: Incommensurability and indivisibility" to be organized by OSIRIS, NECTS, NEGIE and NETS

Conference on "Environment and Social Research" to be organized by NECTS, NEGIE and NETS

1st Iberoamerican Conference on Social Responsibility for researchers on issues such as Businesses, Businessmen and Social Responsibility.

Conferences Cycle on "O Trabalho não é [é] uma mercadoria" [Labour is not [it is] a commodity] started in 2009

Wokshop on "Evaluation studies on Social Policy and Employment Policy" to be

organized by NECPS and NETS

International conference on "The Psychiatric Deinstitutionalization" to be organized by NECPS and NUCEM (Brazil)

Organization of advanced training courses

Advanced Training Course on "Health and Community" addressing problems such Community based health care services, health local movements and organizations, users participation.

Advanced Training Course on "Health care: rights and provision. A crosscut approach" targeted to both professionals and activists and involving the research groups NECTS, NECPS and NEM.

Advanced Training Course on "Trauma and Society" to be organized by the research groups NECTS and NECPS

Advanced Training Course on "Social Innovation, Public Policy and New Agents" to be organized by the research groups NECTS, NEGIE and NECPS

Advanced Training Course on "Governance, Regulation and Social Innovation" to be organized by a consortium of partners

Advanced Training Course on "New Forms of Social Activism" to be organized by NETS, NECTS and NECCurb.

Observatory activities

The OPL is developing and will develop in the next future research in various projects: "Access to Formal Immigrant Political Landscape in the Local Context", held at CES and financed by FCT (in progress); "Political Patronage in Portugal", which is supported by FCT, involving the SACSJP of the University of Aveiro and the ICS from Lisbon (in progress); and "The Quality of Local Democracy: The Case of Portugal in Comparative Perspective", presented by ICS (approval pending).

### **Future Plans**

In order to potentiate the acquired experience from research and research networks, the two RGs, alone or with other RGs in CES, will offer several advanced training courses oriented to scholars, researchers, professionals and activists and several National and International Conferences oriented to researchers and post-graduated students.

On the organizational level, inter-research groups meetings will be promoted in order to deepen the theoretical and methodological exchanges and to create a research agenda attentive to emergent trans-disciplinary issues. Particular attention will be given to outreach activities involving partners interested in promoting innovative forms of civil

society networking, citizens participation and building bridges for mutual learning. Taking into account that Doctoral Programmes play a significant role in enhancing the synergies created by the advanced research developed in CES, new solidarities, as a transversal subject, may be present in different programmes allowing for an intensive debate on the issue.

At the international level, we will reinforce the scientific cooperation and joint research with scientific and research institutions in Latin America and Africa, using the past and current experiences of co-operative research. The goal of comparing social organization forms prevalent in Southern Europe with the more informal regimes of social protection in some Latin America and Africa countries is still quite relevant and allows for a better understanding of new trends in social policy making and governance.

These cooperative activities will result in joint publications that emphasize the development of innovative theoretical and methodological approaches to tackle the new challenges to the Global South. Two particular aspects of this goal will be the creation of a Library of Participatively-built Policies on Social Inclusion and the publication of an English edition of the Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia.

# Sciences, Technologies and the Humanities

**Group Description** 

Title of Research Group: Sciences, Technologies and the Humanities

Joao Carlos Freitas Arriscado Nunes **Principal Investigator:** 

Main Scientific Domain: Sociologia, Antropologia, Demografia e Geografia

**Objectives & Achievements** 

**General Objectives** 

This Thematic Area, co-coordinated by João Arriscado Nunes and António Sousa Ribeiro, includes three Research Groups: Architecture and Urbanism; Comparative Cultural Studies; and Science, Technology and Society. Research in the area focuses on issues of knowledge and its centrality in contemporary society and culture. Its main objective is to contribute to the construction of a cosmopolitan approach to knowledge. Thus, orientations are provided for research and outreach activities promoting transdisciplinary dialogues across the social and natural sciences, the humanities and the arts, on emerging configurations of knowledge and their relevance in reshaping active citizenship and participation, on issues related to the diversity of forms of knowledge and the way these raise new questions related to what counts as knowledge in different settings, how knowledges are produced, the forms of their mutual engagement, how access to knowledge is distributed and how global cognitive justice is defined and achieved.

#### **Main Achievements**

The main achievements in this area cover a broad range of outcomes and activities, including: the deployment of a range of approaches based on transdisciplinary dialogues between the humanities, the arts, architecture and urban planning, the social sciences, the life and biomedical sciences and the earth sciences. These include innovative procedures for addressing issues such as emerging configurations of knowledge and issues of cognitive justice; the experience and (re)construction of memories of violence, trauma and crises; counter-hegemonic forms in language and the politics of language; the design of new configurations of research tools, including the use of narrative approaches, rhetorical analyses and performance to address controversial or ethically charged topics in domains such as the life and biomedical sciences or emergent sciences/technologies; intercultural dialogues (on religion, cultural difference and integration of migrant populations); questions related to the social perception of space, in particular as concerns urban design, urban planning and urban heritage; the shaping of institutional and collective responses to health and environmental crises, natural risks and disasters; and the design and application of procedures for the participation and involvement of citizens in debate and policymaking on knowledge-based or ethically controversial issues. In 2009, highlights of this activity have been, among others: the consolidation of the Observatory on Religion and the Risk Observatory - OSIRIS and the conference 'Risk and State in a Globalised

# **Objectives & Achievements**

World'; the conference "Memory, History and Justice"; a number of other workshops and conferences, on a range of relevant topics; the completion of several research projects, both national and international; the proposal of two new doctoral programmes, on Cultural Heritage of Portuguese Influence and Territory, Risk and Public Policies; several advanced training courses, including e-learning.

# **Research Line Output**

# **Collaborative Publications in peer review Journals**

Dias, Aida and Sales, Luísa, (2009), "War's Mental Health Legacies for Children of Combatants", Peace Review: A Journal of Social Justice, 21, 2, 182-187.

Machado, Helena; Santos, Filipe (2009), "Popular press and forensic genetics in Portugal – Expectation and disappointment regarding two cases of missing children", Public Understanding of Science, online first, 1-16.

Machado, Helena; Silva, Susana (2009), "Gender and ethics in qualitative interviewing: Research relationships in the context of a study of infertility in Portugal", Journal of International Ethics, 6, 2-3, 1-29.

Machado, Helena; Silva, Susana (2009), "Informed consent in forensic DNA databases: Volunteering, constructions of risk and identity categorization", Biosocieties, 4 (4), 335-348.

### **Collaborative Other Publications**

Akrich, M.; Nunes, J. A.; Paterson, F.; Rabeharisoa, V. (orgs.) (2009), The Dynamics of Patient Organizations in Europe. Paris: Presses de l'École des Mines.

Bebiano, A.; Ferreira, R.; Tavares, T. (orgs.) (2009), Estudos Feministas: Ensaios de uma interdisciplina. Coimbra: FLUC.

Freiria, S.; Cunha, L.; Santos, N. (2009), "The importance of natural risks in urban dynamics", in T. Panagopoulos (org.), New Models for Innovative Management and Urban Dynamics, 121-131.

Keating, C.; Guilherme, M.; Daniel, H. (2009), "Diversity Management: negotiating representations in multicultural contexts", in M. Guilherme et al. (orgs.), Intercultural Dynamics in Multicultural Groups. Clevedon: Multilingual Matters.

Keating, C.; Guilherme, M.; Hoppe, D. (2009), "Intercultural responsibility: Power and ethics in intercultural dialogue and interaction", in M. Guilherme et al. (orgs.), Intercultural Dynamics in Multicultural Groups. Clevedon: Multilingual Matters.

Mendes, J. M.; Tavares, A.; Freiria, S.; Cunha, L. (2009), "Social vulnerability to natural and technological hazards: the relevance of scale", in Bris et al. (org.), Reliability, Risk and Safety: Theory and Applications. London: Taylor & Francis, 445-

451.

Martins, C.; M. C. Ribeiro; M. Matias; P. Peixoto; T. S. Pereira (orgs.) (2009), "Novos mapas para as ciências sociais e humanas ", E-cadernos CES, 2.

Mendes, J. M.; A. Tavares (2009), "Building Resilience to Natural Hazards. Practices and Policies on Governance and Mitigation in the Central Region of Portugal", in S. Martorell, C. G. Soares and J. Barnett (org.), Safety, Reliability and Risk Analysis. Vol. 2, Theory, Methods and Applications. Leiden: CRC Press/Balkema, 1577-1584.

Olaio, A.; Wandschneider, M.; Pinharanda, J.; Schachter, K. (2009), Brrrrain. Lisboa: Culturgest.

Ramalho, M. I. (2009) Co-ed (with D. Friedensohn). "Transnational, Post-imperial American Studies?" Special issue of Op. Cit., no 9.

# Master and PhD thesis completed

Master thesis:

Almeida, Bertânia, Pensar e construir habitação: o contexto do realojamento social na cidade do Mindelo, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by José António Bandeirinha.

Carvalho, António, Performances, Poderes e Sujeitos no debate sobre Nanotecnologias, MA in Sociology (supervisor João Arriscado Nunes).

Filipe, Ângela Marques, Entre biologia e política: a governação da saúde no caso das associações de doentes em Portugal, MA in Sociology (supervisor João Arriscado Nunes).

Freiria, Susana, Expansão urbana e riscos naturais – o caso de Coimbra, MA in Social Dynamics and Natural Risks.

Grácio, Rita, Redes Sociais dos Bloggers Portugueses, MA in Sociology of Culture (supervisors: Graça Capinha and Sílvia Portugal).

Neves, Daniel, Novas Cartografias da Saúde: Controlo Social e participação cidadã no governo da saúde, MA in Sociology (supervisor: João Arriscado Nunes).

Santos, Hélia, Jovens Muçulmanos na Escola Pública Portuguesa, MA in Postcolonialism and Global Citizenship (supervisors: Margarida Calafate Ribeiro and Marta Araújo).

### PhD thesis:

Grande, Nuno, Arquitecturas da cultura: política, debate, espaço: génese dos grandes equipamentos culturais da contemporaneidade portuguesa, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised

by Mário Krüger and Nuno Portas.

Lousa, António, Object-city, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by Mário Krüger.

Ribeiro, João Mendes, Arquitectura e espaço cénico: um percurso biográfico, DARQ-FCTUC, supervised by Mário Krüger.

### **Future Research**

#### Other Information

Two events are being prepared in joint cooperation by the research groups on Architecture and Urbanism and on Comparative Cultural Studies: one a conference on contemporary architecture and the impact of the "National Meeting of Architects, 1969"; another on "Women in architecture: colloquium, exhibition and publication".

The research projects on "Children of the Colonial War" and "New Poetics of Resistance" will hold their final conferences in 2010.

The Coimbra International Meeting of Poets will take place in May 2010 with a strong participation of researchers in the area.

Several training courses and seminars are planned both within the area and in collaboration with other research groups, such as the groups on Peace Studies and on Migrations.

Several research projects that have received funding will start in 2010.

#### **Future Plans**

Future plans for this research line are intimately connected to the overall strategic orientation of CES. The research groups will remain the decisive operative instance, but will increasingly develop initiatives aimed at reinforcing transversal cooperation within the Centre as a whole and with national and foreign partners. Among others, the following points have been identified as central concerns for the future:

- Active participation in the pending reorganisation of CES's structure of research.
- Focus on thematic clusters organised around issues of contemporary relevance that present opportunities for networking on the national and the international level. The two Observatories on risk and on religion are a case in point. Another emergent, but already well consolidated cluster is centred on the question of violence; questions of biopolitics, of science, public engagement and public participation, of public knowledge of health, of arts and cultural memory, and of the politics of language, among others, are further relevant examples. All these questions have consequences for the epistemological debates that will continue to build a central concern for the area.
- Consolidation of transdisciplinary cooperations within ongoing or starting projects

with research units in the biomedical and life sciences and with civil society organizations in the field of health.

- Consolidation of the existing doctoral programmes, with special attention to the new programmes just accredited and to be launched in October 2010.
- Increased involvement in international projects and international networks, in the framework of North-South collaboration but also in the European framework.
- Further consolidation of the Observatories.
- Increased investment in outreach activities, including active participation in the planning and realization of Summer courses to be planned for 2011.

# **Cultures and Social Dynamics**

**Group Description** 

(RL-SADG-LA12-38)

Title of Research Group: Cultures and Social Dynamics

Principal Investigator: Carlos José Cândido Guerreiro Fortuna

Main Scientific Domain: Sociologia, Antropologia, Demografia e Geografia

**Objectives & Achievements** 

**General Objectives** 

This area, co-coordinated by Carlos Fortuna and José Reis, includes three research groups: City and Urban Cultures Studies; Studies on Governance and Economic Institutions; and Migration Studies. The objectives for this area continue to include an understanding of the social dynamics associated with local cultures and the mobility of individuals, both on an infranational and an international scale. Particular attention has been paid to two specific dimensions: work-related mobility and mobility associated with heritage, local societies and the enjoyment of culture and tourism.

In 2009 these general lines of inquiry translated into the following objectives:

- knowledge of regional dynamics within a Portuguese context, in particular urban processes;
- Comparative knowledge of immigrant communities;
- Channelling of the studies developed towards a discussion that is capable of influencing contemporary debates on the profound instability which has affected the more developed societies within the framework of the economic and financial crisis.

#### **Main Achievements**

The projects and activities developed by the Research Groups connected to this thematic area have enabled research on changing urban cultures and city modernization, cultural planning and policies for city and territorial development policies, urban governance, and transnational migration processes to be consolidated.

Comparative perspectives continued to be emphasised. Research into tourism flows and audiences for culture has allowed for an understanding of the different urban dynamics in Portugal. Phenomena relating to the everyday life of the most underprivileged populations, including immigrants, have led to a discussion of the persistence and renewal of social imbalances. In addition, a new line of research was initiated on the integration of qualified immigrants within Portuguese society and its impacts, with the aim of exploring a relevant, although little-known, dimension of migratory phenomena in the country.

Continued interest was maintained in the overall perception of public policies, their orientation and impacts, especially policies of a territorial nature, given their general

# **Objectives & Achievements**

nature and associated effects.

The results that have been achieved allow for reference to the consolidation of a large and innovative amount of knowledge concerning Portuguese society, and also the development of international comparisons, namely with the broader European context and with Brazil and Latin America. The consolidation of networks forged with European and Brazilian partners continues to be one of the main achievements of the thematic area, proving the growing internationalisation of research in these fields of enquiry.

The MA and PhD programmes on Cities and Urban Cultures and the PhD programme on Governance, Knowledge and Innovation, in cooperation with the Faculty of Economics, were fully realised and reflect a continuous demand from students interested in the research frameworks of the thematic area.

## **Research Line Output**

## **Collaborative Publications in peer review Journals**

Leite, Rogério P.; Peixoto, Paulo, "Políticas urbanas de patrimonialização e contrarevanchismo", Cadernos Metrópole, 21, 93-104.

Lopes, Helena; Santos, Ana C.; Teles, Nuno, "The Motives for Cooperation in Work Organisations", Journal of Institutional Economics, 5, 3, 315–338.

Collaborative Other Publications

Caldas, José C.; Costa, Ana; Pereira, Cícero, "Economia e Moralidade", in Luís de Sousa (org.), Ética, Estado e Economia – Atitudes e práticas dos europeus. Lisbon: ICS, 67-92. (Book chapter)

Coelho, Lina (2009), "Economia Feminista", in António Cattani, Luis I. Gaiger, Pedro Hespanha, Jean L. Laville (org.), Dicionário Internacional da Outra Economia. Coimbra: Almedina. (Book chapter)

Góis, Pedro, "Cape Verdeanness as a complex social construct", in Charles Westin; J. Bastos; J. Daninhem; Pedro Góis (org.), Identity processes and dynamics in multi-ethnic Europe. Amsterdam: Amsterdam University Press.

Góis, Pedro; Marques, José C., "Portugal – eine Semiperipherie im globalen Migrationssystem", in Teresa Pinheiro (org.), Portugiesische Migrationen. Geschichte, Repräsentation und Erinnerungskulturen. Wiesbaden: VS Verlag für Sozialwissenschaften, 37-53.

Mano, Margarida; Almeida, Filipe; M. Ramos, Luís; Marques, M. Conceição; Nolan, Sílvia (orgs.), Governance and Management Models in Higher Education: a global perspective. Porto: Vida Económica. (Book)

Reis, José; Pinho; Paulo (coord.); Reis, José, Política de Cidades POLIS XXI: Parcerias para a Regeneração Urbana, Lisbon: DGOTDU, 34. (Report)

Silva, Regina H.; Junior A. da, Wagner M, "Software Livre e Inclusão Digital", in Caroline Queiroz Santos (org.), Inclusão digital e cidadania: a experiência do Projeto Cidadão.NET. Belo Horizonte: Trilha Comunicação.

Tolda, João, "Análise sistémica das dinâmicas espaciais de inovação: fundamentos teóricos e estudo empírico", in Costa, José S.; Nikamp Peter e Dentinho, Tomaz P. (org.), Compêndio de Economia Regional, Volume II. Angra do Heroísmo: APDR. (Book chapter)

## Master and PhD thesis completed

Casaleiro, Paula. Cidades do Conhecimento: oportunidades para as cidades de média dimensão (o caso de Coimbra) (Knowledge Cities: Challenges for medium-size cities (The case of Coimbra). (MA thesis, Masters in Cities and Urban Cultures).

Quintela, Pedro. "Mediação cultural, experimentação e inovação: o caso do serviço educativo da Casa da Música" / "Cultural mediations and innovation: a study on the Casa da Música's experience". (MA thesis, Masters in Cities and Urban Cultures).

Roxo, Mariana. "Realojamento: práticas e políticas de habitação no município de Coimbra" / "Housing policies in the municipality of Coimbra". (MA thesis, Masters in Sociology).

Silva, Sílvia. "A recepção dos públicos da cultura: uma abordagem sobre os modos de recepção dos públicos da Escola da Noite" / "Audiences for the arts and cultural reception: the audiences of the theatre company Escola da Noite". (MA thesis, Masters in Cities and Urban Cultures).

### **Future Research**

#### Other Information

The following are some of the area's various cross-research group initiatives for the coming year:

The Revival of Political Economy – prospects for sustainable development (International Conference)

2nd CES Workshop on The Foundations of Economics: Facts, Values and Objectivity (Seminar)

V Seminário da Rede Brasil-Portugal de Estudos Urbanos "Espacialidades/ Culturalidades/ Divercidades" (V Seminar of the Brazil-Portugal Urban Studies Network "Spacialities/ Culturalities/ Diversities" (Seminar)

Afinal o que é a Economia: o que nos ensina a sua história? (What is Economics: what can we learn from its history?) (2nd. session.) (Training course)

Novas formas de activismo social (New forms of social activism) (Training course)

Communities: Improving the integration of culture in community planning in Canada and Europe (Seminar)

Contentious Knowledge, political advisors and institutional changes: The emergence of new actors in Europe (Training course)

Deciding about the environment (Seminar)

Histórias com Estórias. Ciclo de Cinema sobre Emigração/Imigração em homenagem a Maria Baganha (Histories with stories: a cycle of films on emigration/immigration in homage to Maria Baganha (Ciclo de Cinema)

Famílias Imigrantes (Immigrant families) (International conference)

#### **Future Plans**

- 1) Given that a very diverse body of knowledge on the urban phenomenon has been accumulated within this thematic area, one of the orientations for future work is to integrate the results that have been obtained and to develop the interdisciplinary theoretical dimension which has served as its framework. The aim will be to pay special attention to pluriculturalism and the development of new forms of urban economics ranging from those based on the creative industries to those which are part of a higher tertiary sector.
- 2) The notion of urban governance is central to the most immediate developments. It has been tested as an important theoretical and analytical instrument capable of giving meaning to the social, territorial and political transformations revealed in ongoing work.
- 3) The development of SPOTIA projects: Guidelines for sustainable territorial policy and assessment of impacts contributions to the Portuguese situation, (Fundation for Science and Technology FCT) and the organization of an international conference on "The Revival of Political Economy Prospects for Sustainable Provision", to take place in 2010, will produce a body of research results of general interest to this thematic area. The same applies to the organization of an international seminar on comparative heritage, culture and urban requalification studies, bringing together researchers from Portugal, Spain, Brazil and other Latin American countries. The seminar will be held in Coimbra in October 2010 and will allow for both the publication of important comparative research results and the development of new lines of enquiry into city change and the processes reshaping urban cultures.